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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access; 1-800-735-2964

wwvv.dhhs.nh.gov

February 24, 2023

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human "Services, Division of Public Health
Services, and the Division for Children, Youth and Families to enter into contracts with the
Contractors listed below in an amount not to exceed $1.018,011 to provide home visiting services,
with the option to renew for up to four (4) additional years, effective April 1, 2023, upon
Govemor and Council approval through September 30, 2024. 76% Federal Funds, 24% Genera!
Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

VNA at HQS, Inc. 177274-B002 Keene Catchment Area $508,737.00

TLC Family
Resource Center

170625-B001
Claremont Catchment

Area
$509,274.00

Total: $1,018,011.00

*Note the Department submitted requested actions for other areas of the state which were
approved at the G&C Meeting on 2/8/23, thus ensuring statewide coverage is obtained.*

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

No purchase order numbers will be assigned to Division for Children. Youth and Families
but that the Division of Public Health Services will be using purchase order numbers and New
Hampshire First System,

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide home visiting services to pregnant individuals,
and families with children up to age five (5), by utilizing the evidence-based home visiting model

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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from Healthy Families America and its Child Welfare Protocols. This nationally recognized
program demonstrates positive outcornes for families In the areas of positive parenting practices,
Improved matemal and child health, Improved school readiness, increased economic self-
sufficiency and parental educational attainment, and Increased linkages and referrals to valuable
community resources. This model has also demonstrated reduction in child maltreatment and
family violence.^ Healthy Families America is currently being provided In every County in New
Hampshire. The purpose of this request Is to ensure continuity of services, while supporting
expansion of the program, making it available to a broader population of families, including those
involved in New Hampshire's child welfare system.

Approximately 100 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023, 2024, and
2025.

The Division of Public Health Services will monitor services by:

•  Conducting monthly, quarterly, and annual data reviews to evaluate capacity
utilization, service delivery by region, and demographic data to ensure equitable
provision of services.

•  Conducting quarterly and annual data reviews of program performance across 19
federally-defined performance measures.

•  ' Reviewing data entered into model-specific tracking documents by each sub
contract to ensure fidelity to the requirements of the evidence-based model.

The Division for Children, Youth and Families will monitor services using the following
performance measures:

•  Referrals

o Share of families who are referred to Healthy Families America from
Division for Children, Youth and Families. (Number of families currently
enrolled in Healthy Families America Child Welfare Protocols and
percentage of Healthy Families America Child Welfare Protocol slots
currently used.)

o' Share of Division for Children, Youth and Families-referred families that
were enrolled between three (3) and twenty-four (24) months of age.

0 Share of Division for Children, Youth and Families-referred families with a
recent assessment of a Substance Exposed Infant.

•  Enrollments

o Average time to enrollment from the time and date of referral.

q • Number of days from referral date to the first home visit.

6 Share of families that are offered Healthy Family America and percentage
of offered families who decide to receive Health Family America.

o Proportion of families that are retained In the program over specified
periods of time, (three (3) months, six (6) months, and every six (6) months
thereafter) after receiving a first home visit.

^ HFA Evidence of Effectiveness 2022 Website.pdf fhealthvfamlliesamerica.orQ)
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o Proportion of families who receive at least seventy-five'percent (75%) of
the appropriate number of home visits based upon the individual level of
service to which they are assigned.

•  Program Completion

o Share of families who do not complete the.program, including, reason for
non-completion and/or discharge.

o Share of families that discharged who completed a minimum-of specified
periods of service. (Starting at six (6) months, and every six (6) months
thereafter up until thirty-six (36) months of "service.)

•  Short-term Outcomes

o Share of families with a new case opened to the Division for Children, Youth
and Families, or a new report of maltreatment, within six (6) months after
discharge.

o Share of children who enter out-of-home placement within six (6) months
after discharge. Including breakdown of placement type.

o Share of children who enter any form of out-of-home placement within
twelve (12) months of discharge.

o Differences in outcomes outlined above (i.e., prevention of out-of-home
removal, decreases in risk/needs) by racial/ethnic and- geographic
characteristics.

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid. process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from August 30, 2022-
through September 23, 2022. The Department received two (2) responses that were reviewed
and scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is.attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, of the.attached agreements, the parties have the option to
extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Govemor and Council approval.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, over 35 New Hampshire
families will experience a lapse in preventive services they have come to depend on, leaving
vulnerable families without access to proven support for preventing child abuse and neglect,
family violence, low birth weight, maternal depression, and developmental delays.'

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number # CFDA #93.870 FAIN # XI043595,
X1046878,X1141935, X1145263, CFDA #93.658 FAIN # 2201NHFOST

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner



FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

SPY 23, 24 & 25 HOME VISITING CONTRACTS

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES (DPHS) FUNDS

05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,
100% FEDERAL CFDA #93.870 FAIN # XI043595, XI046878

TLC Family Resource Center - Vendor #170625-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023 p2-500731
Contracts for Prgm
Srvs

90083208
$43,50.0.00

2024 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Pel
90083210 $174,000.00

2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Re!
90083210

$43,500.00

SUBTOTAL: $261,000.00

VNA at HQS, Inc. - Vendor #177274-8002

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prgm
Srvs

90083208 $36,646.00

2024 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Re!
90083210 $146,583.00

2025 ' 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Re!
90083210 $36,646.00

SUBTOTAL: $219,875.00
Total of AU 5896 $480,875.00

05-95-90-902010-2451-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUEAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, ARP - MIEC HOME

100% FEDERAL FUNDS CFDA #93.870, FAIN# X1141935 & X1145263

TLC Family Resource Center - Vendor #170625-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Pel
90083206

$2,454.00

2024 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Pel
90083207

$9,816.00

2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel
90083207

$2,454.00

SUBTOTAL: $14,724.00



VNA at HCS, Inc. - Vendor #177274-B002

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Re!
90083206

$4,090.00

2024 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Re!
90083207

$16,361.00

2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Re!
90083207

$4,090.00

SUBTOTAL: $24,541.00

Total of AU 2451 $39,265.00

DPHS Subtotal $520,140.00

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN. YOUTH AND FAMILIES (DCYF) FUNDS

05-95-042-421010-29580000, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD -

50% FEDERAL CFDA #93.658 FAIN # 2201NHFOST

TLC Family Resource Center - Vendor #170625-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023 637-504181

TITLE IV-E FOSTER

CARE SERVICE 42105869 $38,925.00

2024 637-504181

TITLE IV-E FOSTER

CARE SERVICE 42105869 $155,700.00

2025 637-504181

TITLE IV-E FOSTER

CARE SERVICE 42105869 $38,925.00

Subtotal $233,550.00

VNA at HCS, Inc. - Vendor #177274-8002

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023 637-504181

TITLE IV-E FOSTER

CARE SERVICE 42105869 $44,053.00

2024 637-504181

TITLE IV-E FOSTER

CARE SERVICE 42105869 $176,215.00

2025 637-504181

TITLE IV-E FOSTER

CARE SERVICE 42105869 $44,053.00

SUBTOTAL: $264,321.00
Total Of AU 2958 $497,871.00
GRAND TOTAL: $1,018,011.00



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

# [riProject ID # iRFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV

Project Title 'Home Visiting Services

Maximum

Points

Available

VNA at HCS, Inc.
TLC Family

Resource Center

Technical

Experience (Q'1 - Q5) ' * . 30/ 28 26

Organizational Capacity (06 -
011 & Appendix J): 35 30 31

Performance Improvement (012
-016) 25 . 22 21

Subtotal - Technical 90 80 78

Cost

Budget Sheet & Budget .
Narrative (Appendix F) ■  5" 4 4

Program iStaff List (Appendix G) 5 4 4

Subtotal - Cost 10 8 8

TOTAL POINTS 100 88 86

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $520,172 $956,415

Reviewer Name

iGayleen Smith

'iPauline Jesionowskj.

Kristi Hart,

^ Ashley Janos

5 Kelly McCormac

Paula Gyurcsan

Title

Administrator III, Finance

ipinance Manager

jProgram Specialist IV, DPHS

jprogram Specialist IV, DCYF
I

(Assessment Supervisor IV, DCYF

Program Planner I



DocuSign Envelope ID; 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

Subject: RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02 / Home Visiting Services

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

J. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

TLC Family Resource Center

1.4 Contractor Address

PO Box 109, 62 Pleasant Street

Claremont, NH 03743

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-542-1848 Exl: 322

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902010-5896:

05-95-90-902010-2451;

05-95-42-421010-2958.

1.7 Completion Date

9/30/2024

1.8 Price Limitation

$509,274.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.ll Contractor Signature

2/287?62
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
.  • Stephanie Slayton

Executive Director

1.13 W^')^PbV'5%nature
DocuSlgnAd by:

Date: 2/28/202;

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Patricia M. Tilley

Di rector

1.15 Approval by tne N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By; Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
OocuSlon«d by:

By: 1 On: 3/6/2023
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number; G&C Meeting Date;

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date

•OS

ss
27'28"/2023
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("Slate"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES,
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become

effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for.all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hercunder, exceed the Price Limitation .set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
Slate or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
di.scriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Stale employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or. performance of this , Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement. •
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the

period from the date of such notice until such time as the Stale
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Slate may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Stale's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purcha.sed with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,

the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which ari.se out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omisswwsof the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or properly damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all properly
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Stale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of

insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Coiiipensolion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation, laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parlies at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns, The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT

A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date

ss



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective April 1,
2023, ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance, with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

ss
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Introduction

1.1. The Contractor must provide services in accordance with Department
requirements and the Healthy Families America (HFA) program, which is
designed to reduce the risk of child maltreatment by strengthening parent-child
relationships, promoting healthy childhood growth, and enhancing family
functioning and protective factors. Families enroll voluntarily with HFA, and
meet regularly with a Family Support Specialist and receive services tailored to
their needs.

HFA is both culturally-inclusive and trauma-informed,,and teaches parents
about healthy child development and appropriate activities for keeping their
child{ren) healthy and thriving. The Contractor must provide services to assist
in:'

•  Increasing caregivers' ability to build attachments with their child(ren);

•  Creating foundations for nurturing relationships;

•  Enhancing family functioning through reducing risk and increasing
protective factors; and

•  Developing connections to additional resources, which include, but are
not limited to:

o Housing.

o Food.

o Various forms of treatment,

o School readiness,

o Chiidcare.

o Access to diapers and other supplies.

1.2. The Department, through this Agreement, seeks to assess needs more
holistically, and to create crucial linkages across systems that touch vulnerable
populations to seamlessly connect them to supports and enhance available
services at all levels of needs. The Department's Division of Public Health
Services (DPHS) in conjunction with the Division for Children, Youth and
Families (DOYF) are collaborating their efforts to achieve this goal. The
Contractor must provide services using the HFA program to children and
families on behalf of both Divisions.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to day(s) mean Monday
through Friday, business days, excluding state .and federal holidays.

2. Key Definitions & Terminology
f  DS
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TLC Family Resource Center Page 1 of 16 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

2.1. Begin Date of Services -The date the Contractor initiated contact with the
client/family, and corresponds with the date listed as "begin date of services"
on the Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) Service Authorization
Form.

2.2. CPS - Child Protective Services.

2.3. CQI - Continuous Quality Improvement.

2.4. Cultural Humility - Maintaining a willingness to suspend what you know, or
what you think you know, about a person based on generalizations about their
culture. Rather what you learn about a participant's culture stems from being
open to what they themselves have determined is their personal expression of
their heritage and culture.

2.5. CWP - Child Welfare Protocols.

2.6. DCYF - Division for Children, Youth and Families.

2.7. DHHS - Department of Health and Human Services.

2.8. DPHS - Division of Public Health Services.

2.9. DO-District Office.

2.10. Face-to-face - An in-person or virtual interaction or home visit (defined below)
following the date on which the referral was made in which a provider begins
working with the families to deliver HFA.

2.11. FFPSA - Family First Prevention Services Act.'

2.12. FIE - Full time equivalent is a figure calculated from the number of full-time
and part-time employees in an organization that represents these workers as
a comparable number of full-time employees.

2.13. GGK - Growing Healthy Kids is a user friendly and truly comprehensive
strength-based approach to growing nurturing parent-child relationships and
supporting healthy childhood development.

2.14. HFA - Healthy Families America.

2.15. HFA model - A well-supported practice that provides horrie visiting designed
to work with families who may have histories of trauma, intimate partner
violence, mental health challenge, and/or substance use disorders. HFA
services are delivered voluntarily, intensively, and over the long-term.

2.16. HFA BPS - Healthy Families America Best Practice Standards.

2.17. HFA CWP model - A set of protocols that requires the existing model
requirements be provided, while offering additional guidance related to
enrollment, caseload management, and establishing a formal MOU with child
welfare in order to best serve families. Services are offered for a minimum of

three years, regardless of the age of the child at intake, and supports^eeilies

ss
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

with children through age five, which allows sites to enroll families referred by
child welfare up to age twenty-four months.

2.18. HRSA - Health Resource and Services Administration is the primary Federal
agency for improving access to health care services for people who are
uninsured, isolated, or medically vulnerable and the funding source of the
MIECHV.

2.19. MIECHV - Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting - a program
that supports pregnant individuals and families and helps at-risk parents of
children from birth to kindergarten entry to tap the resources and hone the skills
they need to raise children who are physically, socially and emotionally healthy
and ready to learn.

2.20. MOU/MOA - Memorandum of Understanding/Memorandum of Agreement - a
written agreement between two (2) parties to provide certain services.

2.21. Open Assessment - Any report of concern received by DCYF that is screened
in by DGYF's central intake, and is being investigated by child protection staff..

2.22. Open Case - Any case opened to DCYF, including community-based/internal
voluntary cases.

2.23. Out-of-Home Placement - The removal of a child from their normal place of
residence to reside in a court-ordered substitute care setting under the
placement and care responsibility of DCYF.

2.24. PAT - Parents As Teachers - a foundational curriculum used as an approach
to working with families that is relationship-based and parenting-focused.

2.25. Pll - Personally Identifiable Information.

2.26. OA - Quality Assurance.

2.27. Virtual Home Visit - A home visit, as described in an applicable service delivery
model that is conducted solely by the use of electronic information and
telecommunications technologies.^

2.28. Well-supported practice - An evidence-based service that has at least two
(2) contrasts, with non-overlapping samples in studies carried out in usual care
or practice settings that achieve a rating of moderate or high on design and
execution and demonstrate favorable effects in a target outcome domain. At
least one (1) of the contrasts must demonstrate a sustained favorable effect of
at least 12 months beyond the end of treatment on at least one (1) target
outcome.

3. Statement of Work

3.1.' The Contractor must provide face-to-face voluntary home visiting services to

Text - H.R. 133 - 116th Congress (2019-2020): Consolidaied Apiiropriaiions Act. 2021 I Congie.ss-gov I Libn^jv of
C

ss
ontiress
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EXHIBIT B

pregnant individuals and families with children up to age five (5) by utilizing the
evidence-based home visiting model from HFA.

3.2. The Contractor must ensure a minimum of 80% of families served using the
traditional HFA model are enrolled in services prenatally or by when the child
is 3-months old. The Contractor must offer services in compliance with HFA
requirements after enrollment. Eligible families for traditional HFA services {as
managed by the Division of Public Heather Services) must fall within one (1) or
more of the federally defined priority populations below;

3.2.1. Are first-time parents.

3.2.2. Have income of less than one hundred eighty-five percent (<185%) of
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (USDHHS)
Poverty Guidelines.

3.2.3. Are less than twenty-one (21) years of age.

3.2.4. Have a history of child abuse or neglect, or have had interactions with
child welfare services.

3.2.5. Have a history of substance misuse or need substance use disorder
treatment.

3.2.6. Are users of tobacco products in the home.

3.2.7. Have or have had a child(ren) with low student achievement.

3.2.8. Have a child(ren) with developmental delays or disabilities.

3.2.9. Are in families that include individuals who are serving or have
formerly served in the armed forces.

3.3. The Contractor must service a portion of families utilizing the HFA Child
Welfare Protocols (CWP) in the Claremont DCYF Catchment Area Location,
which is attached as Attachment 1. Virtual home visits may also be
accommodated, in compliance with HFA requirements. The Contractor must
ensure families being served utilizing the CWP have an expanded enrollment
window, allowing for enrollment of families with a child up to twenty-four (24)
months old, referred by the child welfare system, who are participating in the
service voluntarily. The Contractor must serve no less than five (5) DCYF
families during the first six (6) months of the contract period and no less than
thirteen (13) families thereafter through the end of the contract period. ■

3.4. The Contractor must serve fifteen (15) families in the Claremont DCYF
Catchment Area Location under the traditional HFA model.

3.5. Eligible families for HFA CWP services must fall within one (1) of more of the
following DCYF FFPSA priority populations:

3.5.1. Pregnant or parenting youth in foster care.

3:5.2. Families with an infant born exposed to substances.

RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02 B-2.0 Contraclor Initials
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EXHIBIT B

3.5.3. Families assessed by DCYF where the assessment will be closed
unfounded.

3.5.4. Families with an open DCYF case who have recently reunified.

3.6. The Contractor must provide services with the goal of reducing risk of
maltreatment for children assessed by the DCYF by:

3.6.1. Serving families involved with DCYF through open assessments or
■  open cases, and also beyond their DCYF involvement.

3.6.2. Strengthening parent-child relationships.

3.6.3. Promoting healthy childhood growth.

3.6.4. Enhancing family functioning and protective factors both during and
beyond their DCYF involvement with a long-term outcome goal of
decreasing future system involvement and the need for out-of-home
placement.

.  3.7. The Contractor must provide services that address the diverse needs of
children and families in order to improve health and development outcomes for
priority populations through evidence-based home visiting programs, with
fidelity to the HFA model BPS. The Contractor must:

3.7.1. Be approved through the HFA model to provide services under this
Agreement. The Contractor must:

3.7.1.1. Be approved through.HFA, to implement the HFA CWP,
which allows enrollment into HFA for DCYF referred faniilies

up to twenty-four (24) months of age.

3.7.1.2. Have HFA CWP available in the Claremont DCYF

Catchment Area Location within six (6) months of Governor
and Executive Council approval of this Agreement.

3.7.1.2.1 Should the. Contractor be unable to begin
providing services through the HFA CWP by the
date specified above, a corrective action plan
must be developed by the Contactor and
approved by the Department.
3.7.1.2.1.1. In the event that the HFA National

Office denies the Contractor use

of the CWP, the Contractor must
develop a subcontract or MOA
with an approved, accredited HFA
provider to provide this service, no
later than thirty (30) business days
from the date of the denial.

3.7.2. Select and implement an evidence-based curriculum to sugport

RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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prenatal individuals and newly parenting families. Family Support
Specialists (FSS) must be trained within six (6) months of hire on the
following:

3.7.2.1. Parents as Teachers (PAT), as an annually trained
"Approved user;" or

3.7.2.2. Growing Great Kids (GGK) with certification of training.

3.7.3. Collaborate with other early childhood and social service agencies to
support linkages to services beneficial to families.

3.7.4. Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential
components of the HFA model are addressed in agency policies.

3.7.5. Enter personally identifiable information (Pll) for all participants
served under this Agreement into the Department's designated Home
Visiting Data System.

3.8. The Contractor must identify positive ways to establish relationships with each
family and keep families engaged and connected over time, as participants may
be reluctant to engage in services and may have difficulty building trusting
relationships. The Contractor must use creative outreach strategies, such as
Motivational Interviewing, to re-engage families who have disengaged.

3.9. The Contractor must adhere to HFA's site requirements by ensuring weekly
individual supervision is received by all direct service staff.

3.10. The Contractor must provide monthly reflective consultation groups for direct
service staff and supervisors with a skilled Infant Mental Health consultant.

3.11. The Contractor must offer home visits by licensed nurses (registered nurse
(RN) or greater education level) during the prenatal and post-partum periods at
a frequency of once per trimester prenatally, and once per quarter during the
first year post-partum.

3.12. The Contractor must offer services that are comprehensive and focus on
supporting the parent/caregiver, as well as supporting the parent-child
interaction and child development. Additionally, all families must be linked to a
medical provider and other services, as appropriate.

3.13. The Contractor must obtain all necessary authorizations for release of
information. All forms developed for authorization for release of information
must be made available for review by the Department during site visits for
selected case reviews.

3.14. The Contractor must coordinate, where possible, with other local service
providers including, but not limited to:

3.14.1. Health care providers.

3.14.2. Social workers. ,—ds
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3.14.3. Social services.

3.14.4. Early interventionists.

3.15. The Contractor must develop and maintain an advisory group comprised of
community partners, family participants, and agency staff with a wide range of
skills and abilities, including representatives with diverse skills, strengths,
community knowledge, professions, and cultural diversity. The Contractor
must: '

3.15.1. Promote equity in all facets of operations with families, staff, and
community.

3.15.2. Maintain policy or other written guidance expressing the Contractor's
commitment to respectful staff interactions and supporting staff to
continually strengthen their relational skills focused on diversity,
equity, and inclusion.

3.15.3. Gather information to reflect on^and better understand issues
impacting staff and families served and to examine the effectiveness
of its equity strategies.

3.15.4. Develop an equity plan based on what it learns about itself, from an
equity perspective, in the way it supports its staff, the families it
serves, and the community it works within to set a course for
continuous improvement to achieve greater equity in all facets of its
work.

3.16. The Contractor must evaluate the progress of each program participant, as well
as the performance of programs and services provided.

3.17. The Contractor must ensure that they:

3.17.1. Collaborate with relevant DCYF staff and related stakeholders when
a valid release of information has been signed or a subpoena has
been issued by the court.

3.17.2. Make reports to DCYF Central Intake if they suspect child abuse or
neglect, consistent with their responsibility, as mandated reporters
under New Hampshire law.

3.18. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate monthly, with both
Divisions, to enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust
program delivery and policy, based on successful outcomes.

3.19. Compliance Standards

3.19.1. The Contractor must offer services to all families referred by the
Department unless that family is identified as ineligible for HFA under
model specifications and requirements.

3.19.2. The Contractor must ensure referrals are accepted from jwu^iple
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sources within the child welfare system including, but not limited to;

3.19.2.1. DCYF Juvenile Justice Services.

3.19.2.2. DCYF Child Protective Services (CPS).

3.19.3. The Contractor must adhere to all specifications and requirements, in
compliance with NH DCYF's 5-year prevention plan and the Family
First Prevention Service Act (FFPSA), for HFA CWP cases, including
but not limited to:

3.19.3.1. All data reporting;

3.19.3.2. Record keeping and retention;

3.19.3.3. Fiscal compliance;

3.19.3.4. Maintenance of an evidence-based program identified as
well-supported through the Title IV-E Clearinghouse;

3.19.3.5. Documented prevention type on the DCYF service
authorization (which will be completed by the Department);
and

Submitting a completed prevention plan every twelve (12)
months for every DCYF- referred family. DCYF staff will
complete the initial prevention plan for families, and the
Contractor must update the plans at the 12-month mark and
annually. The Department will distribute associated
guidance after DCYF's 5-year plan is reviewed and
approved.

3.19.4. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to ensure that
all program policies, procedures, and documents align with NH DCYF
and DPHS policies, NH state law, and Department needs.

3.19.5. The Contractor must identify staff responsible for submitting reports
and data to the Department within 30 days of the Agreement effective
date.

3.20. Staffing:

3.20.1. The Contractor rriust follow all HFA Essential and Safety standards
for staffing, hiring, training, and supervision, as"outlined in HFA BPS.

3.20.2. The Contractor must ensure HFA home visiting staff have at least a
high school diploma or equivalent, experience providing services to
families, and knowledge of cfiild development. Supervisors and
Program Managers must have at least a Bachelor's degree with three
(3) years prior experience.

3.20.3. The Contractor must ensure FSSs receive extensive training in the
program model before delivering the service and on a recurrini§TJ'^sis.
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Training must comply with all HFA model specifications and
requirements, including but not limited to; . •

3.20.3.1. Attending a four-day core training that is specialized based
on role (assessors, home visitors, and supervisors).

3.20.3.2. Supervisors attending one (1) additional day for the core
training and an optional three (3) days of training that
focuses on building reflective supervision skills.

3.20.3.3. Program managers are required to attend core training plus
three (3) days of training focused on how to implement the
model to fidelity using the HFA BPS.

3.20.4. the Contractor must ensure additional available training is beneficial
to the staff in delivering HFA. Training and conferences topics must
include but are not limited to:

3.20.4.1: Substance use.

3.20.4.2. Childhood Maltreatment (Abuse/Neglect).

3.20.4.3. Parenting techniques.

3.20.4.4. Cultural competence/humility.

3.20.4.5. Childhood and generational trauma (Trauma-Informed).

3.20.4.6. Engagement strategies.

3.20.5. The Contractor must ensure each Family Support Specialist (FSS)
maintains a caseload of no more than ten (10) to twelve (12) families
per 1 FTE for the first two (2) years of employment and no more than
fifteen (15) to twenty (20) families per one (1) FTE after completing
24 months of employment for traditional HFA; and no more than ten
(10) to twelve (12) families at any time for HFA CWP. These caseload
maximums shall be prorated per HFA requirements for staff with less
than 40 hours per week dedicated to the role of FSS.

3.21. The Contractor must maintain HFA accreditation and follow all BPS related to
hiring, staffing levels, training, and supervision among other components of the
model.

3.22. Discharge from HFA services:

3.22.1. The Contractor must develop'a service plan for each family, beginning
at the time of admission and continuing throughout service,

3.22.2. The Contractor must not discharge any family referred by the
Department without following a protocol specified by the Department.

3.23. Extending HFA services:

3.23.1. The Contractor must offer HFA Services to the child and fanjmy,°^or a
'  SS
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minimum of three (3) years in total.

3.24. Reporting

3.24.1. The Contractor must complete a Monthly Capacity Analysis Report,
which is attached as Attachment 2 on a form provided by the
Department. This document must be submitted to DPHS no later than
the 15'^ of each month, containing the prior month's data.

3.24.2. The Contractor, on a quarterly (January, April, July, and October) and
annual (October) basis, must submit to DCYF:

3.24.2.1. Form 1, which is attached as Attachment 3.

3.24.2.2. Form 2, which is attached as Attachment 4.

3.24.3. The Contractor may be required to provide new data reporting
requirements, or other key data and metrics including client-level
demographic, performance, and service data to the Department in a
format specified by the Department.

3.25. Background Checks

3.25.1. For all Contractor employees, interns, -volunteers, and any
subcontractor employees, interns, and volunteers providing services
under this Agreement, the Contractor must, at its own expense, after
obtaining a signed and notarized authorization form the individual(s)
for whom information is being sought:

3.25.1.1. Submit the person's name for review against the Bureau of
Elderly Adult Services (SEAS) state registry maintained
pursuant to RSA 161-F:49;

3.25.1.2. Submit the person's name for review against the Division for
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) center registry
pursuant to RSA 169-C:35:

3.25.1.3. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person
has no history of:

3.25.1.3.1. Felony conviction: or

3.25.1.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

3.25.1.3.2.1. Physical'or sexual assault;

3.25.1.3.2.2. Violence;

3.25.1.3.2.3. Exploitation;

3.25.1.3.2.4. Child pornography;

3.25.1.3.2.5. Threatening or reckless
conduct; ds
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3.25.1.3.2.6. Theft;

3.25.1.3.2.7. Driving under the influence
of drugs or alcohol; or

3.25.1.3.2.8. Any other conduct that
represents evidence of
behaviors that could

endanger the well-being of
any individual served under
this Agreement; and

3.25.2. Unless approval is granted by the Department, the Contractor must
not permit any employee, volunteer, intern, or subcontractor to
provide services under this Agreement until the Contractor has
confirmed:

3.25.2.1. The individual's name is not on the BEAS state registry;

3.25.2.2. The individual's name is not on the DCYF central registry;

3.25.2.3. The individual does not have a record of a felony conviction;
or

3.25.2.4. The individual does not have a record of any misdemeanors
as specified above.

3.26. Confidential Data

3.26.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

3.26.2. The Contractor must ensure any staff and/or volunteers involved in
delivering services through this Agreement, sign an attestation
agreeing to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in
accordance with federal and state laws and regulations and the
Department's Exhibit K. The Contractor must ensure said individuals
have a justifiable business need to access confidential data. The
Contractor must provide attestations upon Department request.

3.26.3. Upon request, the Contractor must allow the Department to conduct
a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system. To conduct the PIA
the Contractor must provide the Department access to applicable
systems and documentation sufficient to allow the Department to
asses, at minimum, the following:

3.26.3.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

3.26.3.2. Who will have access to Pll;

3.26.3.3. How Pll will be used in the system; .—ds

SS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

3.26.3.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked and

3.26.3.5. Privacy practices.

3.26.4. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of Pll.

3.27. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

3.27.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement, the
Parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure
transition of the services from the Contractor to the Department and,
if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the Department to assume
the services previously performed by the Contractor for this section
the new Contractor shall be known as ("Recipient"). Ninety (90) days
prior to the end-of the contract or unless otherwise specified by the
Department, the Contractor must begin working with the Department
and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan
(DTP) on a template provided by the Department.

3.27.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
connection with the transition from the performance of Services by the
Contractor and their Affiliates to the performance of such Services.
This may include assistance with the secure transfer of records
(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data (electronic and
hard copy), the transition of such Service- from the hardware,
software, network and telecommunications equipment and internet-
related information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems")
of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the Recipient and
cooperation with an assistance to any third-party consultants
engaged by Recipient in connection with the'Transition Services.

3.27.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software license
("Tools") was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store
State Data in relationship to this Contract, said Tools will be
inventoried and returned to the Department, along with the inventory
document, once transition of State Data is complete.

3.27.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor and
its Affiliates must be provided to the Department and if applicable, the
Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition Services must be
deemed to be.Services for purposes of this Contract.

3.27.5. Should the Data Transition extend beyond the end of the Contract,
the Contractor and its Affiliates agree Contract Information Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associates Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until the
Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.f^'^®
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B

3.27.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data
and the destruction of Transition of said data is not feasible, the
Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to destruction.

3.28. Website and Social Media

3.28.1. Contractor agrees that if performance of services on behalf of the
Department involves using social media or a website to solicit
information of individuals, or Confidential data, the Contractor must
work with the Department's Communication Bureau to ensure that
any social media or website designed, created, or managed on behalf
of the Department meets all of the Department's and NH Department
of Information Technology's website and social media requirements
and policies.

3.28.2. Contractor agrees that protected health information (PHI), personal
identifiable information (Pll), or other confidential information solicited
either by social media or the website that is maintained, stored or
captured must not be further disclosed, unless expressly provided in
the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of PHI. Pll, or other
confidential information is subject to the Information Security
Requiremerits Exhibit, the Business Associates Agreement Exhibit
and all applicable state rules and state and federal laws. Unless
specifically required by the Contract and unless clear notice is
provided to users of the website or social media, the Contractor
agrees that site visitation will not be tracked, disclosed or used for
website or social medial analytics or marketing.

3.29. Performance Measures

3.29.1. For services provided for DPHS, the Department will monitor
Contractor performance by reviewing indicated reporting
requirements on Form 1. which is attached as Attachment 3, and
Form 2, which is attached as Attachment 4, and working with the
Contractor to select areas to improve upon utilizing CQI strategies
through a data driven process.

3.29.2. For services provided for DCYF, the Department will focus on specific
data'points collected through its internal data systems, monthly,
quarterly and annual submissions via email, and existing HFA data
collection reports on DCYF Key Performance Metrics, which are
attached as Attachment 5.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiablejijgalth

I ss
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EXHIBIT B

Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

4.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals, who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. -All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any^^d all

ss
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original materials produced, including, but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories..

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public,
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

ss
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6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure
Report the Department must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor
as costs hereunder the Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to
deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums
from the Contractor.

r~DS
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Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations

Berlin
(650'Main Street Suite 200, Berlin NH 03570)

Serving the cities, towns, and

locations of:

"  Atkinson and Gilmanton ■  Dummer ■ Pittsburg

Academy Grant ■  Errol ■ Randolph

■  Bean's Grant ■  Ervings Location ■ Riverton

■  Bean's Purchase ■  Fabyan Gorham ■ Sargent's Purchase

■ . Berlin ■  Grange Greens Grant ■ Second College Grant

■  Bretton Woods ■  Groveton ' ■ Shelburne

■  Cambridge ■  Hadley's Purchase ■ South Lancaster

■  Carroll ■  Jefferson ■ Stark

■  Cascade ■  Kilkenny ■ Stewartstown

■  Chandlers Purchase ■  Lancaster ■ Stratford

■  Clarksviile ■  Low and Burbank's Grant' ■ Stratford Hollow

■  Colebrook ■  Maplewood ■ Success

■  Columbia ■  Martin's Location ■ Thompson & Meserve's

■  Coos Junction ■  Milan Purchase

■  Crawford's Purchase ■  Millsfield > ■ Twin Mountain

■  Crystal ■  North Stratford ■ Wentworth's Location

■  Cult's Grant ■  Northumberland ■ West Milan

•  Dalton ■  Odell j ■ West Stewartstown

■  Dix's Grant ■  Percy ■ Whitefield

■  Dixville "  Pinkham's Grant

Littleton

(80 North Littleton Road,-Littleton, NH 03561)

Serving the cities, towns, and locations of: ■ Lisbon

■  Apthorp ■  Littleton

■  Bath ■  Livermore •

■  Benton ■  Lyman

■  Bethlehem ■  Monroe

■  Bethlehem Junction ■  North Haverhill

■  Center Haverhill ■  North Woodstock ^

■  East Haverhill ■  Pierce Bridge

■  Easton •  Piermont

■  Franconia ■  Pike

■  Glencliff ■  Sugar Hill •

■  Haverhill ■ Warren

■  Landaff ■  Woodstock

■  Lincoln ■  Woodsville
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Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations

Cohway
{71 Hobbs Street. Conway NH 03818)

Serving the cities, towns, and ■

locations of: •  Freedom Redstone

■  Albany ■  Glen Sanbornville

■  Bartlett ■  Granite Sandwich

■  Brookfield •  Male's Location Silver Lake

■  Center Conway •  Hart's Location Snowville

■  Center Effingham ■  Intervale South Chatham

■  Center Ossipee "  Jackson South Effingham

■  Center Sandwich ■  Kearsarge South Tamworth

■  Center Tuftonboro ■  Madison Tamworth

■  Chatham ■  Melvin Village Tuftonboro

■  Chocorua ■  Mirror Lake Union

■  Conway ■  Moultonborough Wakefield

■  East Conway ■  Moultonville West Ossipee

■  East Wakefield ■  North Conway Wolfebbro

■  Eaton ■  North Sandwich Wolfeboro Falls

■  Effingham ■  Ossipee Wonalancet

Claremont

{17 Water Street, Suite 301, Claremont NH 03743)

Serving the cities, towns, and

locations of: ■  Georges Mills

■  Acworth ■  Goshen ■ Orange

•  Beauregard Village ■  Grafton ■ Orford

■  Burkehaven •  Grantham ■ Plainfield

■  Canaan ■  Guild ■ South Acworth

•  Charlestown ■  Hanover ■ South Charlestown

■  Claremont ■  Langdon ■ Springfield

■  Cornish ■  Lebanon ■ Sunapee

•  Cornish Flat ■  Lempster ■ Unity

■  Croydon ■  Lyme ■ Washington

■  East Lempster ■  Lyme Center ■ West Canaan

•  Enfield ■  Meriden , ■ West Lebanon

■  Enfield Center ■  Mount Sunapee ■ West Springfield

■  Etna ■  Newport ■ West Unity
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Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations

Keene

(111 Key Road. Keene NH.03431)

Serving the cities, towns, and

locations of: ■  Harrisville Sharon

■  Alstead ■  Hillsborough Spofford

■  Antrim ■  Hillsborough Upper Village Stoddard

■  Ashueiot ■  Hinsdale Sullivan

■  Bennington ■  Jaffrey Surry

■  Chesterfield ■  Keene Swanzey

■  Deering ■  Marlborough Temple

■  Drewsville ■  Marlow Troy

■  Dublin ■  Munsonville Walpole

■  East Sullivan ■  Nelson West Chesterfield

■  EastSwanzey ■  New Ipswich West Deering

•  East Westmoreland ■  North Swanzey West Peterborough

■  Fitzwilliam ■  North Walpole West Swanzey

•  Gilsum ■  Peterborough Westmoreland

■  Greenfield •  Richmond Westport

■  Greenville "  Rindge Winchester

■  Hancock ■  Roxbury Windsor

Laconia

•  (65 Beacon Street West, Laconia NH 03246)

Serving the cities, towns, and

locations of: ■  Ellsworth • Meredith Center

Alexandria ■  Gilford ■ New Hampton

■  Alton ■  Gilmanton ■ North Sanbornton

■  Alton Bay ■  Gilmanton Corners ■ Plymouth

■  Ashland ■  Gilmanton Iron Works ■ Quincy

■  Barnstead ■  Glendale ■ Rumney

■  Bear Island ■  Governor Isle ■ Sanbornton

■  Belmont ■  Groton ■ Thornton

■  Bridgewater ■  Hebron ■ Tilton

■  Bristol ■  Holderness ■ Waterville Valley

■  Campton ■  Laconia ■ Weirs

■  Center Barnstead ■  Lakeport ■ Wentworth

■  CenterHarbor ■  Lochmere • West Alton

■  Dorchester ■  Lower Gilmanton ■ West Rumney

■  East Holderness ■  Meredith ■ Winnisquam
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Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations

Concord

(40 Terriii Park Drive, Concord NH 03301)

Serving the cities, towns, and

locations of: ■  Epsom

■  Allenstown ■  Francestown ■ Penacook

■  Andover ■  Franklin ■ Pinardville

■  Blodgett Landing ■  Gerrish ■ Pittsfield

■  Boscawen ■  Goffstown ■ Potter Place

•  Bow ■  Gossville ■ Salisbury

■  Bradford ■  Henniker ■ Short Falls

■  Canterbury ■  Hill ■ South Danbury

■  Chichester ■  Hooksett ■ South Sutton

■  Concord ■  Hopkinton ■ Suncook

■  Contoocook ■  London ' ■ Sutton

•  Danbury ■  New Boston ■ Warner

"  Davisville ■  New London ■ Weare

■  Dunbarton ■  Newbury ■ Webster

•  East Andover ■  North Sutton ■ Webster Lake

■  East Concord ■  North Wilmot ■ West Franklin

•  East Sutton ■  Northfield ■ Wilmot

■  Elkins ■  Pembroke ■ Wilmot Flat

Manchester

{1050 Perimeter, Suite 501, Manchester. NH 03103)

Serving the city of:

Manchester

Page 4 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations

Rochester

{150 Wakefietd'Street Suite 22, Rochester NH 03867)

Serving the cities, towns, and locations of:

■  Barrington ■  Madbury

■  Center Strafford ■  Middleton

■  Dover ■  Milton

■  Durham ■  Milton Mills

■  East Rochester ■  New Durham

■  Farmington ■  Rochester

■  Gonic ■  Rolljnsford

■  Lee ■  Strafford .

Seacoast

(19 Rye St. Portsmouth; NH 03801)

Serving the cities, towns, and

locations of:

■  Auburn ■ . Hampton Beach Northwood

■  Brentwood ■  Hampton Falls Nottingham

■  Candia ■  Kensington Portsmouth

■  Danville ■  Kingston Raymond

■  Deerfield ■  New Castle Rye

■  East Kingston ■  Newfields . Rye Beach

■ , Epping ■  Newington Seabrook

■  Exeter ■  Newmarket Somersvyorth

■  Fremont ■  Newton South Hampton

■  Greenland ■  Newton Junction Stratham

■  Hampton ■  North Hampton West Nottingham

Southern

[26 Whippte St. Nashua, NH 03060)

District Office serving the cities. Southern Telework serving the cities, towns.

towns, and locations of: and locations of:.

•  Amherst ■  Milford ■  Atkinson

■  Bedford ■  MontVernon ■  Chester

■  Brookline ■  Nashua •  Derry

■  Hollis •  North Salem ■  East Derry

■  Hudson ■  Pelham ■  East Hampstead

■  Litchfield ■  Reeds Ferry ■  Hampstead

■  Lyndeborough ■  Salerh ■  Londonderry

■  Mason ■  Wilton ■  Plaistow

■  Merrimack ■  Windham ■  Sandown
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Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

CASELOAD'AND^CAPACITY/ANALYSIS^^E^Wfo be compteted for,each month of,the contract period
iThis Excel toot has been adapted to streamline,the caseload and capacity analysis and reporting processes,' for,both the Local Implementine Agency and tbe Statejeam; and to standardize the way metri

report December, 202 fdatatJPIease do not change the name of the file when emailing the report to NH OPHS-VheiNew Home.VisKorjtab has been designed for, home wsitors in their, first 24 months to
better accomodate new HFA BPS.'

1. Click on a home visitor worksheet (HV) tab, below. Enter the home visitor's information into theCREEN CELLS only; their Name, # hours per week paid by HFA, and % of HFA time as a home visitor.

2. Enter the number of families on each level that the home wsitor saw in the reporting month.

3. Repeat Steps 1-2 for each home visitor allocated to HFA Home Visiting during the month, in the separate tabs provided.

4. If you have a home visitor position that is currently vacant, please indicate this using "RECRUITIvtENr' instead of,the home visitor's name.

5. Click the "Capacity Analysis" worksheet tab to review the analysis.for your Local Implementing Agency this month.

NOTE: to optimize your case-assignment planning, use next month's workbook to model your family and case-weight numbers, and see what your performance results will bel

MAINTENANCE

-f

PLEASE FOLLOW IF.VOUR FAMILY SERVICE WORKERS CHANGED IN,THE REPORTING MONTH

If your HFA home visiting staff changed, but the number of HFA home visitors did not exceed 5, simply change the "Name of staff member" in Cell 82. Return toiH^Steo 1.

If the number of HFA home visitors during the reporting month wasgreater than 5, contact the State Team for technical assistance, OR:

1. Duplicate the last FSV/worksheet lab (right-click, select "move or copy", click box "create a copy", move to "before Capacity Analysis")

2. Update formulas in the Capacity Analysis worksheet tab to include the new FSW worksheet:

a. U families sen.-ed, per case weight catego.'y (cells E3;l3)

b. % of monthly home visitor capacity utilized (cells E7, F7)

c. Service Utilization % (cells, ElO, FIO)

Note: The tt of hours paid should be the salaried or expected contracted hours forHFA only, regardless of vacation days, out of office, sick, etc

Note: The K of time spent home visiting should be the % of time • of the HFA hours recorded above • doing home visiting work. For FSWs who are NOT also doing FAW work, the % will be 1009(

Once the,green ceils are filled, all orange fields and the Capacity Analysis worksheet will auto-calculate for the indrvfdual home visitors and for your LIA '
If the.totai number of families or the total weighted caseload is above,the maximum, the corresponding field will turn red
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Month (or Caseload Analysis ianuarv 2022 Permanent Spcdal Orcumstances (PSC) families should be captured above at

Hire Date {New Hire under 24 months emp] 6/28/2022 their level. AND in this section If they have any of the following: need an

Name of staff member interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc.). have significant

a hours per week worked for HFA only additiottal travel time, or a child with special needs

Of the hours above. K lime as HFA home visitor

Caseload multlpDer 0.00 ■ of lamDIes vdth additional casewelght due to PSCa

levels OcscripLion
Number of

Families on Level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per level
0.5 1 ' 1.5 2 2.5 3

Extra Case

Weight

Level 2P Prenatal - visits every other week during first and second trinsester 2.00 0 0

Level IP Prenatal - visits every week in third trimester (or earlier if needed) 2.00 0 0

Level 1 First 6 months after birth or enrollment - visits every week 2.00 0 0

level 2 Visits every other week 1.00 0 0

level 3 Visits once per month 0.50 0 0

Level ISS Crisis Intervention - visiu weekly, or more If rteeded 3.00 0 -

Level 4 Visits once per quarter 0.25 0"

Creative Outreach (CO) Creartvr* Outrearh (CO) Is for families that rompletertat Ifasi pnif

level COl home visit but became disengaged. 2.00 0

Level C02 CO families are given the same cascv/eight they had prior to going on 1.00 0

level COS CO. to ensure space if re-engaged. 0.50 0 riot aoplkable

Temporary Assignments (TO, TR) Temporarily Out of Area (TO): for up to 3 months, families are given

Level TOl the same casewelght they had prior to going on CO, to ensure space if 2.00 0

Level T02 • re-engaged. 1.00 0

level T03 Temporary Re-Asslgnment (TR): for up to 3 months, families accept 0.50 0-

Level TR voluntary re-assignment to another FSW due to leave or turnover 0.50 0

Actual totals 0 0 Total additional PSC caseweights

Maximum lor fidelity 0 0 0

HFA CAPACrrV CALCULATION aoiv/OI

FSW Contribution to NASA CAPACfTY CALCULATION 0.0X
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Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

Month for Caseload Analy^ Permanent Special Circumstances (PSC) families should be captured above at

Hire Date (New Hire under 2d months emp] 6/28/2022 their level, and in this section If they have any of the following: need an

Name of staff member interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc.). have significant
« hours per week worked for KFA only addltiorvjl travel time, or a child with special needs

Of the hours above, X time as HFA home visitor

Caseload muttlpHer 0.00 • of families with additional casewelght due to PSCs

levels Description
Number of

Families on level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per iBvel
1 1.S 2 2.S 3

Extra Case

Weight

Level 2P Prertatal • visits every other week during first and second trimester 2.00 0 0

Level IP Prenatal • visits every week In third trimester (or earlier If needed) 2.00 0 0

Level 1 First 6 months after birth or enrollment • visits every week 2.00 0 0

level 2 Visits every other week 1.00 0 0

Level 3 Visits once per month o.so 0 0

Level ISS Crisis Intervention • visits weekly, or more If needed 3.00 0

Level 4 Visits once per quarter 0.25 0

Creative Outreach (CO) Creative Outreach ICOl is for families that comoleted Ir)a^( pnf
Level COl home visit but became disengaged. 2.00 0

Level C02 CO families are given the same caseweigh: they had prior to going on 1.00 0

Level COS CO, to ensure space if re-enRased. O.SO 0 not SDollcable

Temporary Assi(tnmcntj (TO.'TRJ Temporarily Out of Area (TO): for up to 3 months, families are given

Level TOl the same cascwelght they had prior to going on CO. to ensure space if 2.00 0

Level T02 re-engaged. 1.00 0

Level TOS Temporary Re-Assignment (TR); lor up to 3. months, families accept O.SO •  0

Level TP voluntary re-asslgnment to another FSW due to leave or turnover o.so 0

Actual totals - — 0 0 - - Total additional PSC caseweights

Maximum for fidelity •• 0 0 0

HFA CAPACITY CALCULATION •OIV/OI

FSW Contribution to HftSA CAPACITY CALCULATION 0.0X
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Month for Caseload Anatysis Permanent Spcdal Orcumstances (PSC) families should be captured above

Name of staff member at their level. AND in this section if they have any of the followtng: need an

a twurs per week worked for HFA onfv interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc.), have significant

Of the hours above, K time as HFA home visitor additional travel time, or a child with special needs

Caseload multiplfer 0.00 ■ of families with adiStional caseweight due to PSCs

Levels Description
Number ol

Families on Level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per Level
0.5 1 IJ 2 23 3 Case

Weitht

Level 2P Prenatal • visits every other week during first and second trimester 2.(» 0 0

Level IP Prenaut-visits every week in third trimester (or earlier H needed) 2.00 0 0

Level 1 First 6 months after birth or enrollment - visits every week 2.00 0 0

level: Snsits every otfser week 1.00 0 • 0 •

Level 3 Visits once per month 0.50 0 0

Level ISS Criws Intervention - visits weekly, or more if needed 3.00 0

Level 4 Visits once per quarter 0.2S -0

Creative Outreach (CO) fre.vtive Outreach fmi Is for families that fomrtleled at lea$( one

Level COL home visit but became disengaged. 2.00 0

Level C02 CO families arc given the same caseweighi they had prior to going on 1.00 0

Level C03 CO. to eruure soace if re-enxaged. 0.50 0 not aoolleable

Temporary Asslsnmcrtts (TO, TR) Temporarily Out Of Area (TO): for up to 3 months, families arc given

Level TOl the same caseweighi they had prior to going on CO. to ensure S(>3ce 2.00 0

Level T02 d re-engaged. 1.00 0

Level T03 Temporary Re-Assignment (TR): for up to 3 months, families accept 0.50 0

Level TR voluntary re-assignment to another FSW due,to leave or turnover 0.50 0

Actual totals - 0 0 Total additional PSC casewelghts

Maximum lor fidelity 0 0 0

HFA CAPACITY CALCULATION lOIV/OI

FSW Contribution to HRSA CAPAOTY CALCULATION 0.0N
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-80F1-179FF130615D
mvvcivhment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

Month for Catcload Anjlyiis Permanent Spedal Circumstances (PSC) families should be captured above

at their level, AND in this section If they have any of the following: f>eed an
interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc.). have signlficani

additional travel time, or a child with spedal needs

Name of staff member

# hours per week worked for HFA only

Of the hours above. H time as HFA home visitor

Caseload multiplier 0.00 t of fatnlUes with additional casewcfght due to PSCs

Levels Description
Number of

Families en level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per Level
0.S 1 IS 2.S 3

Extra

Case

Level 2P Prenaul - visits every other week during first and second trimester 2.00 0 0

Level IP Prenatal • visits every week in third trimester (or earlier if r>eeded) 2.00 0 0

Level 1 First 6 months after birth or enrollment • vbits every week 2.00 0 ■ 0

Level 2 Visits every other week 1.00 0 0

Levels Visits oftce per month 0.S0 0 0
Level ISS Crisb Intervention • visits weekly, or more If needed 3.00 0 -

Level 4 Visits once per quarter 0.2S " 0

Creative Outreach (CO) Creative Outreach fCOl Is for families th.st romnleteri atlMst oae

Level COl home visit but became disengaged.

CO families are given the same casewelghi they had prior to going on

CO. to ensure space if re-engaged.

2.00 0

Level C02 1.00 0

Level COS 0.S0 0 notaBollcable

Temporary Assignments (TO, TR) Temporarfly Out of Area (TO): for up to 3 months, families are given
Level TOl the same casewelghi they had prior to going on CO. to ensure space

if rc-cngagcd.

Temporary Re-Assignment (TR): for up to 3 months, families accept

voluntary re-assignment to another FSW due to leave or turnover

2.00 0

Level T02 1.00 0

Level TOS 0.S0 0

Level TR 0.S0 0

Acttui totals 0 Total additional PSC casewelghts

Maximum for fidelity" ".0 0 0

HFA CAPACITY CALCULATION torv/oi

FSW Contribution to HRSA CAPACTTf CALCULATION O.ON

Page 5 of 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D . . ̂ * i • r* .
Miiachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

Month for C«s«l04d Anarysis Permanent Special Orcumstances (PSC) families should be captured above

Name of atafi member at their level. AND In this section If they have any of the following: need an

• hours per week worked for KFA only Interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc.). have significant

Of the hours above. % time as HFA home vtaltor additional travel lime, or a child with special needs

Caseload multiplier 0-00 ■ of families with additional caseweight due to PSCs

Levels Oescription
Number of

Families on level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per Level
0.5 1 IS 2 2.5 3

Extra

Case

Weirht

Level IP Prenatal - visits every other week during first atsd second trimester 2.00 0 0

Level IP Prenatal • visits every week in third trimester (or earlier if needed) 2.00 0 0

Level 1 First 6 months after Irirth or enrollment • visits every week 2.00 0 ' 0

Level 2 Visits every other week • 1.00 0 0

Level 3 t^sits orKe per month 0.S0 0 0

Level ISS Crisis Intervention • visits weekly, or more if rteeded 3.00 0

Level 4 Visits once per quarter 0.2S 0

Creative Outreach (CO) Creative Outreach ICOl is for families that rnmpletecl al least one

Level COl home visit but became disengaged. 2.00 0

Level C02 CO families arc given the same cascwcight they had prior to going on 1.00 0

Level COS CO. to ensure space if re-enitaccd. O.SO 0 rtol aoolicable

Temporary Assignments {TO. TR) Temporarily Out of Area (TO); for up to 3 months, families arc given -

Level TOl the same casewelghl they had prior to going on CO. to ensure space 2.00 0

Level T02 if re-er^agcd. 1.00 • 0

level T03 Temporary Re-Assignment (TR): lor up to 3 months, families accept O.SO 0

Level TR voluntary re-assignment to another FSW due to leave or turnover 0.50 0

Actual totals 0' 0 Total additional PSC casewrelghts

Maximum for fidelity 0 0 0

HFA CAPAOTY CALCULATION *OIV/0!

FSW Contribution to KRSA CAPACITY CALCULATION O.OK

Page 6 of 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D
MLLdchment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

Month (or C4S«lo*d Anjiysis Permanent Special Qreumstances (PSC) families should be captured above

Name of staff member - at their level, AND in this section if they have any of the following: need an

» hours per week worked for HFA only Interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc), have significant.

Of the hours above, % lime as HFA home visitor additional travel lime, or a child with special needs

Caseload multiplier o.oo • of families with additional casewelght due to PSCs

Levels Description
Number of

Families on.level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per level
0.5 1 2 2.S 3

Extra

Case

Welrht

Level ZP Prenatal - visits every other week during first artd second trimester 2.00 0 0

Level IP Prenatal - visits every week in third trimester (or earlier If iseeded) 2.00 0 0

Level 1 First 6 ntonths after birth or enrollment • visits every week 2.00 0 0

Level 2 Visits every other week 1.00 0 0*

Level 3 Visits once per month 0.S0 0 0

Level ISS Crisis Intervention • visits weekly, or more if rteeded 3.00 0

Level 4 Visits once per ouarter 0.25 •  0 -

Creative Outreach (CO) * " CfpatJve Oiitrrarh (mi is fnr families that rompletprt al lpas( one

Level CQl home visit but became disengaged. 2.00 0

Level C02 CO families arc givcrt the same casewelght they had prior to going on 1.00 0

Level C03 CO, to ensure space if re-ensaeed. 0.50 0 not applicable

Temporary Assignments CTO, TP) Temporarily Out of Area (TO): for up to 3 months, families are given

Level TOl the same caseweighi they had prior to going on CO. to ensure space 2.00 0

Level T02 if re-engaged. 1.00 0

Level T03 Temporary Re-AssIgnment (TR): for up to 3 months, families accept 0.50 0

Level Tft voluntary re-assIgnment to another FSW due to leave or turnover 0.50 0  •

Actual totals 0 0 Total additional PSC casewdghts

Maximum for fidelity 0 0 0

HFA CAPACITY CALCULATION •OIV/OI

FSW Contribution toHRSA CAPACITY CALCULATION O.CIN

Page 7 of 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

LIA^MONTHLYiCAPACITY/ANALYSIS

Casc-Wclght Categories:

3 2 ■ '1 OS 0.25 Total

tt Families Served per category 0 0 0 0 0 0

S Furtded -- 23

-

HFAX HRSAX. Difference

% of Monthly HV Capacity Utilized «OIV/0! OX »DIV/0!

Service Utilization

Prenatal Level 1-4 TemporaryPermanent

0 0 0 0

Families In Case-Weight Categories

0.2S Total

-a Funded

LIA Capacity Utilized, All FSWs

12G^

100%

8C«

60%

<10%

20%

0%

% of Monthly HV C.tpacllv Utilited

-:HFA%

OHRSAS

Service Utilization

Service Utiliiaiioo

p Temporary

Circumstances (SS,

CO, TO, TR)

■ Permanent Special

Circumstances

Page 8 of 8



DooiSign Envelope ID; 64BEAD69-1898-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

0MB No: 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

Attachment 3 - FORM 1

THE MATERNAL, INFANT, AND EARLY CHILDHOOD HOME VISITING

PROGRAM

DEMOGRAPHIC, SERVICE UTILIZATION, AND SELECT CLINICAL

INDICATORS

Public Burden Statement: An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid 0MB
control number. The 0MB control number for this project is 0906»0017. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 560 hours per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to HRSA Reports Clearance Officer, 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 10-29,
Rockville, Maryland, 20857.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D
Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMBNo:0906-0017

CxpiratioD Date: 07/31/2021

SECTION A: PARTICIPANT DEMOGRAPHICS

Table I: Unduplicatcd Count of New and Continuing Program Participants Served by MIECHV

Participants Number Newly Enrolled Number Continuing During Reporting Period Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children (Auto Calculate)

Notes:

Table 2: Unduplicatcd Count of Households Served by MIECHV

Households Number Newlv Enrolled Number Continuing During Reporting Period Total

Number of Households

Notes:

Table 3: Unduplicatcd Count of Participants and Households Served by State Home Visiting Programs (non-MIECHV)

Participants and Households Total Number Seiwed during Reporting Period

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

AH Index Children (Auto Calculate)

Number of Households

Notes:

July 24, 2018



OocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B^EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906-0017

Expiralioo Dale: 07/31/2021

Table 4: Adult Participants by Age

Adult Participants <17 18-19 20-21 22-24 25-29 30-34. 35-44 45-54 55-64 >65 Unknown/Did not Report* Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 5: Index Children by Age

Index Children <1 year 1-2 years 3-4 years 5-6 years Unknown/Did not Report* Total

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

Ail Index Children (Auto Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 6: Participants by Ethnicity

Participants Hispanic or Latino Not Hispanic or Latino Unknown/Did not Report* Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children (Auto Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 24, 2018



OocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906-0017

ExpsralioD Date: 07/31/2021

Notes:

Table 7: Participants by. Race

Participants American Indian

or Alaska Native

Asian Black or African

American

Native Hawaiian or

Other Pacific Islander

White More than

one race

Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers ,

*

Ail Adults (Auto

Calculate) -

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children

(Auto Calculate)

• When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 8: Adult Participants by Marital Status

Adult

Participants

Never Married (Excluding Not
Married but Living Together
with Partner)

Married Not Married but

Living Together with

Partner

Separated/DivorcedAVidowcd Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

Pregnant Women

Female

Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto

Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is > 10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D
Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OiMB No: 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

Notes:

Table 9: Adult Participants by Educational Attainment

Adult

Participants

Less than

HS

diploma

HS

Diploma/GED
Some

college/

training

Technical

training or

certification

Associate's

Degree
Bachelor's

Degree or

higher

Other Unknown/Did

not Report*
Total

Pregnant

Women

Female

Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults

(Auto

Calculate)

♦ When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is > 10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if
possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 10: Adult Participants by Employment Status

Adult Participants Employed Full Time Employed Part-Time Not employed Unknown/Did not Report* Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if
possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D
Attachment 3 - FORM 1

Table 11: Adult Participants by Housing Status

0MB No: 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/202!

Not Homeless Total

Not

Homelc

ss

Homeless Total

Homele

ss

Lnknown/D

id not

Report*

Tota

1

Adult

Participan
ts

Ovvns or

shares own

home,
condominiu

m, or

apartment

Rents or

shares

own

home or

apartme

nt

Lives

in

public
housin

g

Lives

with

parent

or

family
membe

r

Some

other

arrange me

nt

Homele

ss and

sharing
housing

Homeless

and living
in an

emergenc

y or

transition

al shelter

Some

other

airangeme

nt

Pregnant
Women

Female

Caregivers

Male

Caregivers

All Adults

(Auto
Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report''

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future

is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and

reporting.

if

Notes:

Table 12: Primary Language Spoken at Home

Inde.x Children Number Percent

English
Spanish

Other

Unknown/Did Not Report*

All Index Children (Auto Calculate) 100

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report " is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OiMB No; 0906-0017

ExpiodoD Date; 07/31/2021

Notes:

Table 13: Household Income in Relation to Federal Poverty Guidelines

Households Number of Households Percent

50% and under

51-100%

101-133%

134-200%

201-300%

>300%

Unknown/Did not Report*

All Households (Auto Calculate) 100

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 14: For Each Household Indicate the Priority Population Characteristics

Households

Yes No

Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

1. Low income household

2. Household contains an enrollee who is pregnant and under age 21

3. Household has a history of child abuse or neglect or has had interactions with child welfare services

4. Household has a history of substance abuse or needs substance abuse treatment

5. Someone in the household uses tobacco products in the home

6. Someone in the household has attained low student achievement or has a child with low student

achievement

7. Household has a child with developmental delays or-disabilities

8. Household includes individuals who are serving or formerly served in the US armed forces

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615O Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMBNo: 0906-0017

ExpiralioD Date: 07/31/2021

SECTION B: SERVICE UTILIZATION

Table IS: Service Utilization

Home Visits Number

Total Number of Home Visits completed'

Notes:

Table 16: Family Engagement by Household

Households Number of Households Percent

Currently receiving services

Completed program

Stopped services before completion

Enrolled but not currently receiving services/Other

Unknown/Did not Report*

All Categories (Auto Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 17: Unduplicated Count of Households by Evidence-Based Home Visiting-Model or Promising Approach

Home Visiting Model (Select One per Row — Add Rows for Additional
Models)

Number Newly
Enrolled

Number Continuing During Reporting
Period

Total

Notes:

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D
Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906^017

Expiration Dale: 07/31/2021

SECTION C: INSURANCE AND CLINICAL INDICATORS

Table 18: Participants by Type of Health Insurance Coverage

Participants No Insurance

Coverage

Medicaid or

CHIP

Tri-

Care

Private or

Other

Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers-

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children (Auto
Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 19: Index Children by Usual Source of Medical Care

Index Children Doctor's/Nurse

Practitioner's

Office

Hospital
Emergency
Room

Hospital
Outpatient

Federally
Qualincd
Health Center

Retail Store

or Minute

Clinic

Other None Unknown/Did

not Report*
Total

Female Index

Children

Male Index

Children

All Index

Children (Auto
Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

July 24, 2018



OocuSign Envelope ID; 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-80F1-179FF130615D
Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906^017

Expiralioo Date: 07/31/2021

Table 20: Index Children (> 12 months of age) by Usual Source of Dental Care

Index Children Have a Usual Source of Dental

Care

Do not have a Usual Source of Dental

Care

Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children (Auto
Calculate)

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

July 24, 2018 10



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D AttachmCIlt 3 - FORM 1

0MB No; 0906-0017

Expiration Dale: 07/31/2021

DEFINITIONS OF KEY TERMS

July 24, 2018 11



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMBNo: 0906^017

Exptralioo Date 07^1/2021

Tnble

Number

Field Key Terms Requiring Definitions

All

Tables

MIECHV Household: For the purposes of reporting to HRSA on Form 1, a "MIECHV household" is defined as a

family served during the reporting period by a trained home visitor implementing services with fidelity to the model

and that is identified as a MIECHV household at enrollment. HRSA has identified two different methods that can be

used to identify MIECHV households that are described below:

1. Home Visitor Personnel Cost Method (preferred method): Households are designated as MIECHV at
enrollment based on the designation of the home visitor they are assigned. Using this methodology, recipients
designate all households as MIECHV that are served by home visitors for whom at least 25 percent of his/her
personnel costs (salary/wages including benefits) are paid for with MIECHV funding.

2. Enrollment Slot Method (temporary option): Households are designated as MJECHV households based on the
slot they are assigned to at enrollment. Using this methodology, recipients identify certain slots as MIECHV-
funded and assign households to these slots at enrollment in accordance with the terms of the contractual
agreement between the MIECHV state recipient and the LIA regardless of the percentage of the slot funded by
MIECHV.

Once designated as a MIECHV household, the household is tracked for the purposes of data collection through the

tenure of household participation in the program.

Unduplicated Count of New
and Continuing Program
Participants Served by
MIECHV

New Participant: A participant, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, or male caregiver, who signs up to
participate in the home visiting program at any time during the reporting period who was identified as being part of
a MIECHV household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the
Definition of Key Terms).

Continuing Participant: A participant, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, or male caregiver, who was
signed up and actively enrolled in the home visiting program prior to the beginning of the reporting period who was
identified as being part of a MIECHV household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at
the beginning of the Definition of Key Terms).

Pregnant women are participants who were either pregnant at enrollment or pregnant at the annual update of
information in a subsequent reporting period.

Female caregivers are those female household members who are enrolled in the program during the reporting
period, are considered a caregiver of the index child, and were not pregnant at the time of enrollment or the annual
update of this information (e.g., biological mothers, adoptive mothers, foster mothers, grandmothers).

July 24, 2018 12



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D
Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMBNo: 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

Male caregivers include those male household members (e.g. expectant fathers, biological fathers, step-fathers, and
partners) who also meet the definition of an enroilee.

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entrj-): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and was identified as being part of a MIECHV household
at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key Terms).
More than one index child per household can be identified.

2 Unduplicntcd Count of
Household Scn'cd by
MIECHV

New Household: A household, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, and/or male caregiver who signs up
to participate in the home visiting program at any time during the reporting period. The household may include
multiple caregivers depending on model-specific definitions.

Continuing Household: A household, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, and/or male caregiver who
were signed up and actively enrolled in the home visiting program prior to the beginning of the reporting period.
The household may include multiple caregivers depending on model-specific definitions.

3 Unduplicatcd Count of
Participants and
Households Served by State
Home Visiting Programs
(non-MfECHV)

Participant Served by a State Home Visiting Program (non-MIECHV): A participant, including a pregnant
woman, female caregiver, or male caregiver, who signs up to participate in the home visiting program at any time
during the reporting period who was identified as being part of a non-MIECHV household at enrollment (see
definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key Terms).

4 Adult Participants by Age Adult Participants: includes the person or persons in the household who signed up to participate in the home
visiting program (e.g., a teenage parent would be counted as an adult participant but not an index child). Tlie
category can include more than one member of the household if more than one individual are enrolled in the
program (e.g., a father and a mother have both signed up to participate). It should include at a minimum for every
household the primary caregiver of the index child.

5 Index Children by Age Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enroliee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and who was identified as being part of a MIECHV
household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key
Terms). More than one index child per household can be identified.

6 Participants by Ethnicity The responses regarding ethnicity should reflect what the person considers herself/himself to be and are not based
on percentages of ancestry. If ethnicity is unknown or not reported for some participants, enter that count in the
respective "Unknown/Did not report" column.

7 Participants by Race The responses regarding race should reflect what the person considers herselfhimselfto be and are not based on
percentages of ancestiy. Participants who select more than one race should be reported in the "More than one race"
category. If ethnicity' and race are unknown or not reported for some participants, enter that count in the respective
"Unknown/Did not Report" columns.

8 Adult Participants by
Marital Status

Adult Participants: includes the person or persons in the household who signed up to participate in the home
visiting program (e.g., a teenage parent would be counted as an adult participant but not an index child). The
category can include more than one member of the household if more than one individual are enrolled in the
program (e.g., a father and a mother have both signed up to participate). It should include at a minimum for every
household the primary' caregiver of the index child.
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If more than one individual is enrolled in the program, enter the status for all enrollees. For example, if a pregnant
woman is enrolled with her spouse in the program, both participants would be counted under the married category.

Adult Paiiicipants by
Educational Attainment

Adult Participants: includes the person or persons in the household who signed up to participate in the home
visiting program (e.g., a teenage parent would be counted as an adult participant but not an index child); The
category can include more than one member of the household if more than one individual are enrolled in the
program (e.g., a father and a mother have both signed up to participate). It should include at a minimum for every
household the primary caregiver of the index child.

Less than high school diploma includes individuals who have not completed their high school education.

The Some college/training category includes those who are currently enrolled and those who attended in the past.

The Technical training or certification category includes those who received technical training or certification in
the past.

The Associate's Degree category includes those who obtained an Associate's Degree.

The Bachelor's Degree category includes those who obtained a Bachelor's Degree.

The Other category includes those individuals who did not fall into the specified categories.
10 Adult Participants by

Employment Status
Employed: refers to whether the person is currently working for pay.

Employed Full Time: an employee who works an average of at least 30 hours per week

Employed Part Time; an employee who works an average of less than 30 hours per week'

Not Employed: indicates that the person is not working for pay (this category may include, for example, students,
homemakers and those enrollees actively seeking work but currently not employed)

11 Adult Participants by
Housing Status

Not homeless: individuals who have a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence (within the meaning of
section 103(a)(1) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act); and

Not homeless and lives in public housing: individuals who live in a public housing unit that is
administered by a public housing agency (e.xcludes individuals who utilize housing voucher programs)

Homeless: individuals who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence (within the meaning of section
103(a)(1) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act); and

' Healthcarc.gov Glossary*. h»ns://wv\v.hcallhcarc.gov/gloss3rN'/f'iill-iime-emDlovcc/
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Homeless and sharing housing: individuals who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of
housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason

Homeless and living in an emergency or transitional shelter: individuals who are living in emergency
or transitional shelters; are abandoned in hospitals; or are awaiting foster care placement

Homeless and some other arrangement: individuals who are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or
camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations; individuals who have a primary
nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping
accommodation for human beings {within the meaning of section 103(a)(2)(C)); individuals who are living
in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar
settings^

12 Priman' Language Spoken
at Home

Primary language: the language used in the home the majority of the time.

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and was served by a trained home visitor implementing
services with fidelity to the model who was identified as being part of a MIECHV household at enrollment (see
definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key Terms).. More than one
index child per household can be identified.

13 Household Income in

Relation to Federal Poverty
Guidelines

The appropriate category for a given family will depend both on household income and on the number of household
members counted in the household (both home visiting enrollees and non-enrollees). Household income refers to
the annual gross income for the household as defined in programmatic guidance, recorded at enrollment and
annually thereafter.

Federal Poverty Guidelines: Annual income data can be estimated from monthly data (monthly income x 12). The
HHS Povert>' Guidelines are updated annually in February and published in the Federal Register. See ■
httns://asDe.hhs.sov/DOvertv-euideIines.

14 For Each Household

Indicate the Priority
Population Characteristics

Low-Income: An individual or family with an income determined to be below the Federal Poverty Guidelines. The
HHS Poverty Guidelines are updated annually in February and published in the Federal Register. See
https://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty-guidelines.

Pregnant women under 21: Households with expectant mothers who enroll in the program and are under 21 years
old during the reporting period.

Have n history of child abuse or neglect or have had interactions with child welfare services: Based on self-
report, a household with members who have a history of abuse or neglect and have had involvement with child
welfare services either as a child or as an adult.

^ Adminisiration for Children and Families, Early Childhood Learning and ICnowlcdgc Center, 2014. http://cclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/hslc/tia-svstem/familv/familv/Homelcssness/hmls/dcfinition/derinition-
Icgni.himl
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Have a history of substance abuse or need substance abuse treatment; Based on self-report, a household with
members who have a history of substance abuse or who have been identified as needing substance abuse services,
through a substance abuse screening administered upon enrollment.

Arc users of tobacco products in the home: Based on self-report, a household with members who use tobacco
products in the home or who have been identified as using tobacco through a substance abuse screening
administered during intake. Tobacco use is defined as combustibles (cigarettes, cigars, pipes, hookahs, bidis), non-
combustibles (chew, dip, snuff, snus, and dissolvables), and electronic nicotine delivery systems (ENDS).

Have, or have children with, low student achievement: Based on self-report, a household with members who
have perceived themselves or their child(ren) as having low student achievement.

Have a child or children with developmental delays or disabilities: Based on self-report or home visitor/staff
observation, a household with members who have a child or children suspected of having a developmental delay or
disability.

Are in families that are or have served in the armed forces: Based on self-report, households that include
individuals who are serving or formerly served in the Armed Forces, including such households that have members
of the Armed Forces who have had multiple deployments outside of the United States. For this criterion, definition
includes a military member's dependent acquired through marriage, adoption, or other action during the course of a
member's current tour of assigned duty.

15 Service Utilization Home visit refers to the definition of a completed home visit enacted by the various evidence-based home visiting
models approved for implementation through the MIECHV program or a Promising Approach. Please refer to
model-specific guidance for specific definitions.

16 Family Engagement by
Household

Currently receiving sen'ices refers to families that are participating in services at the end of the reporting period.

Completed program refers to families who have completed the program according to model-specific definitions
and criteria during the reporting period.

Stopped ser\'ices before completion refers to families who lef^ the program for any reason prior to completion.

Enrolled but not currently receiving services/Other refers to those families who do not fall into the previous
categories and may include unreachable participants (i.e. the family is not regularly participating but did not
actively sever ties, etc.)

17 Unduplicated Count of'
Households by Evidence-
Based Home Visiting Model
or Promising Approach

A Household, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, and/or male caregiver who were signed up and
actively enrolled in the home visiting program prior to the beginning of or during the reporting period and continues
enrollment during the reporting period. The household may include multiple caregivers depending on model-
specific definitions.
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18 Participnnts by Type of
Health Insurance Coverage

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and who was identified as being part of a MIECHV
household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key
Terms). More than one index child per household can be identified.

The insurance coverage categories are mutually exclusive. No insurance coverage indicates that the individual is
currently not covered by any source of insurance. This table is intended to capture insurance status, not health care
access: receipt of care provided for instance by the Indian Health Service or another safety net health care provider
such as a Federally Qualified Health Center does not constitute insurance coverage.

19 index Children by Usual
Source of Medical Care

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and who was identified as being part of a MIECHV
household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key
Terms). More than one index child per household can be identified.

Usual source of care: the particular medical professional, doctor's office, clinic, health center, or other place where
a person would usually go if sick or in need of advice about his or her health.

20 Index Children (> 12
months of age) by Usual
Source of Dental Care

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entr>'): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and who was identified as being part of a MIECHV
household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key
•Terms). More than one index child per household can be identified.

Usual source of dental care: a usual source of dental care, or dental home, is a place where a child can receive
consistent, comprehensive, compassionate dental care. The concept of the Dental Home reflects the AAPD's clinical
guidelines and best principles for the proper deliver^' of oral health care to all children, with a concentration on
infant/age one patients and should be established no later than 12 months of age.^

' American Academy of Pediatric Dentistry. Dental Home Resource Center. h^tD://^v^^'^v.aa^>d.org/advocac\'/dentalhome/
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THE MATERNAL, INFANT, AND EARLY CHILDHOOD
HOME VISITING PROGRAM

PERFORMANCE AND SYSTEMS OUTCOME

MEASURES

Public Burden Statement: An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a
collection of information unless it displays a currently valid 0MB control number. The 0MB control number for
this project is 0906-0017. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 200
hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, and completing
and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of
this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to HRSA Reports Clearance Officer,
5600 Fishers Lane, Room 10-29, Rockville, Maryland, 20857.
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MEASURE 1

I.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: PRETERM BIRTH

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of infants (among mothers who enrolled in home visiting prenatally before 37 weeks) who are born prefer
following program enrollment

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of live births (index child or subsequent children among mothers who enrolled in home
visiting prenatally before 37 weeks) born before 37 completed weeks of gestation and after enrollment

DENOMINATOR: Number of live births after enrollment who were born to mothers enrolled in home
visiting prenatally before 37 weeks

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator;

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. All cases

of missing data should be excluded from the
measure calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 2

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: BREASTFEEDING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of infants (among mothers who enrolled in home visiting prenatally) who were breastfed any amount
at 6 months of age

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of infants aged 6-12 months (index child among mothers who enrolled in home
visiting prenatally) who were breastfed any amount at 6 months of age

DENOMINATOR: Number of infants aged 6-12 months (index child among mothers who enrolled in home visiting
prenatally) enrolled in home visiting for at least 6 months

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing fr.om
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. All eases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure

calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 19, 2018
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MEASURES

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: DEPRESSION SCREENING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting who are screened for depression using a validated
tool within 3 months of enrollment (for those not enrolled prcnatally) or within 3 months of delivery (for
those enrolled prcnatally)

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: For those not enrolled prcnatally, number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting
who arc screened for depression within the first 3 months since enrollment; for those enrolled prenatally, the number of
primary caregivers screened for depression within 3 months of delivery

DENOMINATOR: For those not enrolled prenatally, the number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting for at
least 3 months; for those enrolled prcnatally, the number of primary caregivers enrolled in
home visiting for at least three months post delivery

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.bi Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. When

there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, but all other data
elements are known, then the primary caregivcr
should be included in the denominator (if eligible),
but not in the numerator. All cases of missing data
should be excluded from the measure calculation.
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7.

NOTES

8. Measurement Tool LItili/.cd

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is > 10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 4

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: WELL CHILD VISIT

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

■

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting who received the last recommended visit based on the
American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) schedule

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR; Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting who received the last
recommended well child visit based on the AAP schedule

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (Index child) enrolled in home visiting

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Definition

6.b. Value -.Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine Inclusion In the

numerator or denominator are unknown, including
if a home visit occurred but the home visitor did not

collect the data. All cases of missing data should be

excluded from the measure calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 5

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT; POSTPARTUM CARE

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Pcrforninnce Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE
•

Percent of mothers enrolled in home visiting prenntally or within 30 days after delivery who received a postpartum
visit with a healthcare provider within 8 weeks (56 days) of delivery

4.

SPECIFICATION
r

NUMERATOR: Number of mothers enrolled in home visiting prenntally or within 30 days after delivery
who received a postpartum visit with a healthcare provider within 8 weeks (56 days) of delivery -

DENOMINATOR: Number of mothers who enrolled in home visiting prcnatally or within 30 days after
delivery and remained enrolled for at least 8 weeks (56 days) after delivery

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominaior: '

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. All cases of

missing data should be exeluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 19, 2018
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MEASURE 6

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: TOBACCO CESSATION REFERRALS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting who reported using tobacco or cigarettes at
enrollment and were referred to tobacco cessation counseling or services within 3 months of enrollment.

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting who reported using tobacco or cigarettes
enrollment and were referred to tobacco cessation counseling or services within 3 months of enrollment

DENOMINATOR: Number of priniarj' caregivers enrolled in home visiting who reported using tobacco or
cigarettes at enrollment and were enrolled for at least 3 months

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown, including
if there is no documentation of whether the primary
caregiver used tobacco or cigarettes at enrollment
since inclusion in the denominator cannot be

determined if the screening result is unknown. When
there Is no documentation of whether a referral was

provided, but all other data elements are known and
inclusion in the denominator can be determined,
then the primary caregiver should be included in the
denominator (if eligible), but not in the numerator.
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All cases of missing data should be excluded from the
measure calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 7

1.

BENCHMARK'aREA; CHILD INJURIES, ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND MALTREATMENT AND EMERGENCY
DEPARTMENT VISITS

CONSTRUCT: SAFE SLEEP

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of infants enrolled In home visiting that are always placed to sleep on their backs, .without
bed-sharing and without soft bedding

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of infants (index child aged less than 1 year) enrolled In home visiting whose
primary caregiver reports that they are always placed to sleep on their backs, without bed-sharing and without soft
bedding

DENOMINATOR: Number of infants (index child) enrolled in home visiting who were aged less than 1 year during
the reporting period

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURES

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: CHILD INJURIES, ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND MALTREATMENT AND EMERGENCY
DEPARTMENT VISITS

CONSTRUCT; CHILD INJURY

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Rate of injury-related visits to the Emergency Department (ED) during the reporting period among children enrolled in
home visiting

V

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of parent-reported nonfatal injury-related visits to the ED during the reporting period among
children (index ehild) enrolled in home visiting

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (rate) Numerator;

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data arc considered missing if oiie or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note; When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 9

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: CHILD INJURIES, ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND MALTREATMENT AND EMERGENCY
DEPARTMENT VISITS

CONSTRUCT: CHILD MALTREATMENT

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting with at least 1 investigated case of maltreatment following enrollment
within the reporting period

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting with at least 1 investigated case
of maltreatment following enrollment within the reporting period

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 10

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: PARENT-CHILD INTERACTION

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting who receive an observation of caregiver-child interaction by
the home visitor using a validated tool

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primarj' caregivers enrolled in home visiting who receive an observation of caregiver-chil
interaction by the home visitor using a validated tool

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting with children reaching the
target age range

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) . Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. When

there is no documentation of whether the index child

received an observation of caregiver-child
interaction by the home visitor using a validated tool,
but all other data elements are known, then the index
child should be included in the denominator (if
eligible), but not in the numerator. All cases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

•
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7.

NOTES

8. .

Measurement Tool Utilised

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 11

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: EARLY LANGUAGE AND LITERACY ACTIVITIES

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Pcrformnncc Indicntor

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled In honte visiting with a family member who reported that during a typical week
s/he read, told stories, and/or sang songs with their child daily, every day

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting with a family member who
reported that during a typical week s/hc read, told stories, and/or sang songs with their child daily,"every day

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Deflnition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation;

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note: When the percenl of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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Expiration Dale: 07/31/2021

MEASURE 12

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: DEVELOPMENTAL SCREENING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Pcrformnncclndicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting with a timely screen for developmental delays using a validated parent-
completed tool

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting with at least one screening
within the AAP-defined age groups during the reporting period

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting reaching the specified time
frame during the reporting period

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. When

there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, but all other data
elements arc known, then the child should be
included in the denominator (if eligible), but not in
the numerator. All cases of missing data should be
excluded from the measure calculation.

7.

NOTES
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8.
Measurement Tool Utilized

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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Expirotion Date: 07/31^021

MEASURE 13

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: BEHAVIORAL CONCERNS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Pcrrormnncc Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of postnatal home visits where primary carcgivers were asked if they have any concerns regarding their
child's development, behavior, or learning

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of postnatal home visits where primary carcgivers enrolled in home visiting were asked if they
have any concerns regarding their child's development, behavior, or learning

DENOMINATOR: Total number of postnatal home visits during the reporting period

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD {percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. If a home

visit occurred, but there is no documentation of
whether the primary carcgiver was asked about
behavioral concerns, then the home visit should be
included in the denominator (if eligible - i.e.,
postnatal visit), but not in the numerator. All cases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES
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♦Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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Expiralion l)a(c: 07/31/2021

MEASURE 14

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: CRIME OR DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

CONSTRUCT: INTIMATE PARTNER VIOLENCE SCREENING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Pcrformnncc Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting who are screened for intimate partner violence (IPV)
within 6 months of enrollment using a validated tool

4.

SPECIFICATION

•

NUMERATOR: Number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting who arc screened for IPV using a validated tool
within 6 months of enrollment

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting for at least 6 months

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator;

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. When

there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool (including if a
screening did not occur because the carcgiver was
male and they only have validated tools for use
among female caregivers), but all other data
elements arc known, then the primary caregiver
should be included in the denominator (if eligible),
but not in the numerator. All cases of missing data
should be excluded from the measure calculation.
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Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utili/.cd

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 15

!.

BENCHMARK AREA: FAMILY ECONOMIC SELF-SUFFICIENCY

CONSTRUCT: PRIMARY CAREGIVER EDUCATION

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary cnrcglvcrs who enrolled In home visiting without a high school degree or equivalent who subsequently
enrolled in or maintained continuous enrollment in middle school or high school, or completed high school or equivalent
during their participation in home visiting

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary careglvers who enrolled in or maintained continuous enrollment in middle school or
high school, or completed a high school degree or equivalent after enrollment in home visiting (and met the conditions
spccined in the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary careglvers without a high school degree or equivalent at enrollment

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. All eases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing
data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 16

I.

BENCHMARK AREA: FAMILY ECONOMIC SELF-SUFFICIENCY

CONSTRUCT: CONTINUITY OF INSURANCE COVERAGE

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting who had continuous health insurance coverage for at least 6
consecutive months

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primarj' caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting who reported having health
insurance coverage for at least 6 consecutive months since enrollment in home visiting

DENOMINATOR: Number of primar>' caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting for at least 6 months

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the
numerator or denominator are unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 17

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: COORDINATION AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER COMMUNITY RESOURCES AND
SUPPORTS

CONSTRUCT: COMPLETED DEPRESSION REFERRALS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary carcgivers referred to services for a positive screen for depression who receive one or
more service contacts

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary careglvers enrolled in home visiting who received recommended
services for depression (and met the conditions specified in.the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of primar)' carcgivers enrolled in home visiting who had a positive screen for depression
within 3 months of enrollment (for those not enrolled prenatally) or within 3 months of delivery (for those enrolled
prenatally) and were referred for services

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percenlage) Numerator;

Value:

Denoniinator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown, including
if there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, since inclusion in the
denominator cannot be determined if the screening

result is unknown. Data arc also considered missing
if there is no documentation of whether a referral

was provided. All cases of missing data should be
excluded from the measure calculation.
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7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utilized

Indicate the validated measurement too!(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is > 10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 18

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: COORDINATION AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER COMMUNITY RESOURCES AND
SUPPORTS

CONSTRUCT: COMPLETED DEVELOPMENTAL REFERRALS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting with positive screens for developmental delays (measured using
a validated tool) who receive services in a timely manner

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children enrolled in home visiting who a) received individualized developmental support
from a home visitor; b) were referred to early Intervention services and receive an evaluation within
45 days; OR c) were referred to other community scniccs who received services within 30 days (and met the conditior
specified in the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of children enrolled In home visiting with positive screens for developmental
delays (measured using a validated tool)

5-

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percenlage) Numerator:

Value:
1

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown, including
if there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, since inclusion in the
denominator cannot be determined if the screening
result is unknown. When there is no documentation

of whether a referral was provided, but all other
data elements are available and inclusion in the

denominator can be determined, then the primary

carcgiver should be included in the denominator (if
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eligible), but not in the numerator. All cases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utilized

Indicate the validated measurement tooi(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 19

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: COORDINATION AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER COMMUNITY RESOURCES AND
SUPPORTS

CONSTRUCT: INTIMATE PARTNER VIOLENCE REFERRALS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Perforninncc Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary carcglvcrs enrolled in home visiting with positive screens for IPV (measured using a validated tool) who
receive referral information to IPV resources

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting who received referral information
to IPV resources (and met the conditions specified in the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting with positive screens for IPV (measured using a
validated tool) within 6 months of enrollment

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numeraior:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown, including

if there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, since inclusion in the
denominator cannot be determined if the screening
result is unknown. When there is no documentation

of whether a referral was provided, but all other
data elements arc available and inclusion in the

denominator can be determined, then the primary
caregivcr should be included in the denominator (if
eligible), but not in the numerator. All cases of
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missing data should be excluded from the measure
enlculation.

7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utilized

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing
data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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DEFINITIONS OF KEY TERMS
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Construct

Number

Construct Key Term Definitions

1. Preterm Birth Prctcrm Birth: a birth before 37 completed weeks of gestation (defined as up to 36 weeks and
6 days).'

2. Breastfeeding Breastfeeding: in addition to breast milk fed directly from the mother to the infant,
breastfeeding also includes feeding the infant pumped or expressed breast milk.

3. Depression
Screening

Depression: aligned with each grantee's validated depression screening tool's definition of
depression.

4. Well-Child Visit AAP schedule for Well-Child Visits: Updated AAP 2017 Recommendations for Pediatric
Preventive Health Care https://ww\v.aap.6rg/en-us/Docunients/periodicity schedule.pdf

5. Postpartum Care Postpartum Care Visit: A postpartum visit is a visit bet\veen the woman and her health care
provider to assess the mother's current physical health, including the status of pregnancy-related
conditions like gestational diabetes, screen for postpartum depression, provide counseling on
infant care and family planning as well as screening and referrals for the management of
chronic conditions. Additionally, a provider may use this opportunity to conduct a breast exam
and discuss breastfeeding. The American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists
recommends that mothers receive a postpartum care visit within 6 weeks after delivery. ̂

6. Tobacco Cessation

Referrals

Tobacco Use: combustibles (cigarettes, cigars, pipes, hookahs, bidis), non-combustibles (chew,
dip, snuff, snus, and dissolvables), and ENDS.

7. Safe Sleep No definitions required

8. Child Injury Injury-related Emergency Department Visit: Injuries refer to the following causes of
mechanisms of injury: motor vehicle, suffocation, drowning, poisoning, fire/burns, falls, sports
and recreation, and intentional injuries, such as child maltreatment.^

9. Child

Maltreatment

Investigated Case: all children with an allegation of maltreatment that were screened-in for
investigation or assessment and further received an investigation. A screened-in report is one
that is accepted for investigation or assessment based on the state's screen-in criteria. ̂

10. Parent-Child

interaction

No definitions required

11. Early Language
and Literacy
Activities

No definitions required

12. Developmental
Screening

Developmental Delay: delays in any or all areas including cognitive, social, language, sensory.

^ Bchrman R, Stith Butler A. cds. Prctcrm Birth: Causes, Consequences, and Prevention. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press, 2007.
^ Optimizing postpartum care. Committee Opinion No. 666. American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists. Obstet Gynccol 20I6;127:el87-92. Retrieved from https://%s'ww,acog.org/-
/media/Committee-Opinions/Commiltee-onrObstctric-Practicc/co666-pdf7dmc=l&ts=20l8022ITI42i45230l
' Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. National Action Plan for Child Injurv- Prevention. 2012. Retrieved from http://\v\v\v.cdc.gov/safechild/NAP/background.htmlrrunint
' Child Welfare Information Gateway. Child Maltreatment 2015: Summary of Key Findings. Retrieved from httDs://^v^^^^v.child\vc^fare.eov/nubs/fact■shccts/canslats/
' Child Welfare Information Gateway. Screening and Intake. Retrieved from h[tn.s://\vv.%v.childwclfare.cov/tQDics/icSDOnding/iia/scrcening/
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and emotional development.®

13. Behavioral

Concerns

No definitions required

14. IPV Screening Intimate Partner Violence: physical violence, sexual violence, stalking and psychological
aggression (including coercive acts) by a current or former intimate partner. An intimate partner
is a person with whom one has a close personal relationship that can be characterized by the
following: emotional connectedness, regular contact, ongoing physical contact and sexual
behavior, identity as a couple, familiarity and knowledge about each other's lives.

15. Primary Caregiver
Education

No definitions required

16. Continuity of
Insurance

Coverage

Continuous Health Insurance Coverage: having health insurance coverage without any
lapses.

17. Completed
Depression
Referrals

Recommended services: specific techniques and intervention models delivered in the context
of client characteristics, culture, and preferences that have shown to have positive effects on
outcomes through rigorous evaluations and have demonstrated to achieve positive outcomes for
the client:^

18. Completed
Developmental
Referrals

Developmental Delay: delays in any or all areas including cognitive, social, language, sensory,
and emotional development.®

19. IPV Referrals Intimate Partner Violence: physical violence, sexual violence, stalking and psychological
aggression (including coercive acts) by a current or former intimate partner. An intimate partner
is a person with whom one has a close personal relationship that can be characterized by the
following: emotional connectedness, regular contact, ongoing physical contact and sexual
behavior, identity as a couple, familiarity and knowledge about each other's lives. '

* U.S. National Library of Medicine, National Institutes of Health. Ps>chological lnde.-< Terms via Unified Medical Language System, 2015. Retrieved from
httn:A'ghr.nlm.nih.BOv/glos.':ar%'*'devc]onmcntnldclav

' Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. lnjur\' Prevention and Control: Division of Violence Prevention, 2015. Retrieved from
htlD://mvw.cdc.eov/violcnccnrcvcntiorL/intimatcpartncrviolcncc/dcflnitions.html

* Home Visiting Collaborative Improvement and Innovation Network.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Attachment 5 - DOYF Key Performance Metrics

Key Performance Metrics

Referrals

Share of families who are referred to HFA from DCYF.

(# of families currently enrolled in HFA CWP and % of HFA CWP slots currently used)
Share of DCYF-referred families that were enrolled between three (3) and twenty-four
(24) months of age.

Share of DCYF-referred families with a recent assessment of a Substance Exposed
Infant (SEI).

Enrollments

Average time to enrollment from the time and date of referral.
# of days from referral date to the first home visit.
Share of families that are offered HFA and % of offered families who decide to receive
HFA.

Relative rate of families enrolled by racial/ethnic and geographic characteristics.
Proportion of families that are retained in the program over specified periods of time
(6 months, 12 months, 24 months. 36 months, etc.) after receiving a first home visit.
Proportion of families who receive at least seventy-five (75%) percent of the
appropriate number of home visits based upon the individual level of service to which
they are assigned. "

Program Completion

Share of families who do not complete the program (incl. reason for non-
completion/discharge).
Share of families that discharged who completed a minimum of specified periods of
service. (3 months, 6 months, 12 months, 18 months, 24 months, 30 months, 36
months).
Proportion of families who complete program by racial/ethnic and geographic
characteristics.

Short-term Outcomes

Share of families with a new case opened to DCYF, or a new report of maltreatment,
within six months after discharge.
Share of children who enter out-of-home placement within six months after discharge
(incl. breakdown of placement type).
Share of children who enter any form of out-of-home placement within 12 months of
discharge.
Differences in outcomes outlined above (i.e., prevention of out of home removal,
decreases in risk/needs) by racial/ethnic and geographic characteristics.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 76% Federal funds from:

1.1.1. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant
Program, as awarded on September 7, 2021. by the DHHS
Health Resources and Services Administration. CFDA 93.870.
FAIN X10MC43595.

1.1.2. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant
Program, as awarded on September 2, 2022, by the DHHS
Health Resources and Services Administration, CFDA 93.870,
FAINX10MC46878.

1.1.3. American Rescue Plan Act Funding for Home Visiting, as
awarded on April 30, 2021, by the DHHS Health Resources and
Services Administration, CFDA 93.870, FAIN X11MC41935.

1.1.4. American Rescue Plan Act Funding for Home Visiting, as
awarded on October 28. 2021, by the DHHS Health Resources
and Services Administration. CFDA 93.870, FAIN
X11MC45263.

1.1.5. Administration of Children Youth & Families (ACF), as awarded
on October 1, 2022, CFDA 93.658, FAIN 2201NHFOST.

1.2. 24% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

4. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be. due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

5. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

,  OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

6. Audits

6.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act(2)dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

6.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

6.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1.000,000 or more.

6.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

6.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act(S)dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's
fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

6.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

6.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after
the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

6.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception. • <

A. Payment Terms Respective to Traditional Home Visiting Services for the
Division of Public Health Services (DPHS):

7. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and. shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through C-6,
Budget.

8. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation-to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following

— DS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice;

8.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

8.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

8.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

8.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

8.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

8.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to DPHSContractBilling(2)dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

B. Payment Terms Respective to Child Welfare Protocols for the Division for
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) for direct services:

9. Payment shall be for services provided in fulfillment of this Agreement, as
specified in Exhibit B. Scope of Work Section 3.4, and in accordance with the
following:

9.1. Weekly Rate: For the purposes of this Agreement, a weekly rate shall be
paid in the amount of $148.95 per client (family) once per week.

9.2. Payment shall be made on a monthly basis and follow a process
determined by the Department, as indicated in Section 10.1, below.

9.3. The Contractor cannot exceed the maximum allotment for weekly rate
expenditure by Fiscal Year, which is as follows:

State Fiscal Year Amount

SFY 2023 $12,184

SFY 2024 $49,873

SFY 2025 $38,925

Sub-Total $100,962

RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

TLC Family Resource Center
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services ,
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

9.4. The Contractor shall submit non-clinical expenses via the Website:
httDs://business.nh.aov/beb/PaQes/lndex.asDx.

9.5. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services,
in compliance with funding requirements.

0. Payment Terms Respective to Child Welfare Protocols for the Division for
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) for administrative services;

10. The Contractor'shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice
is completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.

10.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance
with the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-7, Budget and
Exhibit C-8, Budget. The Maximum allotment for contract expenditures
by Fiscal Year is as follows:

State Fiscal Year Amount

2023 $26,761

2024 $105,827

2025 $0*

Sub-Total $132,588

*The Contractor wi

services in SFY 25

(only bill for direct

10.2. In lieu of hard invoice copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic
signature and emailed to DCYFInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may
be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord', NH 03301

10.3. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services,
in compliance with funding requirements.

RFP.2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

TLC Family Resource Center
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Exhibit C-1 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name; TLC Family Resource Center

Budget Request for: Home Visiting Services ■ DPHS - Home Visiting Formula Grant
BudgeX Period SFY 2023 (Aprill, 2023-June 30,2023)

Inriirect Cn5(t Rate (H applicable) 10.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Waaes $29,663

2. Fringe Benefits $5,973

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $248

S.fal SuDoiies • Educational $1,800

S.fbl SuDOlies - Lab $0

S.fcl SuDolies • Pharmacy $0

S.fdl Suoolies - Medical $0

5.(e) Suoolies Office $25

6. Travel $275

7. Software $660

8. (a) Other - Marketinq/ Communications $27

8. (bl Other • Education and Trainina $360

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Telephone $315

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecioieni Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $39,545

Total Indirect Costs $3,954.51

TOTAL $43,500

r-DS
ss

Page 1 of 3 Date
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Exhibit C-2 Budget Sheet RFP.2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Cor\\rac\OT Name-. TLC Family Resource Center

Budget Request for: Home Visiling Services • DPHS - Home Visiting Formula Grant

Budget Period SFY2024 (July 1. 2023 ■ June 30. 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 10.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Waaes

$123,043

2. Fringe Benefits
$24,609

3. Consultanis $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $321

5.(a) SuDoiies • Educational $1,025

5.(bi SuDOties - Lab •  $0

S.fci SuDDlies • Pharmacy $0

5.(di SuDOlies - f*^edical $0

5.(e) SuDolies Office $130

6. Travel $1,192

7. Software $2,400

8. (a) Other - Marketino/ Communications
$301

8. (b) Other - Education and Trainina $1,500

8. (c) Other • Other (soecify l>elow)

Telephone $1,261

HFA Affiliation Fee $925

HFA Accreditation Fee
$1,475

$0

9. Sutxecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $158,182

Total Indirect Costs $15,818

TOTAL $174,000

r-DS
ss

Page 2 of 3 Date
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Exhibit C-3 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name; TLC Family Resource Center

Budget Request for: Home Visiling Services - DPHS • Home Visiling Formula Grant
Budget Period SFY 2025 (July 1. 2024 ■ Seplember 30, 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 10.00%

Line Item '  Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages

$30,441

2. Fringe Benefits $6,088

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Apnenriix IV to 2 CFR 200. $50

S.fat SuDOlies - Educational $0

S.fbl SuDolies - Lab $0

5.(c) Suc»lies • Pharmacy $0

S.fdt SuDrties - Medical $0

S.fel SuDolies Office $0

6. Travel $275

7, Software $150

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications $25

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $25

8. (c) Other • Other (soecifv t>elow)

Telephone $91

HFA Afliliation Fee $925

HFA Accreditation Fee
$1,475

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $39,545

Total Indirect Costs $3,955

TOTAL $43,500

Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit C-4 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: TtC Family Resource Center

Budget Request for: Home Visiting Services - DPHS ■ ARP - MIEC HOME VISITING

Budget Period SFY2023 (April 1, 2023 - June 30. 2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.00%

Line Item. Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Waaes $0
•

2. Frinoe Benefits $0

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.fal Supplies - Educational $531

5,(bl Supplies • Lab SO

S.fct Supplies • Pharmacv $0

S.fdl Supplies - Medical $0

S.fel Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other • Marketinq/ Communications
$0

8. (b) Other • Education and Traininq $700

8. (cl Other - Other (specify below)

Emeroencv Supplies lor Families $300

Stall Costs • $250

TechnoloQV $200

Pre-Paid Grocery Cards $250

9. Subrecif^ent Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $2,231

Total Indirect Costs $223

TOTAL $2,454

$2,454

fss
Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C-5 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
•  Comp/c(e one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: TLC Family Resource Center

Budget Request for: Home Visiting Services - DPHS - ARP • h^lEC HOME VISITING

Budget Period SFY 2024 (July 1. 2023 • June 30, 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 10.00%

Line Item. Program Cost ■ Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Waqes $0

2. Frinoe Benefils SO

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
indirect cost rale cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.fa) SuDolies • Educational $2,000

S.tbl SuDDlies - Lab SO

5.(c) SuDolies • Pharmacv SO

S.fdl Supplies - Medical SO

S.fel Supplies Office so

6. Travel so

7. Software so

8. (a) Other • Markelinq/ Communications
so

8. (b) Other • Education and Traininq $700

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Specific Emeraencv Assistance $550

Other (please specify) $2,174

Other (ptease specilv) $500

Other (ptease specify) $3,000

9. Subrecipient Contracts SO

Total Direct Costs $8,924

Total Indirect Costs $892

TOTAL $9,816

Page 2 of 3
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Exhibit C-6 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form tor each budget period.

Contractor Name: TLC Family Resource Center

Budget Request for: Home Visiting Services • DPHS -ARP ■ MIEC HOME VISITING

Budget Period SPY2025 (July 1, 2024 - September 30. 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.00%

Line Item.' Program Cost - Funded by. DHHS

1, Salarv 8 Waaes $0

2. Fringe Benefits $0

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.fal Supplies - Educational $531

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacv SO

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office SO

6. Travel SO

7. Software SO

8. (a) Other • Marftetinq/ Communications
$0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $700

8. (c) Other • Other (specify ttelow)

Specilic Emeroency Assistance $300

Staff Costs $250

Other (please specify) $200

Other (please specify) $250

9. Subreciwent Contracts $0
,

Total Direct Costs $2,231

Total Indirect Costs $223

TOTAL $2,454

Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit C-7 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form tor each budget period.

Contractor Name: TLC Family Resource Center

Budget Request for: Home Visiting Services • DCYF

Budget Period SFY 2023 (April 1 ■ June 30, 2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 10.00%

Line Item- Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Waaes

$19,092

2. Fringe Benefits
$3,818

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.fa) Supplies - Educational $650

S.fbl SupDlies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy $0

5.(d1 Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e1 SuDolies Office $75

6. Travel $291

7. .Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$44

8. (bl Other • Education and Training $100

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)

Teleotione $158

Emeroencv Suoolies for Families $100

Ottier (please specifv) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

,

Total Direct Costs $24,328

Total Indirect Costs $2,433

TOTAL $26,761

Page 1 of 2
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Exhibit C-8 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form tor each budget period.

Contractor Name: TLC Family Resource Center

Budget Request for; Home Visiting Services - DCYF

Budget Period SFY2024 (July 1 ■ June 30,2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salarv&Waqes

$78,660

-

2. Frlnoe Benefits
$15,732

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.fal Suoolies - Educational $100

S.fbl Suoolies • Lab $0

S.tc) Suoolies - Pharmacy $0

5.fd) Suoolies • Medical $0

S.fei Suoolies Office $50

6. Travel $214

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other • Marketinq/ Communications
$150

8. (bl Other - Education and Traininq $200

8. (c) Other • Other (soecifv below)

Telephone $300

Emeroencv Supplies lor Families $800

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecioient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $96,206

Total Indirect Costs $9,621

TOTAL $105,827

Contractor Initials

Page 2 of 2 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
■workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring'in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a crirninal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice; including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Fed^aJ^agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a centrai point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shaii inciude the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 caiendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any empioyee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an empioyee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such empioyee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1,1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance {street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name;tlc Family Resource center

DoeoSlgned by;

2/28/2023

Date ^ Name-^^Wme slayton
Executive Director

ss
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care DevWopment Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, {Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers {including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: tlc Family Resource center

DocuSigned by;

2/28/2023 I SftfLuAJU
Dili WW»nie Slayton

Executive Director-

>  OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system o^^cords
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

■ss
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by. a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: tlc Family Resource Center

•OocuSlgnod by:

2/28/2023

^uocudignea t>y:

SflAAUiL. SWdlA.
WmWnie SI aDate e si ayton

Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the follov/ing
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity: Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA)for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

-DS
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: tlc Family Resource Center

—DoeuSlgnad by:

2/28/2023

Di^i Slayton
Title:

Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: TLC Family Resource Center

—OocuSign«d by:

SftflwOUL2/28/2023

Date Narrief^^^epltahie Slayton
Title. Executive Director
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the.Health Insurance Portability and Accountability. Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated'Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aoareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and.Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ss
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"Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

n. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

I. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

). "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

). Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

II. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busies

I  0 u
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e.

(3)

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include; but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assgpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivihg^JHI
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g-

h.

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI.. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the '
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thpscps
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business SS
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. .

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation

of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section.
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reaulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered-
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data OwnershiD. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be rssofved

3/2014
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

JfheoSlatei by:

■■a*6ro3er6oro«co..

TLC Family Resource Center

Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative

Patricia M. Tilley
J
Name of Authorized Representative
Di rector

jritle of Authorized Representative
2/28/2023

Date

'  I nfasMteagiuA? ;
Signature of Authorized Representative

Stephanie Slayton

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative

2/28/2023

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
-ederal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or.after October 1, 2010, to report on
jjata related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
|ln accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) nriust report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
|l. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
|4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
j5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
|7. Location of the entity
jB. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

jfhe Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
jthe below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
pepartment of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: tlc Family Resource Center

OocuSigned by:

2/28/2023

Date' slayton

Title: executive Director

CU/OHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  . Q7GVMGCBKWT4
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executivesin your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:.

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount; •

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:,^

Amount: _

Amount:.

CU/DHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding'
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and ■
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed' in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K

DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 1 of 9

SS
Contractor Initials

Date
2/28/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID; 64B^D69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the: data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health,Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is .accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to alf-its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

.Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K

DHHS information

Security Requirements
Page 2 of 9

SS
Contractor Initials _

Date

2/28/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

V5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

ss
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End,User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K

DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 4 of 9

SS
Contractor Initials

Date

2/28/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems {or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or-disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The -Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for jts End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of' the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that' defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those forthe Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and corhply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized,

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its-request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and.vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions, of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

c.

d.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable .data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an-area that is

physically and technologically secure "from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user liame and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further .handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306.- In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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VI.

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Stale of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TLC FAMILY RESOURCE

CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transaet business in New I lampshire on January 14, 2004. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofllcc have been received and is in good standing as

far

Bu

as this ofUcc is concerned.

>incss ID; 461338

Certificate Number: 0005822002

%

Ok

O

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afll.vcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of July A.D. 2022.

David M. Seanlan

Secretary of State
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I. Mariah Davis

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of TLC Family Resource Center
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on July 27 , 20 22 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting

(Date)

VOTED: That Stephanie Slavton. Executive Director
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of TLC Family Resource Center
the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

(may list more than one person)

to enter into contracts or agreements with

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thlrty|(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
ail such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 02-27-2023 lYicutoaL bturU.
Signature of Elected Officer
Name:

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOAYYY)

02/28/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERjS), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement{s).

PRODUCER 1
The Hilb Group New England, LLC

contact Jennifer Ruffin

phone pa* ,
lAfC No PKtV (A«:, No):

PO Box 606

Keene NH 03431

InnRFssr jruffin@hilbgroup.com
INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICH

insurera
Philadelphia indemnity Insurance Co 18058

INSURED

TLC Family Resource Center

P.O. Box 1098

Claremont NH 03743

INSURERS

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL227819256 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. InOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR 1  TYPE OF INSURANCE '

ADOL
INSD

SUBR
WVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
/MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

A

X COM!AERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

:laims-made I X| occur

PHPK2415065 07/01/2022 07/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
j 2,000,000

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Fa occurrence)

j 100,000

MEO EXP (Any one person)
j 5,000

1 PERSONAL S AOV INJURY
5 2,000,000

GEh•L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY CH dl LOC
•OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE
J 4,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO
5 4,000,000

Employee Beneft LiabPA $ 1,000,000 •

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

PHPK2415065 07/01/2022 07/01/2023

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Fa accident)

$

X

. 1
ANYAUTO BODILY INJURY (Par person) s 1,000,000

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X

X

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

s

Underinsured motorist Bi S 1,000,000

UMBRELLA LIAB

1
EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

eac'hoccurrence s

AGGREGATE' s

DEO RETENTION S $

WORKERSlCOMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANY PROPRIETORrt'ARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICERAAEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandilory] In NH)
II yet, des^be under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belwr

N/A

PER OTH-
RTATUTE ER

E.L EACHACCIOENT s

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s

A

DESCRIPTION 0

Professional L

aggregate.

OPERATIONS/locations/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltionel Remerlo Schedule, may be itiached If moreepace Is required)

ability Coverage is included in the Commercial Package Policy with limits of $2,000,000 each professional incident and $4,000,000

NH Dept of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857

•

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rosorvcd.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



/iCORC? CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATE(MM/DDATYY)

07/07/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(IC8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROG'aTION is waived, subject to tho terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to tho certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

pROoucER 1
E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

contact pairiey Kenneally

(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188

AnmiFsS' faiTleySesinsurance-net
PC Box7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICa

INSURER A Markel Insurance 37184F

INSURED

TLC Family Resource Center

P 0 Box 1098

Claremonl NH 03743

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL227714964 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. I NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

5DBR

msLTYPE OF INSURANCE
TTDDT

MSQ. POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMM/DO/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MMIODflfYYY)

INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

^CLAIMS-MADE n OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

PAMAegTQREMTEft
PREMISES (E« oecurraoce)

MEO EXP (Af»y ooe pyton)

PERSONAL A ADV INJURY

GEWL AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY nn JE^ Ci] LOC
GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPA:tf>AGG

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

I
ANYAUTO

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
{E« >cdd«n»

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY {Per perton)

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OVWED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par accMeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par accidant)

UMBRELLA LIAB

I
EXCESS LIAB

OEOl

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROFWIETORfl^RTNER/EXECUTIVE
0FFICERAIEM8ER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH]
It ya*. das^ba under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belwr

STATUTE
OTH
ER

WC0093557-14 07/01/2022 07/01/2023
E.L EACH ACCIDENT

100.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
100.000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarka Sct>adula. may l>a attaclwd If mora spaca i» raqulrad)

Slate of NH Dept of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

I

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rosorvod.

Tho ACORD namo and logo arc registered marks of ACORD
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RESOURCE
CENTER

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of TLC Family Resource Center (TLC) is to promote the optimal health
and development of children and families in our region of New Hampshire.
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of

TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.
Claremont, New Hampshire

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TLC Family Resource Center, Inc. (a nonprofit
corporation, the "Center"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets, Rinctional expenses and cash fiows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TLC Family Resource Center, Inc. as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

Wc conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibility
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Center and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. Wc believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Center's ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

IBPO
ALLIANCE USA

118 TILLEY DRIVE, SUITE 202, SOUTH BURLINGTON, VERMONT 0S403

PHONE 802.658.1808 fax 802.658.1779 web VVWW.CPAVT.COM
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Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a lest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Center's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Center's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We arc required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Center's 2021 financial statements and we expressed an unmodified
opinion on them in our report dated November 9, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

(A

January 27,2023
South Burlington, Vermont
VT Reg. No. 92-349
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2022

(With Summari7xd Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2021)

As of

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Security deposit

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

Liatiilities and net assets

Liabilities:

ALcnied expenses
Alccounts payable
Aldvances refundable
Bank loan payable

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions
I

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Totals

(Summarized)

$  621,834 $  84,910 $ - ■ 706,744 $  745,305

164,855 - 164,855 129,646

12,289 190,21 1 202,500 133,440

3,304 - 3,304

1,350

473.968 473.968 505.336

$  1,276,250 $  - 275,121 S 1,551,371 $  1,515,077

$  82,041 $  " $ 82,041 $  62,729

16,697 - 16,697 141,479

91.444

-

91.444

35,561

100,000

190,182 . 190,182 339,769

1,086,068

275,121

1,086,068

275,121

966,545

208,763

1,086,068 275,121 1,361,189 1,175,308

S  1,276,250 $  275,121 $ 1,551,371 S  1,515,077

See accompanying notes to financial statements

3
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.

Slatemcnl of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2021)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Year Ended

June 30, 2021

Support and revenue

Governmental support

Program fees

Foundations and trusts

Contributions

Interest income

In-kind contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

Total support and revenue

Expenses

Program services

Family Support

Recovery Programs

Youth Programs

Fundraising

Management and general

Total expenses

Change In net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Without Donor With Donor Totals

Restrictions Restrictions Total (Summarized)

$  637,684 $  - $ 637,684 $  1,058,616

695,684 - 695,684 427,826

128,352 435,985 564,337 374,779

80,240 4,407 84,647 94,416

301 - 301 471

6,600 6,600 4,730

374,034 (374,034) - -

1,922,895 66,358 1,989,253 1,960,838

921,085 921,085 782,985

451,726 - 451,726 305,299

98,685 ' 98,685 81.520

1,471,496 - 1,471,496 1,169,804

78,420 -
78,420 42,331

253,456 • 253,456 218,290

1,803,372 ,  1,803,372 1,430,425

1 19,523 66,358 185,881 530,413

966,545 208,763 1,175,308 644,895

S  1,086,068 $  275,121 $ 1,361,189 $  1,175,308

See accompanying notes to financial statements
4



OocuSign Envelope ID; 64BEAD69-189B-4EA8-B0F1-179FF130615D

TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.

Siaicmcnt of Funciional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2021)

Advertising and marketing

Computer and technology expenses

Conlmet sciA'ices

Depreciation

Direct assistance

Employee benefits

Equipment rental and maintenance

In-kind materials

Insurance

interest

Loss oh disposal of assets

Mileage reimbursement

Occupancy

Operating supplies and expenses

Payroll taxes

Postage

Printing

Professional fees

Salaries and wages

Telephone

Thefi loss

Training and development

Vehicle expense

Year Ended June 30, 2022 Year Ended

Procraim Services June 30, 2021

Family Recovery Youth Total Program Management Fund- Total Totals

Support Programs Programs Services and General raising Expenses (Summarized)

S 21,21 1 $  15,145 S  6,133 S 42,489 S  1,914 S 4,307 S  48,710 S  52,675

39,856 15,933 4,004 59,793 442 2,198 62,433 41,330

3,093 14,090 65 17,248 25 ■ 17,273 13,369

15,275 8,027 1,603 24,905 5,094 1,369 31,368 12,557

80,523 1,126 5! 81,700 - - 81,700 42,710

40,349 19,186 3,967 63,502 14,817 3,934 82,253 35,648

2,929 906 188 4,023 353 158 4,534 2,963

4,900 100 600 5,600 1,000 - 6,600 4,730

3,928 1,941 359 6,228 34 327 6,589 11,577

- - - • 3,170 - 3,170 -

- • - - - - - 7,668

1,895 3,993 214 6.102 - • 6,102 6,448

40.304 21,182 4,232 65,718 2,632 3,353 71,703 63,754

18,098 13,595 6,352 38,045 19,535 5,123 62,703 49,260

43,907 20,214 4,171 68,292 14,022 4,330 86,644 69,770

803 249 307 1,359 349 327 2,035 1,334

4,734 1,828 873 7.435 344 810 8,589 2,476

1 1,619 5,487 1,167 18,273 262 991 19,526 39,972

565,101 296,955 59,321 921,377 188,944 50,665 1,160,986 923,223

15,679 9,018 1,500 26,197 - 528 26,725 13,256

- ■ - - - - - 22,765

6,881 2,751 2,659 12.291 519 - 12,810 12,627

- - 919 919 . . 919 313

S 921,085 $ 451,726 S  98,685 S 1,471,496 S  253,456 S 78,420 S 1,803,372 S  1,430,425

Sec accompanying notes to financial statements

5
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.

Slatemenl of Cash Flows

For ihe Year EndedJune 30, 2022

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2021)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Year Ended

June 30, 2021

Totals

(Siimmarizedl

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Paycheck Protection Loan forgiveness

Loss on disposal of assets

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in grants receivable

Increase in prepaid expenses

Decrease in security deposits

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase in accrued expenses

Increase (decrease) in advances refundable

Decrease in fiscal sponsor funds

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows used by Investing activities

Equipment and leasehold improvement additions

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal payments on bank loan

Proceeds from bank loan

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest paid

1 19,523 $

31,368

66,358 $ 185,881 $

31,368

See accompanying notes to financial statements
6

530,413

12,557

(231,500)

- - -
7,668

(35,209) - (35,209) 39,805

(12,289) (56,771) (69,060)' 15,728

(3,304) -
(3,304)

1,350 - 1,350 -

(124,782) - (124,782) 129,909

19,312 - 19,312 13,862

(35,561) - (35,561) 35,561

. - - (6,271)

(39,592) 9,587 (30,005) 547,732

(490,268)

(8,556) , (8,556)

. - - 100,000

(8,556) _ (8,556) 100,000

(48,148) 9,587 (38,561| 157,464

669.982 75,323 745,305 587,841

s 621,834 $ 84,910 $ 706,744 S 745,305

$ 3,170 $ -  $' 3,170 $
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

[TLC Family Resource Center, Inc., (the "Center") is a non-profit organization established in 2004 for the
purpose of promoting the physical and emotional health and safety of women and families expecting
infants or with young children, in 2012, services wore expanded to include youth programming for teens,
and in 2018, Recovery Support services were added. The Center serves individuals in New Hampshire's
iSullivan and lower Grafton counties. Approximately 54% of the Center's revenue and support comes from
jgovernmcntal financial assistance, 22% from program services, and 24% from contributions.

(a) Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting under
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recorded as earned and expenses arc recorded at the lime liabilities are incurred.

(b) Basis of Presentation'

The Center reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two
classes of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions, which represent resources restricted by
donors as to purpose or by the passage of time; and net assets without donor restrictions, which
represent the expendable resources that are available for operations at management's discretion.

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

(d) ProDCrtv and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donations of property and equipment arc recorded at
their estimated fair value. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the assets'
estimated useful lives. Additions and betterments with a value in excess of $2,500 and with a useful

life greater than one year arc capitalized, and expenditures for repairs and maintenance are
expensed when incurred. Upon sale or retirement, the costs and related accumulated depreciation
are eliminated from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is included in income.

(e) Accrued Compensated Absences

The Center provides each eligible employee with vacation time, which is accumulated on a pro-rata
basis as actual hours arc worked. Compensated absences accrue when amounts can be reasonably
estimated and payment of compensation is probable.
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all certificates of deposits and highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. The Center maintains cash and cash
equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The
Center has not experienced any losses with these accounts. Management believes the Center is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash.

(g) Comparative Data

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but
not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with U.S. GAA.P. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Center's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 from which the
summarized infonnation was derived

(h) Revenue Recognition

The Center's fees for programs and services provided arc recognized when earned, which is within
the time period covered by the services or program. The Center records contributions as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions support depending on the existence or nature of donor
restrictions. The Center reports gifts and grants of cash or other assets as restricted support if they

',arc received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is when a stipulated restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
net assets with donor restrictions are rcclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributions of non-cash assets arc recorded at their fair values in the period received.
Contributions of services that create or enhance non-financial assets or that require specialized
skills, which arc provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at their fair values in the period received.
Donated investments arc also reported at fair value at the date-of receipt, which is then treated as
the Center's cost basis.

(i) Functional Expenses

The costs of providing programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statements of activities and changes in net assets and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is
consistently applied. Most expenses are allocated on the basis of estimates of average time and
effort. Certain prior year amounts have been rcclassified for consistency with the current period
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the reported changes in net assets.
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(j) Receivables

Receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect. The Center provides for
probably uncollectible amounts through an allowance for accounts receivable based on its
assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Management has not recorded an allowance
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 as management believes all amounts are deemed collectible.

(k) Income Taxes

The Center is a not-for-profit organization as described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and is exempt from federal income taxes on income related to the fulfillment of the
Center's mission. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

The Center annually files an Internal Revenue Service Forni 990, Return of Organization Exempt
From Income Tax, tax return in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction. The Center is no longer subject to
U.S. Federal income tax examination by tax authorities for the years prior to June 30, 2019. In the
normal course of business, the Center is subject to examination by various taxing authorities.
Although the outcome of lax audits is always uncertain, the management of the Center believes that
there arc no significant unrecognized lax liabilities at June 30, 2022.

(1) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

It is the policy of management to review the outstanding receivables at year end, as well as the bad
debt write offs experienced in the past, and establish an allowance for doubtful accounts for
uncollectible amounts. Based on management's estimates, no amounts have been recorded as an
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

(m) Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In Febniary 2016, the FASH issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires lessees to
recognize leases on-balance sheet and disclose key infonnation about leasing arrangements. The
new standard establishes a right of use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to recognize a ROU
asset and lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with a term longer than 12 months.
Leases will be classified as finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern and
classification of expense recognition in the income statement. The new standard is effective for the
Centeron July 1,2022.

(n) Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 27, 2023, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

2. Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measuremenls and Disclosures, the Center is
required to disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. As of June 30, 2022
and 2021, the Center had no financial instruments subject to the disclosure requirements. Cash and
cash equivalents, grants and accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and advances
refundable are reported in the statements of financial position approximate fair values because of the
short maturities of those instruments or because of the fixed rate of interest required to be paid.

3. Concentration of Support

The Center receives a significant portion of its support from federal and state programs. A significant
reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Center's ability
to continue its program and activities.

4. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available to support a future period or a specific activity not yet
completed by the Center. Net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consisted of:

2022 2021

Couch Family Foundation $ - $  77,241

New program support -
24,274

Direct family support 2,788 -

Miss Kendra 10,000 -

New Hampshire Charitable Foundation 190,21 1 40,000

Rural outright program 23,258 16,545

Donley Foundation 20,000 20,000

Rocking Chair Project 28,864 30,703

Totals S 275,121 $  208,763

5. Retirement Plan

Effective January 1, 2019, the Center established a Simple IRA Retirement Plan for which all
employees are eligible to participate in the Plan. Under the Plan, the Center provides a contribution
equal to 2% of the employee's compensation. Employees are eligible to participate in the Plan on the
next entry date following the date of their employment. Total retirement plan expense was $19,764
and $ 16,429 for the years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

10
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

6. Commitments and Contingencies

The Center receives funds under various state and federal programs. Under the terms of these
programs, the Center is required to expend the funds within the designated period for purposes
specified in the grant proposal. If expenditures of the funds arc found not in compliance with the
proposal, the Center may be required to return those funds to the grantor. The amount, if any, of
expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be determined at this lime,
although the Center expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

7. Liauiditv and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting
their use, within one year of the financial position date, comprise the following;

2022 202

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts and grants receivable

S 621,834 $ 669,982

177,144 129,646

$ 798,978 $ 799,628

The Center regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. The Center has
various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents, and various
receivables.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Center operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general
expenditures. The Center strives to maintain liquid cash reserves sufficient to cover 90 days of
general expenditures. General expenditures include administrative, fundraising and operating
expenses.

The Center receives the majority of its funding from grants and contributions which arc available to
meet annual cash needs for general expenditures. Some funding sources are restricted to specific
programs, and are used in accordance with the associated purpose restrictions.
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30:

Useful Life

(Years) 2022 2021

2-5

7

39

Office equipment «fe software

Office furniture

Leasehold improvements

Total property and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

$  72,754

71,002

413,834

557,590

.  (83,622)

$ 473,968

$  72,754

71,002

413,834

557,590

(52,254)

$ 505,336

Depreciation expense totaled $31,368 and $12,557 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

9. Operating Lease Arrangements

On August 16, 2020, the Center entered into a leasing arrangement for office space and gave written
notice to terminate the existing office space lease as of November 30, 2020. The lease is a ten year
lease with the option to renew at the end of the term with monthly rental payments of $3,788, for an
annual lease commitment of $45,465. Per the lease agreement, monthly rent was increased in May
2022 by 4% for monthly rental payments of $4,819 and annual lease commitment of $57,830.

Facility lease payments for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled $49,876 and $41,835,
respectively.

The Center entered into a leasing arrangement for a client database management program and related
support in January 2019 at a cost of $ 11,962 per year for seven years. Total lease payments for. the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled $1 1,962 and $11,962, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal 2023 !i  75,964

Fiscal 2024 74,708

Fiscal 2025 75,345

Fiscal 2026 65,919

Fiscal 2027 68,556

Thereafter 215,m

Total !i 635,819

12
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TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

10. Advances Refundable

The Center receives advance payments on various service contracts which are recorded as revenue
without restrictions when received. The unexpended portion of the advance payments as of the end of
the Center's fiscal year are reported as advances refundable, a liability on the statement of financial
position, and subsequently recognized as revenue in the following fiscal year when earned. As of June
30, 2022 and 2021, advances refundable totaled $0 and $35,561, respectively.

1 1. Bank Loan Pavablc

in August 2020, the Center entered into a line of credit agreement with a local bank in the amount of
$100,000 with a terni of ten and a half years maturing on February 14, 2031. For the first five and a
half years the interest rate is 3.25% with a monthly payment of principal and interest of S977, for the
remaining five years the interest rate will be the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (currently 3.25%)
with a monthly payment of principal and interest of $977. The Center drew down the $100,000 line of
credit on June 9, 2021, with monthly payments commencing on July 9, 2021.

Maturities by year arc as follows:

Fiscal 2023

Fiscal 2024

Fiscal 2025

Fiscal 2026

Fiscal 2027

Thereafter

$  8,887

9,180

9,483

9,796

10,120

43.978

Totals $ 91,444

In April 2020, the Center received a loan of $231,500 under the Paycheck Protection Program issued
by the Small Business Administration. The loan was forgiven by the Small Business Administration
on April 1, 2021, and accordingly, the Center has recognized the loan forgiveness on the
accompanying 2021 statement of activities and changes in net assets as governmental support.

12. Related Partv Transactions

The Treasurer of the Board of Directors is branch manager at the bank which holds the Center's note
payable and other cash accounts owned by the Center. Management believes these are arm's length
transactions.

13
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Nicoi^ MSWj LICSVJ

■ »!W ̂

Objective

Qualincations

so

To work in a therapeutic setting providing support, advocacy, crisis intervention, and comniunity
outreach for at risk individuals, children and families.

Excellent with children with special needs, specifically Autism and Pervasive Developmental
Disorders

Solid background working with children and families
EITective verbal and written communication skills
Excellent computer and analytical skills
Familiar with Applied Behavioral Analysis and Total Communication
Background in early childhood development

Special Intercsts/Achlcvcmcnts

Licensed Clinical Social Worker-VT and NH
Foster Care Training in both New Hampshire and Vennont
Completion of Positive Approaches to Solving Behavior Challenges (3 Day Seminar offered by
the Institute of Applied Behavioral Analysis)
Child abuse And Exploitation Investigative Techniques, September 2000
Habitat for Huhtanity, John's Island, SC 2001
Completed Covered Bridges Half Marathon 2008; 2009; 2011; 2012; 2016
Upper Valley Community Band (Board Member 2007-2009)
Past Volunteer Coach for Girls on the Run (VT and NH)
Coach for Finding our Stride
Founding member-Lake Sunapee Area Flute Choir
Approved Social Work supervisor for candidates for licensure

Professional Experience Highlights

Clinical Supervisor. TLC Family Resource Center, Claremont, NH
May 2022-Present
•  Provide clinical supervision to family support specialists and therapists
•  • Review treatment plans and casenotes

•  Provide therapeutic interventions for children, youth and families
Clinical Social Worker, Newport Health Center, Newport, NH
March 2017-Present

•  Provide support and resource assistance to patients in a rural health clinic
•  Ensure compliance with the Sullivan County Grant
•  Increase community awareness on health related issues especially mental health and addiction
•  Improve collaboration with outside agencies including local mental health programs; addiction resources;

school districts; community action programs, etc.

Clinical Social Worker, Birthing Pavilion/Intensive Care Nursery; Pediatric Cystic Fibrosis Program, Dartmouth
Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH
June 201 l-April 2017
•  Meet with at-risk mothers after delivery to assess for safety and post partum depression
•  Help families cope with long temi stays in the intensive care nursery
•  Provide infonnation and support to families with babies who are experiencing Neonatal Abstinence

Syndrome

•  Assist families with children diagnosed with Cystic Fibrosis with coping and navigating the system in order
to provide for their children

•  Assist with discharge planning of patients
•  Provide emotional support and guidance for patients in an in-patient hospital setting

Angley-Cohco, Erin Page 1 of 2
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School-Based Clinician, Heath Care and Rehabilitation Services of Southeastern Vermont,
Hartford, VT, April 2007-June 201 I
•  Provide individual therapy to high school students
•  Attend lEP and team meetings as necessary

•  Create individual treatment plans and psychosocial assessments

Clinical Case Manager/Behavioral Specialist, Easter Seals of New Hampshire, Manchester
NH, November 2001 - June 2005; November 2005-April 2007
•  Manage a caseload of 10-12 children with Pervasive Developmental Disorders in a

therapeutic residential treatment facility
•  Develop treatment plans and complete psychosocial assessments with a team approach

based on each individuals strengths

•  Handle on-call crisis intervention

•  Supervise unit staff
•  Ensure treatment goals are carried out by entire treatment team
•  Maintain training in Therapeutic Crisis Intervention
•  Provided in-home early inter\'ention therapy to a child under three with Autism
•

Intern, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Concord, Concord, NH, November 2005-May 2006
•  Provide crisis intervention as necessary to patients
•  Assist patients in locating ser\'ices in the community
•  Provide patients assistance in applying for community services

Developmental Specialist, Cape Cod Child Development Program, Hyannis, MA, June 2005-Oclober 2005
•  Provide support,and instruction to families of young children with developmental

delays or who are at-risk for delays
•  Conduct treatment in the natural setting, generally at home or in the community

Intern, Nashua Children's Home, Nashua NH, September 2004 - May 2005
•  Provide family and individual therapy to court ordered youth in a residential

treatment setting

•  Complete case notes and court reports

Acting Director, Cradle & Crayon Child Development Center, Hanover, NH, April 2001 -
October 2001

•  Manage the duties of a Child Development Center
•  Supervise a staff of 25 teachers
•  Ensure curriculum planning is implemented in all classrooms

Child Protective Service Worker, State of New Hampshire Division of Children, Youth and
Families, Claremonl, NH, September 1999 - April 2001
•  . Investigate and assess reports of child abuse and/or neglect
•  Court involvement as necessary

•  Strengthened partnerships with community agencies and police departments

Agro-Forestry Extension Agent, Peace Corps, Mauritania, West Africa, July 1998 - April
1999

•  Follow the Mission of the Peace Corps

•  Explore and implement the environmental needs of a West African Village

Education

Masters of Social Work, University of New Hampshire-Manchester, 2006
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, Centenary College, 1993

Angley-Cohen, Erin Page 2 of2
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ERIN A. KELLY

SUMMARY

Enlhusiaslic, personable and dedicated professional with 8+ years experience in supporting and advocating
for clients with a wide range of skills and goals. Proven track record in dependability, communication and
organizational skills. Ability to multi-task, prioritize and analyze to obtain best possible outcomes.

SKILLS

Active listening
Reading Comprehension
SeiA'icc Orientation

Familiar with confidentiality procedures
Critical Thinking
Writing
Excellent Time Management Skills
Judgement and Decision Making
Coordination

Problem Sensitivity
Organizational skills,
Excellent Communication skills

Ability to analyze situations from multiple vantage points
Very versed in experience with the public, from varied socio-economic classes
Current CPR and First Aid Certification

Life long learner- have attended countless conferences, seminars, and panel as well as collaboration
efforts with other area organizations.

WORK EXPERIENCE

April 2016-present
TLC Family Resource Center
Family Support Specialist
•  Provide parent education and training based on Strengthening Families Framework
•  Teach parents from Growing Great Kids curriculum during home visits
•  Promoted to Mealthy Families America Super\'isor

January 2007 - April 2016
Southwestern Community Services - Head Start '
Family Advocate

•  Assist families in goal setting, finding available resources, educational opportunities, referrals to
outside agencies

•  Familiarity with social service agencies in the area
•  100% success rate in program wide federal reviews
•  Maintain clients' records from application to graduation from the program
•  Manage client database
•  Compliance with OfTice of Head Start initiatives, policies and procedures.

Summer 2008 & 2009

West Central Behavioral Health

Behavioral Support
&

Summer 2004 & 2005

Health Care and Rehabilitation Services of Southeastern Vermont

Behavioral Support
•  Assisted children with their therapeutic goals as outlined by their treatment plan
•  Provide support, role modeling, and help identifying strengths
•  Offer advice in overcoming challenges and support growing self-confidence
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•  Implemented daily activities including group ad confidence building exercises for youth at risk

Summer to Fall 2006

Connecticut Valley Home Care and Hospice
Companion & Homemaker

•  Assist the elderly and disabled with household chores, errands
•  Acted as companion and friend to help maintain their safety and lifestyle

Summer 2004

Upwey Farms
Milker

•  Daily milking upwards of 60 head
•  Light fanii chores

2003-2006

Griswald Library, Green Mountain College
Librarian/Archival Assistant

•  Cataloging, circulation of materials, archiving, and interlibrary loans

EDUCATION

2003-2006 Green Mountain College Poultney, Vermont
Sociolog)'/AnlliropoIog}>
•  B.A.

•  Cumulative CPA 3.6

2007 -Present

•  Professional development documentation, training certificates in a wide variety of topics available
upon request.

AWARDS

•  Magna Cum Laude
•  Sociology/Anthropology Senior Award
•  President's List: 2 Semesters

•  Dean's List: 2 Semesters

EXTRACURRICULAR/VOLUNTEER WORK.

•  Poultney Partners Mentoring Club 2004-2006
•  Kiwanis Cliib of Claremont, member 2008-201 1.
•  Claremont Cares gift giving program 2007 - present

RELATED EXPERIENCE AND COURSE WORK

Practicum, The Poultney Historical Society, VT March 2006
Interviewed Poultney residents regarding personal and community history
as part of Oral History Project

Ethnographic Field Studies in China Summer 2005
Yancheng China, Jiangsu Province

Adirondack Block Course: FaW 2004

In-depth historical, social, and environmental study of the Adirondacks.
Upper-level course work

Area Studies, Social Research I & 11, Human Ecology, Criminology, Social Theory,
Senior Seminar in Behavioral Science
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Karen W. Jameson, M.Ed, RN

Education:

NH M.Ed/ in Health Education, May 2009, Plymouth State University

NH >Jssociate degree in nursing, May 2001, New Hampshire Community Technical College, Claremont,
Bachelor of Science in Animal, Veterinary and Aquatic Science, May 1991, University of Maine,

Orono, ME

Professional Experience:

TLC Family Resource Center, Claremont, NH 03743
(9/02-| present)
hiH Licensed Registered Nurse and Lactation Counselor: Function as a member of a dynamic team providing
comprehensive health and parenting support to pregnant women, children and families. Provides
health' education and encouragement to ensure the best possible outcomes for infant and mother.
Network with other social service agencies.

Valley Regional Hospital, Claremont, NH 03743
(6/01112/02)
Registered Nurse: Assessed, diagnosed, planned, implemented and evaluated
healtll care strategies for patients in a fast-paced medical and surgical unit.

Planned Parenthood of Northern New England, West Lebanon, NH 03784
(9/94[5/03)
Health care Assistant/ Registered Nurse: Performed a variety of medical, clerical,
and aclministrative functions in a busy health care facility. Responsible for client
safety, education and advocacy.

Dartmouth College, Biology Department, Hanover, NH 03755
(l/93|-l/94)
Laboratoiy technician: Directly responsible for the efficient operation of a cell
biology research lab. Supervised and trained several undergraduate students,
ordered and inventoried supplies, perfonned various scientific assays. Assisted in
grant application process.

Professional Training:

Healthy Families America: Healthy Families America (HFA) is one of the leading family support and
evidence-based home visiting programs in the United States.

Growing Great Kids : An evidence informed curricula used in HFA The goal is to help strengthen
fami ies and assure optimal child development.

Circle of Security: Focused on helping caregivers reflect upon children's attachment needs in
order to promote secure attachment with a child.

Helping Women Recover: A group for adult women with addictive disorders and a trauma
history (eg: abuse, domestic violence, community violence, etc.)

I  Motivational interviewing: A directive, client-centered counseling style for eliciting behavior change by
helping clients to explore and resolve ambivalence.
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Samantha Palmer

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATION

Social VVork

Masters Degree, University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH anticipated December 2022

Human Services with Early Childhood Development Specialty

Bachelors Degree, Granite State College, Concord, NH June 2020

Early Childhood Education

Associates Degree, Granite State College, Concord, NH 2012

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

TLC Family Resource Center, Family Support Specialist, (Claremont, NH)
Octobe|r 2020- present

Provide case management and connect.families to community resources.

Complete required electronic documentation and program specific forms thoroughly, accurately and on time usiiig Apricot, and
other data platforms as required by contract. .

Conduct visits during times that are convenient to parents, including days, early evening and weekends, to provide program
specific resources designed to strengthen families.

Help families set goals and action steps.

Participate in required'program specific trainings and approved professional development.

Facilitate parenting education groups

Pearls Little Angels/Creative Kids Adventure, Inc., Lead Toddler Teacher, (Grantham, NH)
January 2018- October 2020

Develop and implement individual education plans for children ages 13 months- 2 years until transition to older Toddler

classroom, which encourage their social, emotional, physical, linguistic, and intellectual development in a manner appropriate

to their age and stage of development.

Ensures the teaching team (Child care assistant, substitutes, etc) provides a safe, stimulating, and nurturing environment
enriched by a high quality early language experience and an emphasis on social and emotional growth.
Held responsible for implementing all program requirements in adherence to performance and outcome standards as

prescribed by Pearl's Little Angels .

Successfully communicate, orally or in writing, with parents or guardians each day about their child's day at the Center.
Preform monthly ASQ evaluations on each child with corresponding goals.

Concord Family YMCA, Lead Preschool Teacher (Concord, NH)

August 2014-June 2017
Develop and implement individual education plans for children ages 3 years until transition to pre-kindergarten classroom,
which encourage their social, emotional, physical, linguistic, and intellectual development in a manner appropriate to their age

and stage of development.
Ensures the teaching team (Child care assistant, substitutes, etc) provides a safe, stimulating, and nurturing environment
enriched by a high quality early language experience and an emphasis on social and emotional growth.
Held responsible for implementing all program requirements in adherence to performance and outcome standards as
prescribed by Creative Curriculum and the YMCA.

Successfully communicate, orally or in writing, with parents or guardians each day about their child's day at the Center.
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Early Intervention and Education Network, Mentorship
June 2014-November 2014; per diem

Mentorship through Early Intervention and Education Network

Mentor professionals in the Early Childhood field

Answer questions, provide guidance and provide materials to help professionals better understand behavior in children

Cinnamon Street Childcare Center (Newport, NH)

February 2014- August 2015

Develop and implement individual education plans for children ages 2 years until transition to preschool, which encourage their

social, emotional, physical, linguistic, and intellectual development in a manner appropriate to their age and stage of

development.

Ensures the teaching team (Child care assistant, substitutes, etc) provides a safe, stimulating, and nurturing environment

enriched by a high quality early language experience and an emphasis on social and emotional growth.
Held responsible for implementing all program requirements in adherence to performance and outcome standards as
prescribed by Creative Curriculum.

PROFESSIONAL SKILLS

Proficient in MS Word, Excel, Photo Editing & Graphic Design Experience, CPR and First Aid Certified

PROFESSIONAL CREDENTIALS
I

Early Childhood Master Teacher Level 2, Infant & Toddler Foundational Level I, Early Childhood Master Professional Credential with

the following endorsements: Individual Mentor, Workshop Trainer, Program Consultant

PROFESSIONAL TRAININGS

HIPAAfe//2020

Know & Tell fall 2020

Concreate Support fall 2020

Bringing the Protective Factors Framework to Life in Your Work: Introduction and Overview fall 2020

Knowledge of Parenting and Child Development fall 2020

Parental Resilience fall 2020

Social and Emotional Competence of Children fall 2020

Social Connections fall 2020

Strengthening Families Wrap Up: Moving From Knowledge Into Action fall 2020

Protective Factors Survey, 2^ Edition fall 2020

Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening & Support Certification fall 2020

Maternal Mental Health 101 winter 2020

Community Development and Early Childhood: Partnering for Better Outcomes winter 2020

Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS): Reducing the Risk winter 2020

Perinatal Mood Disorder; Components of Care spring 2021

Advanced Perinatal Mental Health Psychotherapy Training spring 2021

Period of Purple Crying Training for Implementation spring 2021
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Sarah E. Breisch
Education

• B. A. Literature, 2004

Experience

January 2018 to November 2018, April 2019 to Present

Family Support Specialist, TLC Family Resource Center

Prenatal Education and Support, Parenting Support and Education, Case Management and
Care Coordination, Referral Services and connection to area resources, Concrete supports for
[Families, and Family Advocacy offered through the Comprehensive Family Support Home
Visiting Program.

Facilitate supervised visits bet\ween parents and children with active DCYF involvement. Assist
Darents with meeting court-ordered goals though the Child Health Support/Parent Aid Program.
Provide CPSWs with monthly progress reports and attend Court Hearings to provide information
'about the client's progress.

• Continue to offer all supports to families virtually or by phone as circumstances dictate.

j- Sustain visit notes and other supporting documentation on all client-related activity on an online
database.

]• Completed Training in Growing Great Kids curriculum, Protective Factors, HIPPA standards
i- Regularly participate in trainings related to working with young children, families in crisis, mental
health and substance use issues

j' Participated in No Drama Discipline Parent Cafe Pilot Program
,• Co-authored Facilitator's Packet and Handout Packet for No Drama Discipline Parent Caf6

^ Facilitate 12-session No Drama Discipline Parent Cafe for client group and company-offered
employee group

jjuly 2017 to January 2018
Kitchen Production Staff, Logistics and Order Fulfillment, Blake Hill Artisan

Preserves

September 2009 to June 2017

Teacher, New England Classical Academy, 18 Central St. Claremont, NH 03743

September 2005- June 2009

Instructor, Mother of Divine Grace School, 407 Bryant Circle, Suite B1, Ojai, CA,

93023
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Alysse Coffey
EDlirATION ft AWARDS:

Colby-Sawyer College, New London, NH
•  Bachelors of Science in Child Development

o. Minor: Psychology
•  Leadership Scholarship (2008-2012)

•  Scholar's Symposium: Capstone Award
Walden University,

•  M.S. in Early Childhood Studies and Leadership
WORK EXPERIENCE:

May 2012

January 201S-October 2016

TLC Family Resource Center 9/22-present Claremont, NH
Program Director

•  Responsible for managing the overall operations of the Family Support and Youth

Programs including hiring, training, and supporting direct services staff and supervisors

•  Responsible for ensuring that the program complies with various contracts and partnership

agreements

•  Provide budget input and oversight following financial policies and procedures

The Home for Little Wanderers 6/21-8/22 Hillsboro, NH
Program Director

•  Responsible for managing the overall operations of The DCYF After-Hours Central Intake,

including hiring, training, and supporting screeners, supervisors, and ancillary staff.

•  Responsible for ensuring that the program complies with DCYF rules and regulations.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center Child Care Center 08/12-6/21 Lebanon, NH
Program Director 6/15- 6/2 i

•  Responsible for fostering an environment that allows children, their families, and staff to
develop to their full potential

•  Other responsibilities include program management, hiring, leadership and team building,
supervision, family communication, enrollment, finances, and conducting as a professional

Program Coorc/inalor H/l 3-6/15
•  Work with all staff to create a safe and caring environment for the pre-school children of the

Center. Collaborate with teachers to plan and implement appropriate early childhood
curriculum providing learning experiences using a variety of materials within the overall
guidelines set by the Center.

•  With the Program Director, assure that teachers maintain records of each child's progress and
development and the preparation of reports to be discussed with parents using criteria set by the
Center.

•  Work with staff and parents to promote understanding of their child's development and
encourage parents' participation in the classroom or Center whenever possible. Assist teachers
with regular parent teacher conferences.

•  Assist the Program Director with determining budget appropriations by doing research for cost
effective materials.

Teacher 08/12-11/13
•  Set up and develop appropriate activities, equipment, and materials

•  Daily record keeping on children to apply to T.S. Gold assessment tool on primaries
•  Communicate with parents and co-workers

•  Supervise and assure safety and wellbeing of children at all times

Norwood High School 08/10-08/12
Director Small Music Ensemble

•  Ages 13-18 years old

•  Teach Celtic music to a variety of string musicians and singers

•  Prepare group for performances

•  Organize events

Nonvood, MA
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AW 05/11-05/12 New London, Nl-I
Care Provider

•  Worked with an older women with cognitive and motor disabilities

•  Assisted with everyday tasks (feeding, changing: clothes and diaper)

•  Aided with movement (crawling)

•  Read out load and played music for her
APPLIED EXPERIENCE :

Social Work Intern, Department of Children, Youth and Families 01/12-4/12 Claremont, NH
Assessment Division in Health and Human Services (State o/NH)

•  Developed knowledge of the legal proceedings and laws governing abuse and neglect
allegations
•  Conducted home visits to investigate abuse/neglect allegations

•  Conducted brief phone intei*views with Families and professionals (i.e., schools,
physicians)

•  Processed client files

•  Entered notes into the database and produce documentation for legal cases
Windy Hill School Practicum 07/10-12/10 New London, NH
Teacher

•  Ages 3-5 years old; responsibilities (documentation, milestones)
•  Developed age appropriate activities that supported children's cognitive, social, and

emotional ability

•  Collaborated on developmentofteacher's curriculum
•  Aided with lunch and naptime routines

New London Hospital Learning Center Practicum 01/10- 04/10
Teacher

•  Ages 3-5 years old; responsibilities (documentation, milestones)
•  Aided with lunch and naptime routines

•  Assisted with outside play

•  Assisted with class time activities (circle time, scheduled activities)

New London, NH

Other:

MemberofNAEYC

Former Public Policy Chair for NHAEYC
Peer reviewer for 2014 NAEYC Annual Conference and Expo

Former Member of Spark NH Policy Committee

Volunteered at DHMC CHAD (children's hospital)

Worked on various task force for Early Childhood and Higher Education

Recipient of Early Learning NH's Early Childhood Champion Award
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Michelle Parker

Professional Summary:

Years of experience navigating children, adults and families through a variety of economic, behavioral,
physical and mental health challenges with an emphasis on individualized treatment options and
strength-based solutions.

Skills:

Strength based approach

Cultural competency

Excellent verbal and written communication skills

Ability to write clear and accurate reports in a timely manner

Knowledge of motivational interviewing techniques
Ability to identify problems, determine accuracy and relevance of information, use sound judgment
to generate and evaluate alternatives and make recommendations
Ability to display high standards of ethical conduct
Ability to manage one's own time and the time of others

Professional Experience:

04.2022-current

Self-employed Independent Contractor

•  Perform Comprehensive Assessment for Treatment (CAT) in the state of New Hampshire
utilizing a trauma-informed, person-centered approach

•  Interview referred youth, their family members and permanency team members to make
recommendations for level of care and related clinically appropriate services

•  Review all referral information and supporting documentation

•  Identify and obtain required Release of Information from parent(s) or legal guardian in
accordance with contract requirements and State regulations

•  Schedule and conduct clinical interviews

•  Complete Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths Assessment (CANS)
•  Complete assessment report, applying clinical decision-making model to make clinical

recommendations for level of care and services

2020-2022

Orion House Residential Treatment Coordinator

•  Collaborate with youths to develop strength-based treatment plans and assure that all clinical

services are delivered to children and families as indicated

•  Develop and execute transition/discharge plans and assure that all clinical services are delivered
to children and families as indicated

•  Complete comprehensive 30-day Biopsychosocial Assessment (to include: CANS, ACE, SNAP,
Casey Life Skills, etc.)

•  Facilitate 30-day treatment team meetings, quarterly treatment team meetings and transitional
planning meetings
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•  Provide stakeholders with ongoing updates with regards to presence and progress in treatment

2017-2020

Dartmouth Hitchcock Hospital Health Coach/Educator

•  Supporting children and their families by using a variety of tactics to help them better
understand a process, procedure, or other element of their medical experience

•  Developing age-appropriate strategies to minimize trauma and increase understanding of a
medical diagnosis through treatments plans using play, education, preparation, and activities
that promote growth and development

•  Advocating for the special needs of children and their families
•  Helping children and their families process and cope with medical situations

•  Providing information, support, and guidance to children, parents and family members
•  Collaborating with the health care team to coordinate and manage care

2015-2017

Health Fitness Corporate Fitness Center, Program Manager

Oversee day to day operation of Fitness, Health and Wellness Center

Program development and monitoring outcomes

Develop, organize and execute health promotion campaigns in the workplace

Build and maintain solid relationships with employees and stakeholders

Achieve short and long-term goals in accordance with strategic business plan

2011-2015

Medifit Corporate Fitness Center, Program Manager

Oversee day to day operation of Fitness, Health and Wellness Center

Daily supervision of staff

Coordinate the on-boarding process for all new employees

Coordinate and schedule training classes

Create standard and specialized training based on organizational and job needs

Developing, organizing and executing health promotion campaigns in the workplace

Build and maintain solid "relationships with employees and stakeholders

Achieve short and long-term goals in accordance with strategic business plan

2003-2007

Massachusetts Departmentpf Public Health Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program, Social
Worker III

•  Provide case management services to families

•  Assess the needs of families whose children are affected by lead paint

•  Conduct comprehensive family assessments

•  Co-facilitate monthly case reviews

•  Assist families in solving legal, family, social, and behavioral problems

•  Maintain case records

2000-2003

Massachusetts Office of Child Care Services, Residential Child Care Licensor

•  Enforce licensing standards

•  Conduct investigations and licensing studies
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•  Implement regulatory enforcement procedures with licensed facilities

•  Providing technical assistance concerning compliance activities

1995-2000
I

Massachusetts Department of Child and Families, Assessment Social Worker

•  Assessed, evaluated, conducted initial and ongoing case management of children/family

services, and needs.

•  Developed, reviewed, updated and ensured Implementation of strength-based service plans for
each child in care or custody including risk assessment, safety plans and goals.

•  Completed all documentation in accordance with agency and regulatory requirements.
•  Attended home and foster care visits; transport children to health, social services or other

agency-related appointments as required.

•  Empowered families to make stable commitments to children by providing counseling and
coordinating visits with biological parents and/or guardians and other relatives; developed
helping relationship with families to ensure needed supports and services were provided.

Education & Certifications;
I

BA Sociology, Framingham State University
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BRENDA L. FOLEY

SKILLS & EXPERIENCE as acquired and demonstrated through trainings, education, and life/work history.
-Strong ability to communicate effectively with diverse populations-Interpersonal relationship building and
conflict resolution-Ability to adapt to difficult situations-Detail oriented-Capable problem solver-Good
organizational skills-Efficient computer abilities-Effective time and project management-Leadership skills-

EDUCt^TION
Granite State College, Claremont, NH
•  iBachelor of Science degree in Health & Human Services.
•  lOraduation: December 2006. Summa Cum Laude
•  [Recipient of Granite State College's 2006-2007 Merit Scholarship Award.

Andover College. Portland, ME

•  [Associate in Applied Science degree. Medical Assisting major/Human Services minor.
•  Graduation: May 2002. GPA 4.0
•  Recipient of Andover College's President Cup Award 2002.

EMPLOYMENT

Oualitv Assurance and Database Administrator. TLC Family Resource Center Claremont, NH 2015-present
• toordinate quality assurance and quality improvement projects to comply with various state and foundation

contracts and awards

• benerate reports and related information for management, contracts, and accreditation processes
• Manage Apricot database including development, training, and problem solving database components

Re.sifient Services Coordinator. POAH Communities at Sugar River Mills Claremont, NH (5/13-4/15)
•  Develop and implement supportive service programming in collaboration with residents, site staff and

management and local community service providers.'
•  Identify, assess and coordinate the delivery of services with service providers and contractors
• Maintain all necessary information and reports in a confidential manner following the regulatory guidance

provided by HUD.
Economic Independence / Direct Services Coordinator. TPN Claremont, NH (12/03-6/05; 12/09-5/13)

Developed, coordinated and supervised the EIP, a grant funded program designed to promote and assist
victim/survivors of domestic abuse, sexual assault, and stalking with whatever s/he may identify in order
to reach self sufficiency and economic independence.

•  Educated and trained community and businesses of trauma informed services.
•  Coordinated and supervised agency D.S. staff and ser\'iees including 24-hour crisis and support line,

individual peer support counseling; group facilitation; outreach services, social services, legal, medical,
law enforcement, and court advocacy and mediation, transportation; shelter and safe home placement; and
referrals and follow up.

•  Established and maintained collaborative working relationships with community providers including
police, courts, attorneys, clergy, and medical mental health and social service providers.

•  Recruited, trained, and retained 24-hour volunteer task force.
Indeoeident Services Coordinator. Self-employed Contractor, Claremont, NH (I2/09-present)

Family

Provide services as described below for two individuals who with the agreement and consent of their
guardians requested I continue as their case manager by contracting independently with Pathways.
Services Coordinator. PathWays of the River Valley, Claremont, NH (12/06-12/09)
Provided comprehensive case management social role valorization, and advocacy for perso'ns with
developmental disabilities and /or traumatic brain injury, ensuring the preservation of civil rights and
those rights to treatment and serviees as set forth in NH RSA 171-A.
Facilitated planning meetings, individual budgets, legal processes; and acted as a liaison between the
individual, community, state agencies, and service providers.

COMMUNITY SERVICE & VOLUNTEERISM'
Crisis Intervention Volunteer Advocate. TPN Sullivan County 2005-2009, 2013-present
Team Leader: Steppin Up to End Violence annual walk. TPN 2007-present
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CRYSTAL SIMPSON

Administrative Assistant

Education

June 2010 Granite State College-

oBS in Early Childhood Education

June 2007 River Valley Community College

• AS In Early Childhood Education- June 2007

Experience

March 2019 - Current, TLC Family Resource Center

Administrative Assistant

May 2017- Current, Bayada Hospice, Brattleboro VT

Client Services Manager

PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develop long term trusting relationships with clients {patients}.

• Develop long term trusting relationships with referral sources, payors and community

organizations

© Knowledgeably and successfully handle incoming service Inquiries, and enter all inquiries in

computer referral tracking screen.

© Clearly establish the service agreement with clients and payors, i.e. service details, billing

arrangements, method for problem resolution, etc.

© Participate in recruitment of field staff.

© Effectively schedule staff, coordinate client services and manage caseload.

© Schedule appropriate field employees, based on competency and availability, to provide

quality care to clients.Follow up on all employee assignments immediately after services have
begun, and on an ongoing basis, to ensure continuing satisfaction of clients, their families, and

employees. Carefully monitor the caseload to ensure that a minimum number of employee

changes are made per client and to insure reliability.

© Function as facilitator among clients, families, clinical manager, field and office employees,

physicians and case managers.

© Document and properly follow-up with all client/employee incidents and complaints.

© Document all pertinent situations and interactions with clients, families, physicians, case

managers and other care providers, to ensure adequate coordination and continuity of service.
© Accurately process field employee payroll each week.

© Make decisions and provide feedback to employees related to recognition, pay rate changes,

counseling and termination of employment.

© Complete regular field staff performance evaluations, jointly with the Clinical Manager.
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• Promote and participate in retention activities-company/offjce contests, Heroes recognition,
[^residential Scholarship, Years of Service recognition, BAYADA Bucks program, etc.
o Assist team members in filling call-outs and last minute service requests.

• Provide the On-Call Manager \wlth all pertinent and current Information and conduct on-call,
or be backup to the On-Call Manager, as necessary.

o Participate In office and company meetings, events, and functions.

Aug. 2011- Dec 2016, WIndham County Head Start and Springfield Learning Garden, Springfield
Vr

Child Care Services Manager/Director

Responsible for planning, Implementing, and overseeing developmentally appropriate
practice for Staff and children.

Ensures the development and safety of children in accordance with relevant state and
federal policies.

Complete monthly reviews of all newly hired staff and quarterly reviews of all current
staff.

Follow and enforce all state licensing regulations, parent handbook, as well as center
policies and procedures.

Responsible for Staff schedules, training reviews, IPDP, performance reviews, enrolling

new children, family schedules, handling complaints and concerns from staff and
parents. Hold monthly staff meetings, reviews children's files and keep them current.
Develop and Implement a developmentally appropriate preschool program.

Family to school communication by Monthly Newsletters, planning family and
community field trips and activities.

Families subsidy, co-pays, and private pay financial record keeping.

2010- 2011 HILL HOUSE PRESCHOOL AND CHILD CARE CENTER, Bellows Falls VT

Director/Teacher

2005 to 2010 EARLY EDUCATION CENTER, WNESU-Bellows Falls VT

Preschool Teacher

Certifications -

CPR and First Aid certified- 2018

NAEYC member since 1998

Community Activities

Wags and wiggles canine rescue/foster

Professional Development

Medicare and hospice benefit

Emergency preparedness training

Behavioral interviewing

Explaining hospice to patients and families
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Healthy Families America Homevisiting - TLC Family Resource Center
April 1, 2023-September 30, 2024

'Name. - J.ob Title'

t  ■ 1

Salary for Contract
4^eriod. ;

■ %-Paid from this .

I Contract

Salary, Amount Paid
from this Contract

Erin Angley-
Cohen

Clinical

Supervisor

$92,568 38% $34,713

Erin Kelly HFA Supervisor $56,652 100% $56,659

Karen

Jameson

Registered
Nurse

$89,169 33% $29,723

Samantha

Palmer
Family Support
Specialist

$63,193 29% $18,058

Sarah Breisch Family Support
Specialist

$61,871 57% $35,355

Alysse
Coffey

Family Support
Team Program
Director

$108,172 30% $32,456

Michelle

Parker
Family Support
Specialist

$70,710 75% $53,032

VACANT Family Support
Specialist

$70,710 50% $35,355"

Brenda Folcy Q1 and Data

Coordinator

$55,708 6% $3,076

Crystal
Simpson

Administrative

Assistant II

$53,033 6% $2,929
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Subject; RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01 / Home Visiting Services

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietar)' must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

l.l State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Conlractor Name •

VNAatHCS,Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

312 Marlboro Street

Keene,NH 03431

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)352-2253 Ext. 132

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902010-5896;
05-95-90-902010-2451;

05-95-42-421010-2958.

1.7 Completion Date

9/30/2024

1.8 Price Limitation

$508,737.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1,10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.ll Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Maura McQueeney

CEO

1.13 Stafe"/Cg^y*Slgnature
OoeuSlgtwd by:

Da.e:V7/2023

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Patricia M. rilley

Di rector

1.15 Approval by thcN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
DocuSlgned by:

By: On: V7/2023

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date;

Page 1 of 4
Conlractor Initials

— DS

MA

Date 3/7/2023
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Ser\'ices performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, slate, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Stales
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the

period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that'
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purcha.sed with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third parly, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Slate.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omi&sioibsof the

Page 3 of 4 Mi-
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Contracior, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

J4. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not lc.ss than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Stale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under- this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Coiitractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parlies, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective April 1.
2023, ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible, to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

Mi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Introduction

1.1. The Contractor must provide services in accordance with Department
requirements and the Healthy Families America (HFA) program, which is
designed to reduce the risk of child maltreatment by strengthening parent-child
relationships, promoting healthy childhood growth, and enhancing family
functioning and protective factors. Families enroll voluntarily with HFA, and
meet regularly with a Family Support Specialist and receive services tailored to
their needs.

HFA is both culturally-inclusive and trauma-informed, and teaches parents
about healthy child development and appropriate activities for keeping their
child(ren) healthy and thriving. The Contractor must provide services to assist
in:

•  Increasing caregivers' ability to build attachments with their child(ren):

•  Creating foundations for nurturing relationships;

•  Enhancing family functioning through reducing risk and increasing
protective factors; and

•  Developing connections to additional resources, which include, but are
not limited to:

o Housing.

o Food.

o Various forms of treatment,

o. School readiness,

o Childcare.

o Access to diapers and other supplies.

1.2. The Department, through this Agreement, seeks to assess needs more
holistically. and to create crucial linkages across systems that touch vulnerable
populations to seamlessly connect them to supports and enhance available
services at all levels of needs. The Department's Division of Public Health
Se.rvices {DPHS) in conjunction with the Division for Children, Youth and
Families (DCYF) are collaborating their efforts to achieve this goal. The
Contractor must provide services using the HFA program to children and
families on behalf of both Divisions.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to day(s) mean r\/londay
through Friday, business days, excluding state and federal holidays.

2. Key Definitions & Terminology

RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01 B-2.0 Contraclor Initials
3/7/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

2.1. Begin Date of Services -The date the Contractor initiated contact with the
client/family, and corresponds with the date listed as "begin date of services"
on the Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) Service Authorization
Form.

2.2. CPS - Child Protective Services.

2.3. CQI - Continuous Quality Improvement.

2.4. Cultural Humility - fyiaintaining a willingness to suspend what you know, or
what you think you know, about a person based on generalizations about their
culture. Rather what you learn about a participant's culture stems from being
open to what they themselves have determined is their personal expression of
their heritage and culture.

2.5. CWP - Child Welfare Protocols.

2.6. DCYF - Division for Children, Youth and Families.

2.7. DHHS - Department of Health and Human Services.

2.8. DPHS - Division of Public Health Services.

2.9. DO - District Office.

2.10. Face-to-face - An in-person or virtual interaction or home visit (defined below)
following the date on which the referral was made in which a provider begins
working with the families to deliver HFA.

2.11. FFPSA - Family First Prevention Services Act.

2.12. FTE - Full time equivalent is a figure calculated from the number of full-time
and part-time employees in an organization that represents these workers as
a comparable number of full-time employees.

2.13. GGK - Growing Healthy Kids is a user friendly and truly comprehensive
strength-based approach to growing nurturing parent-child relationships and
supporting healthy childhood development.

2.14. HFA - Healthy Families America.

2.15. HFA model - A well-supported practice that provides home visiting designed
to work with families who may have histories of trauma, intimate partner
violence, mental health challenge, and/or substance use disorders. HFA
services are delivered voluntarily, intensively, and over the long-term.

2.16. HFA BPS - Healthy Families America Best Practice Standards.

2.17. HFA CWP model - A set of protocols that requires the existing model
requirements be provided, while offering additional guidance related to
enrollment, caseload management, and establishing a formal MOD with child
welfare in order to best serve families. Services are offered for a minimum of
three years, regardless of the age of the child at intake, and supportsiamilies

Mjl
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EXHIBIT B

with children through age five, which allows sites to enroll families referred by
child welfare up to age twenty-four months.

2.18. HRSA - Health Resource and Services Administration is the primary Federal
agency for improving access to health care services for people who are
uninsured, isolated, or, medically vulnerable and the funding source of the
MIECHV.

2.19. MIECHV - Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting - a program
that supports pregnant individuals and families and helps at-risk parents of
children from birth to kindergarten entry to tap the resources and hone the skills
they need to raise children who are physically, socially and emotionally healthy
and ready to learn.

2.20. MOU/MOA - Memorandum of Understanding/Memorandum of Agreement - a
written agreement between two (2) parties to provide certain services.

2.21. Open Assessment - Any report of concern received by DOYF that is screened
in by DCYF's central intake, and is being investigated by child protection staff.

2.22. Open Case - Any case opened to DOYF. including community-based/internal
voluntary cases.

2.23; Out-of-Home Placement - The removal of a child from their normal place of
residence to reside in a court-ordered substitute care setting under the
placement and care responsibility of DOYF.

2.24. PAT - Parents As Teachers - a foundational curriculum used as an approach
to working with families that is relatipnship-based and parenting-focused.

2.25. Pll - Personally Identifiable Information.

2.26. OA - Quality Assurance.

2.27. Virtual Home Visit - A home visit, as described in an applicable service delivery
model that is conducted solely by the use of electronic information and
telecommunications technologies.^

2.28. Well-supported practice - An evidence-based service that has at least two
• (2) contrasts, with non-overlapping samples in studies carried out in usual care
or practice settings that achieve a rating of moderate or high on design and
execution and demonstrate favorable effects in a target outcome domain. At
least one (1) of the contrasts must demonstrate a sustained favorable effect of
at least 12 months beyond the end of treatment on at least one (1) target
outcome.

3. Statement of Work

3.1. The Contractor must provide face-to-face voluntary home visiting services to

Text - - 116ihContiress (2019-2020): Consolidated Api-nonrialions Act. 2021 I Congic.ss.gov I Libr^^vor

kM,
Congrc.ss
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pregnant individuals and families with children up to age five (5) by utilizing the
evidence-based home visiting model from HFA.

3.2. The Contractor must ensure a minimum of 80% of families served using the
traditional HFA model are enrolled in services prenatally or by when the child
is 3-months old. The Contractor must offer services in compliance with HFA
requirements after enrollment. Eligible families for traditional HFA services {as
managed by the Division of Public Heather Services) must fall within one (1) or
more of the federally defined priority populations below:

3.2.1. Are first-time parents.

3.2.2. Have income of less than one hundred eighty-five percent (<185%) of
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (USDHHS)
Poverty Guidelines.

3.2.3. Are less than twenty-one (21) years of age.

3.2.4. Have a history of child abuse or neglect, or have had interactions with
child welfare services.

3.2.5. Have a history of substance misuse or need substance use disorder
■  treatment.

3.2-.6. Are users of tobacco products in the home.

3.2.7. Have or have had a child(ren) with low student achievement.

3.2.8. Have a child(ren) with developmental delays or disabilities.

3.2.9. Are in families that include individuals who are serving or have
formerly served in the armed forces.

3.3. The Contractor must service a portion of families utilizing the HFA Child
Welfare Protocols (CWP) in the Keene DCYF Catchment Area Location, which
is attached as Attachment 1. Virtual home visits may also be accommodated,
in compliance with HFA requirements. The Contractor must ensure families
being served utilizing the CWP have an expanded enrollment window, allowing
for enrollrnent of families with a child up to twenty-four (24)' months old, referred
by the child welfare system, who are participating in the service.voluntarily. The
Contractor must serve no less than six (6) DCYF families during the first six (6)
months of the contract period and no less than twelve (12) families thereafter
through the end of the contract period.

3.4. The Contractor must serve twenty-four (24) families in the Keene DCYF
Catchment Area Location under the traditional HFA model.

3.5. Eligible families for HFA CWP services must fall within one (1) of more of the
following DCYF FFPSA priority populations:

3.5.1. Pregnant or parenting youth in foster care.

3.5.2. Families with an infant born exposed to substances.

RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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3.5.3. Families assessed by DCYF where the assessment will be closed
unfounded.

3.5.4. Families with an open DCYF case who have recently reunified.

3.6. The Contractor must provide services with the goal of reducing risk of
maltreatment for children "assessed by the DCYF by:

3.6.1. Serving families involved with DCYF through open assessments or
open cases, and also beyond their DCYF involvement.

3.6.2. Strengthening parent-child relationships.

3.6.3. Promoting healthy childhood growth.

3.6.4. Enhancing family functioning and protective factors both during and
beyond their DCYF involvement with a long-term outcome goal of
decreasing future system involvement and the need for out-of-home
-placement.

3.7. The Contractor must provide services that address the diverse needs of
children and families in order to improve health and development outcomes for
priority populations through evidence-based home visiting programs, with
fidelity to the HFA model BPS. The Contractor must:

3.7.1. Be approved through the HFA model to provide services under this
Agreement. The Contractor must:

3.7.1.1. Be approved through HFA. to implement the HFA CWP,
which allows enrollment into HFA.for DCYF referred families

up to twenty-tour (24) months of age.

3.7.1.2. Have HFA CWP available in the Keene DCYF Catchment

Area Location within six (6) months of Governor and
Executive Council approval of this Agreement.

3.7.1.2.1 Should the' Contractor be unable to begin
providing services through the HFA CWP by the
date specified above, a corrective action plan
must be developed by the Contactor and
approved by the Department.
3.7.1.2.1.1. In the event that the HFA National

Office denies the Contractor use

of the CWP, the Contractor must
develop a subcontract or MOA
with an approved, accredited HFA
provider to provide this service, no
later than thirty (30) business days
from the date of the denial.

3.7.2. Select and implement an evidence-based curriculum to siy^port

Ma.
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prenatal individuals and newly parenting families. Family Support
Specialists (FSS) must be trained within six (6) months of hire on the
following:

3.7.2.1. Parents as Teachers (PAT), as an annually trained
"Approved user;" or

3.7.2.2. Growing Great Kids (GGK) with certification of training.

3.7.3. Collaborate with other early childhood and social service agencies to
support linkages to services beneficial to families.

3.7.4. Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential
components of the HFA model are addressed'in agency policies.

3.7.5. Enter personally identifiable information (Pll) for all participants
served under this Agreement into the Department's designated Home
Visiting Data System.

3.8. The Contractor must identify positive ways to establish relationships with each
family and keep families engaged and connected over time, as participants may
be reluctant to engage in services and may have difficulty building trusting
relationships. The Contractor must use creative outreach strategies, such as
Motivational Interviewing, to re-engage families who have disengaged.

3.9. The Contractor must adhere to HFA's site requirements by ensuring weekly
individual supervision is received by all direct service staff.

3.10. The Contractor must provide monthly reflective consultation groups for direct
service staff and supervisors with a skilled Infant Mental Health consultant.

3.11. The Contractor must offer home visits by licensed nurses (registered nurse
(RN) or greater education level) during the prenatal and post-partum periods at
a frequency of once per trimester prenatally, and once per quarter during the
first year post-partum.

3.12. The Contractor must offer services that are comprehensive and focus on
supporting the parent/caregiver, as well as supporting the parent-child
interaction and child development. Additionally, all families must be linked to a
medical provider and other services, as appropriate.

3.13. The Contractor must obtain all necessary authorizations for release of
information. All forms developed for authorization for release of information
must be made available for review by the Department during site visits for
selected case reviews.

3.14. The Contractor must coordinate, where possible, with other local service
providers including, but not limited to:

3.14.1. Health care providers.

3.14.2. Social workers.

Mi
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3.14.3. Social services.

3.14.4. Early interventionists.

3.15. The Contractor must develop and maintain an advisory group comprised of
community partners, family participants, and agency staff with a wide range of
skills and abilities, including representatives with diverse skills, strengths,
community knowledge, professions, and cultural diversity. The Contractor
must:

3.15.1. Promote equity in all facets of operations with families, staff, and
community.

3.15.2. Maintain policy or other written guidance expressing the Contractor's
commitment to respectful staff interactions and supporting staff to
continually strengthen their relational skills focused' on diversity,
equity, and inclusion.

3.15.3. Gather information to reflect on and better understand issues
impacting staff and families served and to examine the effectiveness
of its equity strategies.

3.15.4. Develop an equity plan based on what it learns about itself, from an
equity perspective, in the way it supports its staff, the families it
serves, and the community it works within to set a course for
continuous improvement to achieve greater equity in all facets of its
work.

3.16. The Contractor must evaluate the progress of each program participant, as well
as the performance of programs and services provided.

3.17. The Contractor must ensure that they:

3.17.1. Collaborate with relevant DCYF staff and related stakeholders when
a valid release of information has been signed or a subpoena has
been issued by the court.

3.17.2. Make reports to DCYF Central Intake if they suspect child abuse or
neglect, consistent with their responsibility, as mandated reporters
under New Hampshire law.

3.18. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate monthly, with both
Divisions, to enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust
program delivery and policy, based on successful outcomes.

3.19. Compliance Standards

3.19.1. The Contractor must offer services to all families referred by the
Department unless that family is identified as ineligible for HFA under
model specifications and requirements.

3.19.2. The Contractor must ensure referrals are accepted from/mtrttiple
kK
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sources within the child welfare system including, but not limited to:

3.19.2.1. DCYF Juvenile'Justice Services.

3.19.2.2. DCYF Child Protective Services (CPS).

3.19.3. The Contractor must adhere to all specifications and requirements, in
compliance with NH DCYF's 5-year prevention plan and the Family
First Prevention Service Act (FFPSA), for HFA CWP cases, including,
but not limited to:

3.19.3.1. All data reporting;

3.19.3.2. Record keeping and retention;

3.19.3.3. Fiscal compliance; -

3.19.3.4. Maintenance of an evidence-based program identified as
. well-supported through the Title IV-E Clearinghouse;

3.19.3.5. Documented prevention type on the DCYF service
authorization (which will be completed by the Department);
and

Submitting a completed prevention plan every twelve (12)
months for every DCYF- referred family. DCYF staff will
complete the initial prevention plan for families, ̂ and the
Contractor must update the plans at the 12-month mark and
annually. The Department will distribute associated
guidance after DCYF's 5-year plan is reviewed and
approved.

3.19.4. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to ensure that
all program policies, .procedures, and documents align with NH DCYF
and DPHS policies, NH state law, and Department needs.

3.19.5. The Contractor must identify staff responsible for submitting reports
and data to the Department within 30 days of the Agreement effective
date.

3.20. Staffing:

3.20.1. The Contractor must follow all HFA Essential and Safety standards
for staffing, hiring, training, and supervision, as outlined in HFA BPS.

3.20.2. The Contractor must ensure HFA home visiting staff have at least a
high school diploma or equivalent, experience providing services to
families, and knowledge of child development. Supervisors and
Program Managers must have at least a Bachelor's degree with three
(3) years prior experience.

3.20.3. The Contractor must ensure FSSs receive extensive training in the
program model before delivering the service and on a recurhng^^^is.
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Training must comply with all.HFA model specifications and
requirements, including but not limited to:

3.20.3.1. Attending a four-day core training that is specialized based
on role (assessors, home visitors, and supervisors).

3.20.3.2. Supervisors attending one (1) additional day for the core
training and an optional three (3) days of training that
focuses on building reflective supervision skills.

3.20.3.3. Program managers are required to attend core training plus
three (3) days of training focused on how to implement the
model to fidelity using the HFA BPS.

3.20.4. The Contractor must ensure additional available training is beneficial
to the staff in delivering HFA. Training and conferences topics must
include but are not limited to:.

3.20.4.1. Substance use.

3.20.4.2. Childhood Maltreatment (Abuse/Neglect).

3.20.4.3. Parenting techniques.

3.20.4.4. Cultural competence/humility.

3.20.4.5. Childhood and generational trauma (Trauma-Informed).

3.20.4.6. Engagement strategies.

3.20.5. The Contractor must ensure each Family Support Specialist (FSS)
maintains a caseload of no more than ten (10) to twelve (12) families
per 1 FTE for the first two (2) years of employment and no more than
fifteen (15) to twenty (20) families per one (1) FTE after completing
24.months of employment for traditional HFA; and no more than ten
(10) to twelve (12) families at any time for HFA CWP. These caseload
maximums shall be prorated per HFA requirements for staff with less
than 40 hours per week dedicated to the role of FSS.

3.21. The Contractor must maintain HFA accreditation and follow all BPS related to

hiring, staffing levels, training, and supervision among other components of the
model.

3.22. Discharge from HFA services:

3.22.1. The Contractor must develop a service plan for each family, beginning
at the time of admission and continuing throughout service.

3.22.2. The Contractor must not discharge any family referred by the
Department without following a protocol specified by. the Department.

3.23. Extending HFA services:

3.23.1. The Contractor must offer HFA Services to the child and farT|ny,°tor a
Al/U.
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minimum of three (3) years in total.

3.24. Reporting

3.24.1. The Contractor must complete a Monthly Capacity Analysis Report,
which is attached as Attachment 2 on a form provided by the
Department. This document must be submitted to DPHS no later than
the 15*^ of each month, containing the prior month's data.

3.24.2. The Contractor, on a quarterly (January, April, July, and October) and
annual (October) basis, must submit to DCYF:

3.24.2.1. Form 1, which is attached as Attachment 3.

3.24.2.2. Form 2, which is attached as Attachment 4.

3.24.3. The Contractor may be required to provide new data reporting
requirements, or other key data and metrics including client-level
demographic, performance, and service data to the Department in a
format specified by the Department.

3.25. Background Checks

3.25.1. For all Contractor employees, interns, volunteers, and any
subcontractor employees, interns, and volunteers providing services
under this Agreement, the Contractor must, at its own expense, after
obtaining a signed and notarized authorization form the individual(s)
for whom information is being sought:

3.25.1.1. Submit the person's name for review against the Bureau of
Elderly Adult Services (SEAS) state registry maintained
pursuant to RSA 161-F:49:

3.25.1.2. Submit the person's name for review against the Division for
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) center registry
pursuant to RSA 169-C:35:

3.25.1.3. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person
has no history of:

3.25.1.3.1. Felony conviction: or

3.25.1.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

3.25.1.3.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

3.25.1.3.2.2. Violence;

3.25.1.3.2.3. Exploitation;

3.25.1.3.2.4. Child pornography;

3.25.1.3.2.5. Threatening or reckless
conduct; —os

kJk.
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3.25.1.3.2.6. Theft;

3.25.1.3.2.7. Driving under the influence
of drugs or alcohol; or

3.25.1.3.2.8. Any other conduct that
represents evidence of
behaviors that could

endanger the well-being of
any individual served under
this Agreement; and

3.25.2. Unless approval is granted by the Department, the Contractor must
not permit any employee, volunteer, intern, or subcontractor to
provide services under this Agreement until the Contractor has
confirmed:

3.25.2.1. The individual's name is not on the BEAS state registry;

3.25.2.2. The individual's name is not on the DCYF central registry;

3.25.2.3. The individual does not have a record of a felony conviction;
or

3.25.2.4. The individual does not have a record of any misdemeanors
as specified above.

3.26. Confidential Data

3.26.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

3'26.2. The Contractor must ensure any staff and/or volunteers involved in
delivering services through this Agreement, sign an attestation
agreeing to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in
accordance with federal and state laws and regulations and the
Department's Exhibit K. The Contractor must ensure said individuals
have a justifiable business need to access confidential data. The
Contractor must provide attestations upon Department request.

3.26.3. Upon request, the Contractor must allow the Department to conduct
a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system. To conduct the PIA
the Contractor must provide the Department access to applicable
systems and documentation sufficient to allow the Department to
asses, at minimum, the following;

3.26.3.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

3.26.3.2. Who will have access to Pll;

3.26.3.3. How Pll will be used in the system;
Mi
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3.26.3.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked and

3.26.3.5. Privacy practices.

3.26.4. The Department may conduct follpw-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or hew technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of PH.

3.27. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

3.27.1. If applicable, ,upon termination or expiration of the Agreement, the
Parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure
transition of the services from the Contractor to the Department and,
if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the Department to assume
the services previously performed by the Contractor for this section
the new Contractor shall be known as ("Recipient"). Ninety (90) days
prior to the end-of the contract or unless otherwise specified by the
Department, the Contractor must begin working with the Department
and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan
(DTP) on a template provided by the Department.

3.27.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
connection with the transition from the performance of Services by the
Contractor and their Affiliates to the performance of such Services.
This may include assistance with the secure- transfer of records
(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data (electronic and
hard copy), the transition of such Service from the hardware,
software, network and telecommunications equipment and internet-
related information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems")
of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the Recipient and
cooperation with an assistance to any' third-party consultants
engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

3.27.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software license
("Tools") was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store
State Data in. relationship to this Contract, said Tools will be
inventoried and returned to the Department, along with the inventory
document, once transition of State Data is complete.

3.27.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor and
its Affiliates must be provided to the Department and if applicable, the
Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition Services must be
deemed to be Services for purposes of this Contract.

3.27.5. Should the Data Transitipn extend beyond the end of the Contract,
the Contractor and its Affiliates agree Contract Information Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associates Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until the
Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department, f

Mi
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3.27.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data
and the destruction of Transition of said data is not feasible, the
Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to destruction.

3.28. Website and Social Media

3.28.1. Contractor agrees that if performance of services on behalf of the
Department involves using social media or a website to solicit
information of individuals, or Confidential data, the Contractor must
work with the Department's Communication Bureau to ensure that
any social media or website designed, created, or managed on behalf
of the Department meets all of the Department's and NH Department
of Information Technology's website and social media requirements
and policies.

3.28.2. Contractor agrees that protected health information (PHI), personal
identifiable information (Pll), or other confidential information solicited
either by social media or the website that is maintained, stored or
captured must not be further disclosed, unless expressly provided in
the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of PHI, Pll, or other
confidential information is subject to the Information Security
Requirements Exhibit, the Business Associates Agreement Exhibit
and all applicable state rules and state and federal laws. Unless
specifically required by the Contract and unless clear notice is
provided to users of the website or social media, the Contractor
agrees that site visitation will not be tracked, disclosed or used for
website or social medial analytics or marketing.

3.29. Performance Measures

3.29.1. For services provided for DPHS, the Department will monitor
Contractor performance by reviewing indicated reporting
requirements on Form 1, which is attached as Attachment 3, and
Form 2, which is attached as Attachment 4, and working with the
Contractor to select areas to improve upon utilizing CQI strategies
through a data driven process.

3.29.2. For services provided for DCYF, the Department will focus on specific
data points collected through its internal data systems, monthly,
quarterly and annual submissions via email, and existing HFA data
collection reports on DCYF Key Performance Metrics, which are
attached as Attachment 5.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable 4palth

kh,
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Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

4.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement. "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for anyj^tmd all
kk
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original materials.produced, including, but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports. . •

5.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

1  5.4.1.. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and ̂regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department. f
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6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or vjsit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the' provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. If. upon review of the Final Expenditure
Report the Department must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor
as costs hereunder the Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to
deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums
from the Contractor.

— DS
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Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations

Berlin.
!

(650 Main Street Suite 200: Berlin NH'03570)

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of:

■  Atkinson and Gilmanton ■  Dummer ■ Pittsburg

Academy Grant ■  Errol ■ Randolph

■  Bean's Grant ■  Ervlngs Location ■ Riverton

■  Bean's Purchase ■  FabyanGorham • Sargent's Purchase

■  Berlin ■  Grange Greens Grant ■ Second College Grant

■  Bretton Woods ■  Groveton ■ Shelburne

■  Cambridge ■  Hadley's Purchase • South Lancaster

■  Carroll ■  Jefferson ■ Stark

■  Cascade ■  Kilkenny ■ Stewartstown

■  Chandlers Purchase ■  Lancaster ■ Stratford

■  Clarksville ■  Low and Burbank's Grant • Stratford Hollow

■  Colebrook ■  Maplewood ■ Success

f  Columbia ■  Martin's Location ■ Thompson & Meserve's

■  Coos Junction ■  Milan Purchase

■  Crawford's Purchase ■  Millsfield ■ Twin Mountain

■  Crystal ■  North Stratford ■ Wentworth's Location

■  Cutt's Grant ■  Northumberland ■ West Milan

■  Dalton ■  Odell ' West Stewartstown

■  Dix's Grant ■  Percy ■ Whitefield

■  Dixville ■  Pinkham's Grant

Littletori'

(BO North Littleton Road. Littleton. NH 03561)

Serving the cities, towns, and locations of: ■ Lisbon
■  Apthorp ■  Littleton

■  Bath ■  Livermore

■  Benton ■  Lyman

■  Bethlehem ■  Monroe

■  Bethlehem Junction ■  North Haverhill

■  Center Haverhill ■  North Woodstock

•  East Haverhill ■  Pierce Bridge

■  Easton ■  Piermont

■  Franconia ■  Pike

•  Glencliff •  Sugar Hill

■  Haverhill ■  Warren

■  Landaff ■  Woodstock

■  Lincoln ■ Woodsville
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Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations

Conway

t71 Hobbs Street. Conway NH 03818)'

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of: ■  Freedom ■ Redstone

■  Albany ■  Glen ■ Sanbornville

■  Bartlett ■  Granite ■ Sandwich

■  Brookfield ■  Male's Location ■ Silver Lake

■  Center Conway ■  Hart's Location ■ Snowville

■  Center Effingham ■  Intervale ■ South Chatham

■  Center Ossipee •  Jackson " South Effingham

■  Center Sandwich ■  Kearsarge ■ South Tamworth

■  Center Tuftonboro ■  Madison ■ Tamworth

■  Chatham ■  Melvin Village ■ Tuftonboro

■  Chocorua ■  Mirror Lake ■ Union

■  Conway •  Moultonborough ■ \Wakefield

■  East Conway ■  Moultonville ■ West Ossipee

•  East Wakefield ■  North Conway ■ Wotfeboro

■  Eaton ■  North Sandwich ■ Wolfeboro Falls

■  Effingham ■  Ossipee ■ Wonalancet

1, Claremont

n? WatenStreet. Suite 301. Oaremont 03743) ■

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of: ■  Georges Mills

■  Acworth ■  Goshen ■ Orange

■  Beauregard Village ■  Grafton ■ Orford

■  Burkehaven ■  Grantham ■ Plainfield

■  Canaan ■  Guild ■ South Acworth

■  Charlestown ■  Hanover ■ South Charlestown

■  Claremont ■  Langdon ■ Springfield

■  Cornish ■  Lebanon ■ Sunapee

■  Cornish Flat ■  Lempster ■ Unity

■  Croydon •  Lyme ■ Washington

■  East Lempster ■  Lyme Center ■ West Canaan

■  Enfield ■  Meriden ■ West Lebanon

■  Enfield Center •  Mount Sunapee ■ West Springfield

■  Etna ■  Newport ■ West Unity

Page 2 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations

Keene

(lirKev. Road. Keehe NH OS'iSl)

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of: ■  Harrisvllle ■ Sharon

■  Alstead ■  Hillsborough ■ Spofford

■  Antrim ■  Hillsborough Upper Village • Stoddard

■  Ashuelot •  HInsdale " Sullivan

■  Bennington ■  Jaffrey ■ Surry

■  Chesterfield ■  , Keene ■ Swanzey

■  Deering ■  Marlborough ■ Temple

■  Drewsville •  Marlow • Troy

■  Dublin ■  Munsonvllle ■ Walpole

■  East Sullivan ■  Nelson ■ West Chesterfield

■  East Swanzey ■  New Ipswich ■ West Deering

■  East Westmoreland ■  North Swanzey ■ West Peterborough

■  Fitzwilliam ■  North Walpole ■ West Swanzey

■  Gllsum ■  Peterborough ■ Westmoreland

■  Greenfield ■  Richmond ■ Westport

■  Greenville ■  Rindge ■ Winchester

■  Hancock ■  Roxbury ■ Windsor

Laconia

(65Beacon Street'West. Laconia NH 03246). ■

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of: ■  Ellsworth • Meredith Center

■  Alexandria ■  Gilford ■ New Hampton

■  Alton ■  Gilmanton ■ North Sanbornton

■  Alton Bay ■  Gilmanton Corners ■ Plymouth

■  Ashland ■  Gilmanton Iron Works . • Quincy

■  Barnstead ■  Glendale ■ Rumney

■  Bear Island • ■  Governor Isle ■ Sanbornton

■  Belmont ■  Groton ■ Thornton

■  Bridgewater ■  Hebron ■ Tllton

■  Bristol •  Holderness • Watervllle Valley

■  Campton ■  Laconia ■ Weirs

■  Center Barnstead ■  Lakeport ■ Wentworth

■  Center Harbor ■  Lochmere ■ West Alton

■  Dorchester ■  Lower Gilmanton ■ West Rumney

■  East Holderness ■  Meredith ■ WInnisquam
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Concord

(40 Terriii Park-.Drive} Concord NH 03301).

Serving the cities, towns, and

locations of: ■  Epsom

■  Allenstown ■  Francestown ■ Penacook

■  Andover ■  Franklin ■ PInardville

■  Blodgett Landing ■  Gerrish ■ Pittsfield

■  Boscawen ■  Goffstown ■ Potter Place

■  Bow ■  Gossville ■ Salisbury

■  Bradford •  Henniker ■ Short Falls

■  Canterbury ■  Hill ■ South Danbury

■  Chichester ■  Hooksett ■ South Sutton

■  Concord ■  Hopkinton ■ Suncook

■  Contoocook ■  Loudon ■ Sutton

•  Danbury ■  New Boston ■ Warner

■  Davisville ■  New London ■ Weare

■  Dunbarton ■  Newbury ■ Webster

■  East Andover •  North Sutton ■ Webster Lake

■  East Concord ■  North Wilmot ■ West Franklin

■  East Sutton ■  Northfield ■ Wilmot

■  Elkins ■  Pembroke ■ Wilmot Flat

Manchester

{1050 Perimeter, Suite SOii Manchester. NH 03103)

Serving the city of:

Manchester
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Rochester.

{150 Wakefield Street-Suite 22. Rochester NH 03867) .■
Serving the cities, towns, and locations of:

■  Barrington ■  Madbury
■  Center Strafford ■  Middleton

■  Dover ■  Milton

•  Durham •  • Milton Mills

■  East Rochester ■  New Durham

■  Farmington ■  Rochester

•  Gonic ■  Rollinsford

■  Lee ■  Strafford

f Seacoast

(19 Rve St Portsmouth. NH 03801).

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of:

■  Auburn ■  Hampton Beach Northwood

■  Brentwood ■  Hampton Falls Nottingham
■  Candia ■  Kensington Portsmouth

■  Danville •  Kingston Raymond
■  Deerfield ■  New Castle Rye

■  East Kingston ■  Newfields .  Rye Beach

■  Epping ■  Newington Seabrook

■  Exeter ■  Newmarket Somersworth

■  Fremont ■  Newton South Hampton

■  Greenland ■  Newton Junction Stratham

■  Hampton ■  North Hampton West Nottingham

Southern
(26 Whipple St: Nashua, NH 03060),

District Office serving the cities. Southern Telework serving the cities, towns.

towns, and locations of: and locations of:

■  Amherst "  Milford ■  Atkinson

■  Bedford ■  MontVernon ■  Chester

■  Brookline ■  Nashua ■  Derry

■  Hollis ■  North Salem ■  East Derry

■  Hudson ■  Pelham ■  East Hampstead
■  Lltchfield ■  Reeds Ferry ■  Hampstead
■  Lyndeborough ■  Salem ■  Londonderry
■  Mason ■ Wilton ■  Plaistow

■  Merrimack ■  Windham ■  Sandown
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Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

- ■ y.-:

CASELOAO'AND^CAPACITY, ANALYSIS

ss all UAs) Please do not copv this worKOook to use next month! Instead/open the file named for monthly data you are feportlng
The»New Home Visit

*Taiiuu=mm

ggsgBaiEniszrsasma
3Rg!8EgEmz6toBEliCai3B^^

nng

1.'Oick on a home visitor worksheet (HV) tab, below. Enter the home.visitor's information into theGREEN CELLS only; their Name, U hours per week paid by HFA, and % of HFA lime as a home visitor.
2. Enter the number of families on each level that the home visitor saw in the reporting month.
3.RepeatStepsl-2fofeachhomevisitorallocatedtoHFAHomeVisitingduringthemonth,inthesepar3tetabsprovided. - - • . *
4. If you have a home visitor position that Is currently vacant, please indicate this using "RECRUrTMENT* instead of the home visitor's name.
5. Click the "Capacity Analysis" .worksheet tab to review the analysis for your Local Irhp'lementing Agency this month.
NOTE: to optimize your case-assignment planning, use next,month's workbook to model your family and case-weight numbers, and see what your^er{ormance^Kujtswill_be!_^^^^^_^^^^^^_

Jirl-

■Ji:.

PLEASE FOLLOW IF.YOUR FAMILY SERVICE WORKERS CHANGED IN THE REPORTING MONTH
If your HFA home visiting staff changed, but the number pf HFA home visitors did not exceed 5, simply change the "Name of staff member" in Cell 82. Return toJHJStep 1.

If the number of HFA home visitors during the reporting month wasgreater than 5, contact the State Team for technical assistance, OR:
1. Duplicate the last FSW worksheet tab (right-dick, select "move or copy", click box "create a'copy", move to "before Capacity Analysis")
2. Update formulas in the Capacity Analysis worksheet tab to include the new FSW v/orksheet:

a. If families served, per case weight category (cells E3:I3) . " c
b. % of monthly home visitor capacity utilized (ceils E7, F7)
c. Service Utilization % (cells, £10,.F10)

Note: The # of hours paid should be the salaried or expected contracted hours forHFA only, regardless of vacation days, out of office, sick, etc. . -
NoteVThe % of time spent home visiting should.be the % of time - of the HFA hours recorded above - doing home visitirig work. For FSWs who are NOT also'doing FAVV work, the % will be 1009(.
Once the grccri cells are filled, all orarige fields and the Capacity'Analysis worksheet will auto-calculate for the individual home visitors and for your LIA ^ .
If.the total nurtiber of families or the'total weighted caseload,is above the'maximum, the corresponding field will turn red " ' : .
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Month for Caseload Analysis January 2022 Permanent Spedal Ortumstanees (PSC) families should be captured above at

their level. AND in this section if they have any of the following: need an
interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc.), have significant

additional travel time, or a child with special needs

Hire Date (New Hire urtder 2A months emp) 6/2S/2022

Name of staff member

a hours per week worked for KFA onhr

Of the hours above. K time as HFA home visitor

Caseload multiplier O.OO t of families with additional caseweight due to PSCs

levels Description
Number of

Families on level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per Level
CJ 1 LS 2 2.S 3

Extra Case

Weight

level 2P Prenatal - visits every other week during first and second trimester 2.00 0 0

level IP Prertatal • visits every week In third trimester (or earlier If needed) 2.00 0 0

First 6 months after birth or enrollment • visits every week 2.00 0 0

Visits every other week 1.00 0

Level 3 Visits once per month o.so 0 0

level ISS Crisis Intervention - visits weekly, or more If needed 3.00 0

level 4 tflsits once per Quarter 0.25 0

A.r.r»mrh (ro) TrMtive O. itrearh (CO) k ffv families tlutt r-omttlMftd ?(Ifast pne

level COl home visit but became disengaged.

CO families are given the same casewelghi they had prior to going on
CO. to ensure space if re-enEaged.

2.00 0

not aBPllcablc
level C02 1.00 0

level C03 o.so 0

Temporary Assignments (TO, TR) *" Temporarily Out of Area (TO): for,up to 3 months, famlllc-s are given

level TOl the same caseweight they had prior to going on CO, to ensure space if
re-cngaged.

2.00 0

Level T02 l.OO 0

level T03 Temporary Ae-Assignment (TA); for up to 3 months, families accept O.SO 0

Level Tft voluntary re-assignment to another FSW due to Icave.or turnover o.so 0

Actual totals 0- 0 Total additional PSC casewelghts

Maximum for fidelity 0 0. 0

HFA CAPACITY CALCULATION HDIV/OI

FSW Contribution to NASA CAPACITY CALCULATION 0.0K
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DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945^E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

Month for C3S«l09d Analysis Permanent Special Circumstances (PSC) families should be captured above at

Hire Date (New Hire under 2d months emp) 6/28/2022 their level, and in this section if they have any of the following; need an

Name of staff member interpreter, have multiple births (twirls, triplets, etc.), have slgnlficani

n hours per week worked for HFA only addltiortal travel time, or a child vrith special needs

Of the hours above, K time as KFA home visitor

Caseload multiplier 0.00 1 of famllfes with additional caseweight due to PSCs

Levels Description
.Number of

Families on Level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per Level
0.5 1 L5 2 3

Extra Case

Weight

Level 2P Prenatal • visits every other week during first and second trimester 2.00 0 0

level IP Prenatal • visits every week In third trimester (or earlier If needed) 2.00 0 0

Level 1 First 6 months after birth or enrollment - visits every week 2.00 0 0

Level 2 Visits every other week 1.00 0 0

Level 3 Visits ortee per month 0.S0 O"* 0

LevellSS Crisis Intervention - visits weekly, or more if needed 3.00 0 -  - -

Level 4 Visits orKe per quarter 0.2S 0  "

Creative Outreach (CO) Creative Outreach (00) Is fr* families that rnmnleted l^asL pnr;

level COl home visit but became disengaged. 2.00 0

Level C02 CO families are given the same caseweight they had prior to going on 1.00 0

level COS CO. to ensure space if re-engaged. O.SO 0 not applicable

Temporary Assignments (TO, TR) Temporarily Out of Area (TO); for up to 3 months, families are given —  -
-

level TOl the same caseweight they had prior to going on CO. to ensure space If 2.x 0

Level T02 re-engaged. l.X 0

level T03 Temporary Re-Asslgnment (TR); for up to 3 months, families accept

voluntary re-assignment to arwthcr FSW due to leave or turnover

0.50 0

level TR 0.50 0

Actual totals 0  - 0 Total additional PSCcasewelghts

Maximum for fidelity 0 • 0 0

HFA CAPACITY CAICUIATION ItDIV/OI

FSW Contribution to HRSA CAPACrTY CALCULATION 0.0%

Page 3 of 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B94WE54-B7D7.FF1AB932W57^^^j^^g^^ ̂  . CapaCitV AnalySiS RepOft

Month for Caseload Analyss

Name of staff member

a hours per weefc worlced for Hf A onfy

Of the hours above, * time as HFA home visitor

Caseload multiplier

Level 2P

Level 1

Description

Prenatal - visits every other week during first and second trimester

Prenatal • visits every week in third trimester |or eariier if needed)

First 6 months after birth or enrollment - visits every week

Numberof

Families on level
Weight.

Weighted Caseload

per Level

Permanent Special OrcumstaiKes (PSC) families should be captured above
at their level, AND in this section if they have any of the following: need an

interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc.), have significant
additional travel time, or a child wHh special needs

■ of famiUes with additional casewelgfit due to PSCs
Extra

Case

Wehtht

Level 2

Level 3

Level 4

Creative Outreach (CO)

Level COl

Level C02

Level CO}

Temporary Assignments (TO, TR)

Level TOl

Visits once per month

Crisis Intervention - visits weekfy, or more if needed

Visits once per Quarter

Creative Outreach (CO) is for families that eom(Heled at least'one
home visit but became disengaged.

CO families arc given tfic same casewcight they had prior to going on
CO, 10 ensure space if re-enRaged
Temporarily Out of Area (TO): for up to 3 months, families are given
the same eascweighi they had prior to going on CO. to ensure space
if re-engaged.

Temporary Re-Assignment (TR): for op to 3 months, families accept
voluntary re-assignment to another FSW due to leave or turnover

2.00 0

1.00 0

0.S0 0 not applicable

Actual totals

Maximum for fidelity

HFA CAPAOTY CALCULATION

FSW Conlribudon to HRSA CAPAOTY CALCULATION

ROIV/OI

0.0%

Total additional PSC cascweights

0

Itha j

Page 4 of 8



OocuSign En eope 9 z-iwc* ̂ hment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

Month for Caseload Analysis - Permanent Special Qrcumstances (PSC) families should be'captured above

Name of staff member at their level. AND in this section if they have any of the following: need an

a hours per week worVed for HFA onty interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc.). have signincant

Of the hours above. K time as HFA home visJtor additional travel time, or a child with special needs

Caseload multiplier 0.00 « of families with additional caseweight due to PSCs

Levels Description
Number of

Families on Level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per Level
0.S, 1 1.S 2 2J 3

Extra

Case

Weight

levef ZP Prenatal • visits every other week during first and second trimester 2.00 0 0

Level IP Prenatal • visits every week in third trimester (or earlier If needed) 2.00 0 0

level 1 First 6 months after birth or enrollment • visits every week 2.00 0 0

Level 2 Visits every other week 1.00 0 0

Level} Visits once per month 0.S0 0 0

Level ISS Crisis Intervention - visits weekly, or more if needed 3.00 0

Level 4 i^slts orKe per quarter 0.2S 0

Creative Outreach (CO) Creative Outreach ICOl is for families that comoleted at least one

Level COl home visit but became disengaged. 2.00 0

LevciCOZ CO families are given the same caseweight they had prior to going on 1.00 0

Level COS CO, to ensure space if re-engaeed. o.so 0 not ap ilicable

Temporary Assignments (TO, TR| Temporarily Out of Area (TO); for up to 3 months, families are given

Level TOl the same caseweight they had prior to going on CO. to ensure space 2.00 0

Level T02 If rc-cngaged. 1.00 0

Level T03 Temporary Re-Assignment (TR): for up to 3 months, families accept 0.S0 0

Level TR voluntary rc-assignmeni to another.FSW due to leave or turnover 0.S0 0

' Actual totals •- 0 Total additional PSC casewcights

Maximum for fidelity " '0 0 0

HFA CAPAQTY CALCULATION ffDIV/Oi

FSW Contribution to HRSA CAPACITY CALCULATION O.OK

Page 5 of 8



Docusign Envelope id: FBB™945^E54-B7D7-FF,AB932^57^^^^^g^^ ̂  - Capacity Analysis Report

Month for Caseload Analvsis • Permanent Special Orcumstances (PSC) families should be captured above

at their level. AND in this section if they have any of the following: need an
interpreter, have multiple births (twins, triplets, etc.). have signifkani

additional travel time, or a child with specbl needs

Name of staff member

9 hours per week worked for KFA only
—

Of the hours above. % time as HFA home visitor

3.00 * of families with additional casewelght due to PSCs

Levels Description
Number of

Families on level
Weight

Weighted Caseload
per level

0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 Case

Welrht

Level ZP Prenatal • visits every other week during First and secocsd trimester 2.00 0 0

level IP Prenatal • visits every week in third trimester (or earlier if needed) 2.00 0 0

First 6 months after birth or enrollment • visits every week 2.00 0 0

Visits every other week 1.00 0 0

Visits once per month 0.S0 •  0 • 0

Level ISS Crisis Intervention - wsits weekly, or more if needed 3.00 0

Level* Visits once oer Quarter 0.2S 0

TrairhM rtrrtr»-wh rmi - - - - • f/eatlveOutreaehlCOlk for families that eomoleied at least one

level COi home vteit but became disengaged.

CO families are given the same caseweight they had prior to going on
CO. to ensure space if re-ensaRed.

2.00 0

not applicable
Level C02 1.00 0

Level C03
— O.SO 0

Temperarv Assignments (TO, TTt} Tempomrily Out of Area (TO); (or up to 3 months, (amities are given

level TOl the same caseweight they had prior to going on CO. to ertsure space

if re-engaged.

Temporary Re-Assignment (TR): for up to 3 months, families accept

voluntary re-assignment to another FSW due to leave or turnover

2.00 0

level T02 1.00 0

Level T03 0.S0 0

Level TR 0.S0 ■  0"

Actual totals 0 0 Total addltioctal PSC casewrights

Maximum (or fidelity 0 0 0

HFA CAPAOTY CALCULATION «OIV/OI

FSW Contribudon to KRSA CAPAOTY CALCULATION 0.0%

Page 6 of 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457
MLidchment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

Month (or Caseload Anatysis Permanent Special OrcumstarKes (PSC) families should be captured above

Name of staff member at their level, AND in this section if they have any of the following: need an

• hours per week worked for HFA onfy interpreter, Itave multiple births (twins, triplets, etc), have significant

Of the hours above, time as HFA home visitor additional travel time, or a child with soecial r:eeds

Caseload multiplier 0.00 • of families with additional caseweight due to PSCs

levels Description
Number of

Families on Level
Weight

Weighted Caseload

per level
0.5 1 1.5 2 2,5 3

Extra

Case

WeMt

Level 2P Prenatal - visits every other week during fint and second trimester 2,00 0 0

Level 1? Prenatal • visits every week in tfurd trimester (or earlier U needed) 2.00 0 0

Level 1 First 6 months after birth or enrollment • visits every week 2.00 0 0

Level 2 Visits every other week 1.00 0 0

level 3 Visits otKe per month 0.S0 0 0

Level ISS Crisis Intervention - visits weekly, or more If tteeded 3.00 0 •

Level 4 Visits once per quarter 0.2S 0

Creative Outreach (CO) Creative Dutrearh (rO» is for famiRes that mmpleted at least one

Level COl home visit but became disengaged. 2.00 0

level C02 CO families are given the same cascwcight they had prior to going on 1.00 0

Level C03 CO, to eruure space if re-enjtaeed. o.so 0 not aoollcable

Temporary Asslenments (TO, TR) Temporarily Out of Area (TO): for up to 3 months, families arc given

level TOl the same caseweight they had prior to going on CO, to ensure space 2,00 0

Level T02 if re-engaged. 1.00 0

Level T03 Temporary Re-Assignment (TR); for up to 3 months, families accept ' O.SO 0

LevelTR voluntary re-assignment to another FSW doe to leave or turnover o.so 0

Actual totals " 0 0. Total addidenal PSC casewclghts

Maximum for fidelity 0 0 0

HFA CAPAOTY CALCULATION ■oiv/oi
FSW Contribution to HRSA CAPAOTY CALCULATION 0.0«
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DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54.B707-FF1AB932B457
Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report

LIA^MONTHLYiCApACITY/ANALYSIS

Ca$e-Wclght Categories:

3 2 ■ 1 0.5 0.25 Total

It Families Served per category 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 Funded ■t "> 23 •

HFA% HR5A% Difference

% of Monthly HV Capacity Utilized 0D1V/O! - 0% fJDIV/0!

Prenatal Level 1-4 Temporary Permanent

Service Utilization 0 0 0 0  ■

Families in Case-Weight Categories L1A Capacity Utilized, All FSWs

120%

100%,

80%

60%

<10%

20%

0%

% of MonlKly HV Capacity Ulilited

»«HFA%

UHRSA%

Service Utilization

Service Utilitation

a Temporary
Qfcumstanees (SS.
CO, TO. TR)

B Permanertt Special
ClreuiT«(ar»ees
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OocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54.B7D7-FF1AB932B457

OMB No: 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

Attachment 3 - FORM 1

THE MATERNAL, INFANT, AND EARLY CHILDHOOD HOME VISITING
PROGRAM

DEMOGRAPHIC, SERVICE UTILIZATION, AND SELECT CLINICAL
INDICATORS

Public Burden Statement: An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB
control number. The OMB control number for this project is 0906-0017. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 560 hours per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to HRSA Reports Clearance OfTicer, 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 10-29,
Rockville, Maryland, 20857.

July 24, 2018 I



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457 Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMBNo: 09064)017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

SECTION A: PARTICIPANT DEMOGRAPHICS

Table 1: Unduplicnted Count of New and Continuing Program Participants Served by MIECHV

Participants Number Newly Enrolled Number Continuing During Reporting Period Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children (Auto Calculate) -

Notes:

Table 2: Unduplicated Count of Households Served by.MIECHV

Households Number Newlv Enrolled Number Continuing During Reporting Period Total

Number of Households

Notes:

Table 3: Unduplicated Count of Participants and Households Ser\'ed by State Home Visiting Programs (non-MIECHV)

Participants and Households Total Number Ser\'ed during Reporting Period

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children (Auto Calculate)

Number of Households

Notes:

July 24,2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: F8890924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457 Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906-0017

Expiration Dale: 07/31/2021

Table 4: Adult Participants by Age

Adult Participants <17 18-19 20-21 22-24 25-29 30-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >65 Unknown/Did not Report* Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 5: Index Children by Age

index Children <1 year 1-2 years 3-4 years 5-6 years Unknown/Did not Report* Total

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children (Auto Calculate)

When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if
possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

!□Notes:

Table 6: Participants by Ethnicity

Participants Hispanic or Latino Not Hispanic or Latino Unknown/Did not Report* Total

Pregnant Women
Female Caregivers •'

Male Caregivers
All Adults (Auto Calculate)
Female Index Children
Male Index Children

AH Index Children (Auto Calculate)
When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457 Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No; 0906-0017

ExpirndoD Date: 07/31/2021

Notes:

Table 7: Participants by Race

Participants American Indian

or Alaska Native

Asian Black or African

American

Native Hawaiian or

Other Pacific Islander

White More than

one race

Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto

Calculate) •

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children

(Auto Calculate)

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 8: Adult Participants by Marital Status

Adult

Participants

Never Married (Excluding Not
Married but Living Together
with Partner)

Married Not Married but

Living Together with

Partner

Separated/DivorcedAVidowed Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

Pregnant Women

Female

Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto

Calculate)

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 24, 2018



OocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54.B7D7-FF1AB932B457 Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMBNo: 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

Notes:

Table 9: Adult Participants by Educational Attainment

Adult

Participants

Less than

HS

diploma

HS

Diploma/GED
Some

college/

training

Technical

training or

certification

Associate's

Degree
Bachelor's

Degree or

higher

Other Unknown/Did

not Report*

Total

Pregnant

Women

Female

Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults

(Auto

Calculate)

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 10: Adult Participants by Employment Status

Adult Participants Employed Full Time Employed Part-Time Not employed Unknown/Did not Report* Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457 Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

Table 11: Adult Participants by Housing Status

Not Homeless Total

Not

Homele

ss

Homeless Total

Homele

ss

IJnknown/D

id not

Report*

Tota

1

Adult

Participan

ts

Owns or

shares own

home,

condominiu

m, or

apartment

Rents or

shares

own

home or

apartme

nt

Lives

in

public
housin

S

Lives

with

parent

or

family
membe

r

Some

other

arrangeme

nt

Homele

ss and

sharing
housing

Homeless

and living
in an

emergenc

y or

transition

al shelter

Some

other

arrangeme

nt

Pregnant
Women

Female

Caregivers
•

Male

Caregivers

All Adults

(Auto
Calculate)

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 12: Primary Language Spoken at Home

Inde.x Children Number Percent

English

Spanish

Other

Unknown/Did Not Report* •

All Index Children (Auto Calculate) 100

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457 Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMBNo: 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

Notes:

Table 13: Household Income in Relation to Federal Poverty Guidelines

Households Number of Households Percent

50% and under

51-100%

101-133%

134-200%

201-300%

>300%

Unknown/Did not Report*

AH Households (Auto Calculate) 100

When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if
possible, pjans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 14: For Each Household Indicate the Prioritj- Population Characteristics

Households

Yes No

Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

1. Low income household

2. Household contains an enrollee who is pregnant and under age 21

3. Household has a history of child abuse or neglect or has had interactions with child welfare services

4. Household has a history of substance abuse or needs substance abuse treatment

5. Someone in the household uses tobacco products in the home

6. Someone in the household has attained low student,achievement or has a child with low student
achievement

7. Household has a child with developmental delays or disabilities

8: Household includes individuals who are serving or formerly served in the US armed forces

* When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if
possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457 Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

SECTION B: SERVICE UTILIZATION

Table 15: Service Utilization

Home Visits Number

Total Number of Home Visits completed

ZlNotes:

Table 16: Family Engagement by Household

Households Number of Households Percent

Currently receiving services

Completed program

Stopped services before completion

Enrolled but not currently receiving services/Other

Unknown/Did not Report*

All Categories (Auto Calculate)

When the percent of data that is "Unknown/Did not Report" is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing data, and if
possible, pians to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 17: Unduplicated Count of Households by Evidence-Based Home Visiting Model or Promising Approach

Home Visiting Model (Select One per Row - Add Rows for Additional
Models)

Number Newly
Enrolled

Number Continuing During Reporting
Period

Total

Notes:

July 24, 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457
Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906-0017

Expiralioo Dale: 07/31/2021

SECTION C: INSURANCE AND CLINICAL INDICATORS

Table 18: Participants by Type of Health Insurance Coverage

Participants No Insurance

Coverage

Medicaid or

CHIP

Tri-

Care

Private or

Other

Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

Pregnant Women

Female Caregivers

Male Caregivers

All Adults (Auto Calculate)

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children (Auto
Calculate)

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

Table 19: Index Children by Usual Source of Medical Care

Index Children Doctor's/Nurse

Practitioner's

Office

Hospital
Emergency
Room

Hospital
Outpatient

Federally
Qualified
Health Center

Retail Store

or Minute

Clinic

Other None Unknown/Did

not Report*

Total

Female Index

Children

Male Index

Children

All Index

Children (Auto
Calculate)

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

July 24, 2018



OocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457 Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OiMB No: 0906-0017

Expiration Dale: 07/31/2021

Table 20: Index Children ̂  12 months of age) by Usual Source of Dental Care

Index Children Have a Usual Source of Dental

Care

Do not have a Usual Source of Dental

Care

Unknown/Did not

Report*

Total

Female Index Children

Male Index Children

All Index Children (Auto
Calculate)

possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

Notes:

July 24,2018 10



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D924-B945-4E54.B7D7-FF1AB932B457 AttachmCIlt 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906^017

Expiration Dale: 07/31/2021

DEFINITIONS OF KEY TERMS

July 24, 2018 11



OocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D92'^B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457
Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMBNo; 0906-0017

Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

Table

Number

Field Key Terms Requiring Definitions

All

Tables

MIECHV Household: For the purposes of reporting to HRSA on Form I, a "MIECHV household" is defined as a
family served during the reporting period by a trained home visitor implementing services with fidelity to the model
and that is identified as a MIECHV household at enrollment. HRSA has identified two different methods that can be

used to identify MIECHV households that are described below:

1. Home Visitor Personnel Cost Method (preferred method): Households are designated as MIECHV at
enrollment based on the designation of the home visitor they are assigned. Using this methodology, recipients
designate all households as MIECHV that are served by home visitors for whom at least 25 percent of his/her
personnel costs (salary/wages including benefits) are paid for with MIECHV funding.

2. Enrollment Slot Method (temporary option): Households are designated as MIECHV households based on the
slot they are assigned to at enrollment. Using this methodology, recipients identify certain slots as MIECHV-
funded and assign households to these slots at enrollment in accordance with the terms of the contractual
agreement between the MIECHV state recipient and the LI A regardless of the percentage of the slot funded by
MIECHV.

Once designated as a MIECHV household, the household is tracked for the purposes of data collection through the
tenure of household participation in the program.

Unduplicated Count of New
and Continuing Program
Participants. Served by
MIECHV

New Participant: A participant, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, or male caregiver, who signs up to
participate in the home visiting program at any time during the reporting period who was identified as being part of
a MIECHV household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the
Definition of Key Terms).

Continuing Participant: A participant, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, or male caregiver, who was
signed up and actively enrolled in the home visiting program prior to the beginning of the reporting period who was
identified as being part of a MIECHV household at enrollment (see'definition of a MIECHV Household included at
the beginning of the Definition of Key Terms).

Pregnant women are participants who were either pregnant at enrollment or pregnant at the annual update of
information in a subsequent reporting period.

Female caregivers are those female household members who are enrolled in the program during the reporting
period, are considered a caregiver of the index child, and were not pregnant at the time of enrollment or the annual
update of this information (e.g., biological mothers, adoptive mothers, foster mothers, grandmothers).

July 24,2018 12



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457
Attachment 3 - FORM 1

OMB No: 0906-0017

CxpiralioD Dale: 07/31/2021

Male caregivers include those male household members (e.g. expectant fathers, biological fathers, step-fathers, and
partners) who also meet the definition of an cnrollee.

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and was identified as being part of a MIECHV household
at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key Terms).
More than one index child per household can be identified.

2 Unduplicotcd Count of
Household Serx'ed by
MIECHV

New Household: A household, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, and/or male caregiver who signs up
to participate in the home visiting program at any time during the reporting period. The household may include
multiple caregivers depending on model-specific definitions.

Continuing Household: A household, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, and/or male caregiver who
were signed up and actively enrolled in the home visiting program prior to the beginning of the reporting period.
The household mav include multiple caregivers depending on model-specific definitions.

3 Unduplicated Count of
Participants and
Households Served by State
Home Visiting Programs
(non-MlECHV)

Participant Served by a State Home Visiting Program (non-MIECHV): A participant, including a pregnant
woman, female caregiver, or male caregiver, who signs up to participate in the home visiting program at any time
during the reporting period who was identified as being part of a non-MIECHV household at enrollment (see
definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key Terms).

4 Adult Participants by Age Adult Participants: includes the person or persons in the household who signed up to participate in the home
visiting program (e.g., a teenage parent would be counted as an adult.participant but not an index child). The
category can include more than one member of the household if more than one individual are enrolled in the
program (e.g., a father and a mother have both signed up to participate). It should include at a minimum for every
household the primary caregiver of the index child.

5 Index Children by Age Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and who was identified as being part of a MIECHV
household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key
Terms). More than one index child per household can be identified.

6 Participants by Ethnicity ' The responses regarding ethnicity should reflect what the person considers herself/himself to be and are not based
on percentages of ancestry. If ethnicity is unknown or not reported for some participants, enter that count in the
respective "Unknown/Did not report" column.

7 Participants by Race The responses regarding race should reflect what the person considers herself/himself to be and are not based on
percentages of ancestry'. Participants who select more than one race should be reported in the "More than one race"
category. If ethnicity and race are unknown or not reported for some participants, enter that count in the respective
"Unknown/Did not Report" columns.

8 Adult Participants by
Marital Status

Adult Participants: includes the person or persons in the household who signed up to participate in the home
visiting program (e.g., a teenage parent would be counted as an adult participant but not an index child). The
category can include more than one member of the household if more than one individual are enrolled in the
program (e.g., a father and a mother have both signed up to participate). It should include at a minimum for every
household the primary caregiver of the index child.
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If more than one individual is enrolled in the program, enter the status for all enrollees. For example, if a pregnant
woman is enrolled with her spouse in the program, both participants would be counted under the married category.
AdAdult Participants by

Educational Attainment

ult Participants: includes the person or persons in the household who signed up to participate in the home
visiting program (e.g., a teenage parent would be counted as an adult participant but not an index child). The
category can include more than one member of the household if more than one individual are enrolled in the
program (e.g., a father and a mother have both signed up to participate). It should include at a minimum for every
household the primarj' caregiver of the index child.

Less than high school diploma includes individuals who have not completed their high school education.

The Some college/training category includes those who are currently enrolled and those who attended in the past.

The Technical training or certification category includes those who received technical training or certification in
the past.

The Associate's Degree category includes those who obtained an Associate's Degree.

The Bachelor's Degree category includes those who obtained a Bachelor's Degree.

The Other category includes those individuals who did not fall into the specified categories.
10 Adult Participants by

Employment Status

Employed: refers to whether the person is currently working for pay.

Employed Full Tiine: an employee who works an average of at least 30 hours per week

Employed Part Time: an employee who works an average of less than 30 hours per week'

Not Employed: indicates that the person is not working for pay (this category may include, for example, students,
homemakers and those enrollees actively seeking work but currently not employed)

11 Adult Participants by
Housing Status

Not homeless: individuals who have a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence (within the meaning of
section 103(a)( I) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act); and

Not homeless and lives in public housing: individuals who live in a public housing unit that is
administered by a public housing agency (excludes individuals who utilize housing voucher programs)

Homeless: individuals who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence (within the meaning of section
103(a)(1) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act); and

' Healthcarc.gov Glossary', httos://w\\'w.hcalthcarc.gov/Elossarv7fii[l-timc-cmnlovcc/
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Homeless and sharing housing: individuals who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of
housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason

Homeless and living in an emergency or transitional shelter: individuals who are living in emergency
or transitional shelters; are abandoned in hospitals; or are awaiting fester care placement

Homeless and some other arrangement: individuals who are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or
camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations; individuals who have a primary
nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping
accommodation for human beings (within the meaning of section 103(a)(2)(C)); individuals who are living
in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar
settings^

12 Primary Language Spoken
at Home

Primary language: the language used in the home the majority of the time.

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and was served by a trained home visitor implementing
services with fidelity to the model who was identified as being part of a MIECHV household at enrollment (see
definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key Terms). More than one
index child per household can be identified.

13 Household Income in

Relation to Federal Poverty
Guidelines

The appropriate category for a given family will depend both on household income and on the number of household
mernbers counted in the household (both home visiting enrollees and non-enrollees). Household income refers to
the annual gross income for the household as defined in programmatic guidance, recorded at enrollment and
annually thereafter.

Federal Poverty Guidelines: Annual income data can be estimated from monthly data (monthly income x 12). The
HHS Poverty Guidelines are updated annually in February and published in the Federal Register. See
httos://asDe.hhs.sov/DOvertv-euidelines.

14 For Each Household

Indicate the Priority
Population Characteristics

Low-Income: An individual or family with an income determined to be below the Federal Poverty Guidelines. The
HHS Poverty Guidelines are updated annually in February and published in the Federal Register. See
https://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty-guidelines.

Pregnant women under 21: Households with expectant mothers who enroll in the program and are under 21 years
old during the reporting period.

Have a historj' of.child abuse or neglect or have had interactions with child welfare services: Based on self-
report, a household with members who have a history of abuse or neglect and have had involvement with child
welfare services either as a child or as an adult.

^ Administration for Children and Families. Early Childhood Learning and Knowledge Center, 2014, httD7/cclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.eov/hslc/tta-SN'stcm/ramilv/familv/Homclcssncss/hml5/derinilion/derinition-
leeal-html
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Have a history of substance abuse or need substance abuse treatment; Based on self-report, a household with
members who have a history of substance abuse or who have been identified as needing substance abuse services
through a substance abuse screening administered upon enrollment.

Arc users of tobacco products in the home; Based on self-report, a household with members who use tobacco
products in the home or who have been identified as using tobacco through a substance abuse screening
administered during intake. Tobacco use is defined as combustibles (cigarettes, cigars, pipes, hookahs, bidis), non-
combustibles (chew, dip, snuff, snus, and dissolvables), and electronic nicotine delivery systems (ENDS).

Have, or have children with, low student achievement: Based on self-report, a household with members who
have perceived themselves or their child(ren) as having low student achievement.

Have a child or children with developmental delays or disabilities: Based on self-report or home visitor/staff
observation, a household with members who have a child or children suspected of having a developmental delay or
disability.

•Are in families that are or have served in the armed forces: Based on self-report, households that include
individuals who are serving or formerly served in the Armed Forces, including such households that have members
of the Armed Forces who have had multiple deployments outside of the United States. For this criterion, definition
includes a military member's dependent acquired through marriage, adoption, or other action during the course of a
member's current tour of assigned duty.

15 Service Utilization Home visit refers to the definition of a completed home visit enacted by the various evidence-based home visiting
models approved for implementation through the MIECHV program or a Promising Approach. Please refer to
model-specific guidance for specific definitions.

16 Family Engagement by
Household

Currently receiving services refers to families that are participating in services at the end of the reporting period.

Completed program refers to families who have completed the program according to model-specific definitions
and criteria during the reporting period.

Stopped services before completion refers to families who leff the program for any reason prior to completion.

Enrolled but not currently receiving services/Other refers to those families who do not fall into the previous
categories and may include unreachable participants (i.e. the family is not regularly participating but did not
actively sever tics, etc.)

17 Unduplicntcd Count of
Households by Evidence-
Based Home Visiting Model
or Promising Approach

A Household, including a pregnant woman, female caregiver, and/or male caregiver who were signed up and
actively enrolled in the home visiting program prior to the beginning of or during the reporting period and continues
enrollment during the reporting period. The household may include multiple caregivers depending on model-
specific definitions.
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IS Participants by Type of
Health Insurance Coverage

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and who was identified as being part of a MIECHV
household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key
Terms). More than one index child per household can be identified.

The insurance coverage categories are mutually exclusive. No insurance coverage indicates that the individual is
currently not covered by any source of insurance. This table is intended to capture insurance status, not health care
access: receipt of care provided for instance by the Indian Health Service or another safety net health care provider
«;nch as a Federallv Qualified Health Center does not constitute insurance coverage.

19 Index Children by Usual
Source of Medical Care

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and who was identified as being part of a MIECHV
household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key
Terms). More than one index child per household can be identified.

Usual source of care: the particular medical professional, doctor's office, clinic, health center, or other place where
a person would usually go if sick or in need of advice about his or her health.

20 Index Children (> 12
months of age) by Usual
Source of Dental Care

Index Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry): the child (or children) in an individual household who is under the
care of the enrollee(s) and who is enrolled in the program and who was identified as being part of a MIECHV
household at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the beginning of the Definition of Key
Terms). More than one index child per household can be identified.

Usual source of dental care: a usual source of dental care, or dental home, is a place where a child can receive
consistent, comprehensive, compassionate dental care. The concept of the Dental Home reflects the AAPD's clinical
guidelines and best principles for the proper delivery of oral health care to all children, with a concentration on
infant/age one patients and should be established no later than 12 months of age. ̂

' American Academy of Pediatric Dcntisuy. Dental Home Resource Center, ht(p://^•\^^^\^■napd.org/advocac^^/dcntalhomc/
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THE MATERNAL, INFANT, AND EARLY CHILDHOOD
HOME VISITING PROGRAM

PERFORMANCE AND SYSTEMS OUTCOME
MEASURES

Public Burden Statement: An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a
collection of information unless it displays a currently valid 0MB control number. The 0MB control number for
this project is 0906-0017. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 200
hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, and completing
and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of
this.collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to HRSA Reports Clearance Officer,
5600 Fishers Lane, Room 10-29, Rockville, Maryland, 20857.
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MEASURE 1

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: PRETERM BIRTH

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of infants (among mothers who enrolled In home visiting prenatally before 37 weeks) who arc born preter
following program enrollment

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of live births (index child or subsequent children among mothers who enrolled in home
visiting prenatally before 37 weeks) born before 37 completed weeks of gestation and after enrollment

DENOMINATOR: Number of live births after enrollment who were born to mothers enrolled in home
visiting prenatally before 37 weeks

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator;

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. All cases

of missing data should be excluded from the
measure calculation.

7.

NOTES

♦Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 19,2018 Page 2 of32



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

Attachment 4 - FORM 2

0MB No: 0906-0017

Expiration Dale: 07/31/2021

MEASURE 2

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: BREASTFEEDING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of infants (among mothers who enrolled In home visiting prenatally) who were breastfed any amount
at 6 months of age

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of infants aged 6-12 months (index child among mothers who enrolled in home
visiting prenatally) who were breastfed any amount at 6 months of age

DENOMINATOR: Number of infants aged 6-12 months (index child among mothers who enrolled in home visiting
prenatally) enrolled in home visiting for at least 6 months

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 3

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: DEPRESSION SCREENING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary carcgivcrs enrolled in home visiting who arc screened for depression using a validated
tool within 3 months of enrollment (for those not enrolled prenatally) or within 3 months of delivery (for
those enrolled prenatally)

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: For those not enrolled prenatally, number of primary carcgivcrs enrolled in home visiting
who arc screened for depression within the first 3 months since enrollment; for those enrolled prenatally, the number of
primary carcgivcrs screened for depression within 3 months of delivery

DENOMINATOR: For those not enrolled prenatally, the number of primary carcgivcrs enrolled in home visiting for at
least 3 months; for those enrolled prenatally, the number of primary carcgivcrs enrolled in
home visiting for at least three months post delivery

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator;

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. When

there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, but all other data
elements arc known, then the primary caregiver
should be included in the denominator (if eligible),
but not in the numerator. All cases of missing data
should be excluded from the measure calculation.
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7.

NOTES

8. Measurement Tool Utilized

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note; When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 4

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT; WELL CHILD VISIT

2.
TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.
PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting who received the last recommended visit based on the
American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) schedule

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting who received the last
recommended well child visit based on the AAP schedule

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:
Denominator:

6.
MISSING DATA*

6.n. Deflnitlon

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the
numerator or denominator are unknown, including
if a home visit occurred but the home visitor did not
collect the data. All cases of missing data should be
excluded from the measure calculation.

7.
NOTES

missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting;
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MEASURES

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: POSTPARTUM CARE

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of mothers enrolled in home visiting prenatally or xvithin 30 days after delivery who received a postpartum
visit with a healthcare provider within 8 weeks (56 days) of delivery

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of mothers enrolled in home visiting prenatally or within 30 days after delivery
who received a postpartum visit with a healthcare provider within 8 weeks (56 days) of delivery

DENOMINATOR: Number of mothers who enrolled in home visiting prenatally or within 30 days after
delivery and remained enrolled for at least 8 weeks (56 days) after delivery

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. All cases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 6

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: TOBACCO CESSATION REFERRALS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting who reported using tobacco or cigarettes at
enrollment and were referred to tobacco cessation counseling or services within 3 months of enrollment.

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primarj' caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting who reported using tobacco or cigarettes
enrollment and were referred to tobacco cessation counseling or services within 3 months of enrollment

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting who reported using tobacco or
cigarettes at enrollment and were enrolled for at least 3 months

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator;

Value:

Denominator;

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown, including
if there is no documentation of whether the primary
caregiver used tobacco or cigarettes at enrollment
since inclusion in the denominator cannot be

determined if the screening result is unknown. When
there is no documentation of whether a referral was

provided, but all other data elements are known and
inclusion in the denominator can be determined,
then the primary caregiver should be included in the
denominator (if eligible), but not in the numerator.
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All cases of missing data should be excluded from the
measure calculation.

7.

NOTES

• Note; When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 19, 2018
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MEASURE 7

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: CHILD INJURIES, ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND MALTREATMENT AND EMERGENCY
DEPARTMENT VISITS

CONSTRUCT: SAFE SLEEP

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of infants enrolled in home visiting that arc always placed to sleep on their backs, without
bed-sharing and without soft bedding

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of infants (index child aged less than 1 year) enrolled in home visiting whose
primary caregiver reports that they are always placed to sleep on their backs, without bed-sharing and without soft
bedding

DENOMINATOR: Number of infants (index child) enrolled in home visiting who were aged less than 1 year during
the reporting period

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURES

BENCHMARK AREA: CHILD INJURIES, ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND MALTREATMENT AND EMERGENCY
DEPARTMENT VISITS

CONSTRUCT: CHILD INJURY

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Rate of injury-related visits to the Emergency Department (ED) during the reporting period among children enrolled in
home visiting

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of parent-reported nonfatal injur>'-rclated visits to the ED during the reporting period among
children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (rate) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the
numerator or denominator are unknown. All cases of
missing data should be excluded front the measure
calculation.

-

7.

NOTES

missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 9

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: CHILD INJURIES, ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND MALTREATMENT AND EMERGENCY
DEPARTMENT VISITS

CONSTRUCT: CHILD MALTREATMENT

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting with at least 1 investigated case of maltreatment following enrollment
within the reporting period

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting with at least 1 investigated case
of maltreatment following enrollment within the reporting period

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator;

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Dennition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 10

I.

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: PARENT-CHILD INTERACTION

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting who receive an observation of caregivcr-child interaction by
the home visitor using a validated tool

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary carcgivers enrolled in home visiting who receive an observation of carcgiver-chil
interaction by the home visitor using a validated tool

DENOMINATOR: Number of primarj' caregivcrs enrolled in home visiting with children reaching the
target age range

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are' unknown. When

there is no documentation of whether the index child

received an observation of caregivcr-child
interaction by the home visitor using a validated tool,
but all other data elements arc known, then the index
child should be included in the denominator (if
eligible), but not in the numerator. All cases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.
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7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utilized

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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Expiration Date: 07/31/2021

MEASURE 11

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: EARLY LANGUAGE AND LITERACY ACTIVITIES

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Pcrforninncc Indicntor

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting with n family member who reported that during a typical week
s/hc read, told stories, and/or sang songs with their child daily, every day

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in ho^me visiting with a family member who
reported that during a typical week s/hc read, told stones, and/or sang songs with their child daily, every day

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage)

Value:

Numerator:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

7.

NOTES

Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 12

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: DEVELOPMENTAL SCREENING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting with a timely screen for developmental delays using a validated parent-
completed tool

4.

SPECIFICATION
•

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting with at least one screening
within the AAP-dcfincd age groups during the reporting period

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting reaching the specined time
frame during the reporting period

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percenlage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. When

there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, but all other data
elements are known, then the child should be
included in the denominator (if eligible), but not in
the numerator. AH cases of missing data should be
excluded from the measure calculation.

7.

NOTES
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8.

Measurement Tool Utilised

Indicate the validated measurement top](s) utilized to address this measure

♦Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 13

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: BEHAVIORAL CONCERNS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of postnatal home visits where primary caregivers were asked if they have any concerns regarding their
chiUrs development, behavior, or learning

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of postnatal home visits where primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting were asked if they
have any concerns regarding their child's development, behavior, or learning

DENOMINATOR: Total number of postnatal home visits during the reporting period

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are eonsidered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown. If a home

visit occurred, but there is no documentation of
whether the primary carcgiver was asked about
behavioral concerns, then the home visit should be
included in the denominator (if eligible - i.e.,
postnatal visit), but not in the numerator. All cases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES
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* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 14

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: CRIME OR DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

CONSTRUCT: INTIMATE PARTNER VIOLENCE SCREENING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary cnregivers enrolled in home visiting who arc screened for intimate partner violence (IPV)
within 6 months of enrollment using a validated tool

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of prlmar>' caregivers enrolled in home visiting who arc screened for IPV using a validated tool
within 6 months of enrollment

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting for at least 6 months

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Derinition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. When

there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool (including if a
screening did not occur because the caregiver was
male and they only have validated tools for use
among female caregivers), but all other data
elements are known, then the primary caregiver
should be included in the denominator (if eligible),
but not in the numerator. All cases of missing data
should be excluded from the measure calculation.
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7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utilized

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is > 10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 15

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: FAMILY ECONOMIC SELF-SUFFICIENCY

CONSTRUCT: PRIMARY CAREGIVER EDUCATION

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary caregivers who enrolled in home visiting without n high school degree or equivalent who subsequently
enrolled in or maintained continuous enrollment in middle school or high school, or completed high school or equivalent
during their participation in home visiting

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primar)' caregivers who enrolled in or maintained continuous enrollment in middle school or
high school, or completed a high school degree or equivalent after enrollment in home visiting (and met the conditions
specified in the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caregivers without a high school degree or equivalent at enrollment

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note; When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing
data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 16

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: FAMILY ECONOMIC SELF-SUFFICIENCY

CONSTRUCT: CONTINUITY OF INSURANCE COVERAGE

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary careglvers enrolled in home visiting who had continuous health insurance coverage for at least 6
consecutive months

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary careglvers enrolled in home visiting who reported having health
insurance coverage for at least 6 consecutive months since enrollment in home visiting

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting for at least 6 months

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

'' Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 17

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: COORDINATION AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER COMMUNITY RESOURCES AND
SUPPORTS

CONSTRUCT; COMPLETED DEPRESSION REFERRALS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary cnregivers referred to services for a positive screen for depression who receive one or
more service contacts

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting who received recommended
services for depression (and met the conditions specified in the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting who had a positive screen for depression
within 3 months of enrollment (for those not enrolled prcnatally) or within 3 months of delivery (for those enrolled
prcnatally) and were referred for services

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator;

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown, including
if there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, since inclusion in the
denominator cannot be determined if the screening
result is unknown. Data are also considered missing
if there is no documentation of whether a referral

was provided. All cases of missing data.should be
excluded from the measure calculation.
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7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utilized

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 18

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: COORDINATION AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER COMMUNITY RESOURCES AND
SUPPORTS

CONSTRUCT; COMPLETED DEVELOPMENTAL REFERRALS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

••

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting with positive screens for developmental delays (measured using
a validated tool) who receive services in a timely manner

4.

SPECIFICATION •

NUMERATOR: Number of children enrolled in home visiting who a) received individualized developmental support
from a home visitor; b) were referred to early intervention services and receive an evaluation within
45 days; OR c) were referred to other community services who received services within 30 days (and met the conditior
specified in the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of children enrolled in home visiting with positive screens for developmental
delays (measured using a validated tool)

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator are unknown, including
if there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, since inclusion in the
denominator cannot be determined if the screening
result is unknown. When there is no documentation

of whether a referral was provided, but all other
data elements arc available and inclusion in the

denominator can be determined, then the primary
carcgivcr should be included in the denominator (if
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eligible), but not in the numcrntor. All cases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utiiixcd

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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MEASURE 19

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: COORDINATION AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER COMMUNITY RESOURCES AND
SUPPORTS

CONSTRUCT: INTIMATE PARTNER VIOLENCE REFERRALS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary careglvers enrolled in home visiting with positive screens for IPV (measured using a validated tool) who
receive referral information to IPV resources

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary carcgivers enrolled in home visiting who received referral information
to IPV resources (and met the conditions specified in the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary carcgivers enrolled in home visiting with positive screens for IPV (measured using a
validated tool) within 6 months of enrollment

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Denominator;

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Data are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the

numerator or denominator arc unknown, including
if there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, since inclusion in the
denominator cannot be determined if the screening
result is unknown. When there is no documentation

of whether a referral was provided, but all other

data elements are available and inclusion in the

denominator can be determined, then the primary
caregiver should be included in the denominator (if
eligible), but not in the numerator. All cases of
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missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utilized

Indicate the validated measurement tool(s) utilized to address this measure

* Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the missing
data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.
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DEFINITIONS OF KEY TERMS
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Construct

Number

Construct Key Term Definitions

1. Preterm Birth Preterm Birth: a birth before 37 completed weeks of gestation (defined as up to 36 weeks and
6 days).'

2. Breastfeeding Breastfeeding: in addition to breast milk fed directly from the mother to the infant,
breastfeeding also includes feeding the infant pumped or expressed breast milk.

3. Depression
Screening

Depression: aligned with each grantee's validated depression screening tool's definition of
depression.

4. Well-Child Visit AAP schedule for Well-Child Visits: Updated AAP 2017 Recommendations for Pediatric
Preventive Health Care http$://www.aap.org/en-us/Documents/periodicity schedule.pdf

5. Postpartum Care Postpartum Care Visit: A postpartum visit is a visit between the woman and her health care
provider to assess the mother's current physical health, including the status of pregnancy-related
conditions like gesiational diabetes, screen for postpartum depression, provide counseling on
infant care and family planning as well as screening and referrals for the management of
chronic conditions. Additionally, a provider may use this opportunity to conduct a breast exam*
and discuss breastfeeding. The American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists
recommends that mothers receive a postpartum care visit within 6 weeks after delivery. -

6. Tobacco Cessation

Referrals

Tobacco Use: combustibles (cigarettes, cigars, pipes, hookahs, bidis), non-combustibles (chew,
dip, snufT, snus, and dissolvables). and ENDS.

7. Safe Sleep No definitions required

8. Child Injury Injury-related Emergency Department Visit: Injuries refer to the following causes of
mechanisms of injury: motor vehicle, suffocation, drowning, poisoning, fire/burns, falls, sports
and recreation, and intentional injuries, such as child maltreatment.'

9. Child

Maltreatment

Investigated Case: all children with an allegation of maltreatment that were screened-in for
investigation or assessment and further received an investigation. ̂  A screened-in report is one
that is accepted for investigation or assessment based on the state's screen-in criteria.'

10. Parent-Child

Interaction

No definitions required

11. Early Language

and Literacy
Activities

No definitions required

12. Developmental
Screening

Developmental Delay: delays in any or all areas including cognitive, social, language, sensory.

^ Bchrman R, Stiih Butler A. cds. Prctcrm Birth: Causes, Consequences, and Prevention. Washington, DC: The National Academics Press, 2007.
^ Optimizing poslpartum care. Committee Opinion No. 666. American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists. Obstct Gynccol 2016; 127:e 187-92. Retrieved from https://wvvw.acog.org/-
/mcdia/Committee-Opinions/Committee-on-Obstetric-Practicc/co666.pdf?dmc=l&ts=20l8022ITI421452301
' Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. National Action Plan for Child Injury Prevention. 2012. Retrieved from http://w\vw.cdc.gov/safechild/NAP/background.himl#unint
' Child Welfare Information Gateway. Child Maltreatment 2015: Summary of Key Findings. Retrieved from httDs://vvww.childwcir3rc.ec'v/oubs/factshccts/canstnts/
* Child Welfare Information Gateway. Screening and Intake. Retrieved from hitt>s://www.ehildwelfare.gov/tootc&/re.snonding/iia/screcning/
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and emotional development.^

13. Bchaviornl

Concerns

No definitions required

14. IPV Screening Intimate Partner Violence: physical violence, sexual violence, stalking and psychological
aggression (including coercive acts) by a current or former intimate partner. An intimate partner
is a person with whom one has a close personal relationship that can be characterized by the
following: emotional connectedness, regular contact, ongoing physical contact and sexual
behavior, identity as a couple, faniiliarity and knowledge about each other's lives.'

15. Primar}' Caregiver
Education

No definitions required

16. Continuity of
Insurance

Coverage

Continuous Health Insurance Coverage: having health insurance coverage without any
lapses.

17. Completed
Depression
Referrals

Recommended services: specific techniques and intervention models delivered in the context
of client characteristics, culture, and preferences that have shown to have positive effects on
outcomes through rigorous evaluations and have demonstrated to achieve positive outcomes for
the client.®

18. Completed
Developmental
Referrals

Developmental Delay: delays in any or all areas including cognitive, social, language, sensory,
and emotional development.^

19. IPV Referrals Intimate Partner Violence: physical violence, sexual violence, stalking and psychological
aggression (including coercive acts) by a current or former intimate partner. An intimate partner
is a person with whom one has a close personal relationship that can be characterized by the
following: emotional connectedness, regular contact, ongoing physical contact and sexual
behavior, identity as a couple, familiarity and knowledge about each other's lives. '

*U.S. National Library of Medicine, National Institutes of Health. Psychological lnde.\ Terms via Unified Medical Language System, 2015. Retrieved from
hllo://ghr.nlm.nih.gov/elossarv=dcvclpomentaldelav

' Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Injury Prevention and Control: Division of Violence Prevention, 2015. Retrieved from
httD://wvr'u-.cdc.gov/violcnccprevcntion/intimatcpanncrviolcncc/dcrinition5.html

* Home Visiting Collaborative Improvement and InnoN-ation Network.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Attachment 5 - DCYF Key Performance Metrics

Key Performance Metrics

Referrals

Share of families who are referred to HFA from DCYF.

(# of families currently enrolled in HFA CWP and % of HFA CWP slots currently used)
Share of DOYF-referred families that were enrolled between three (3) and twenty-four
(24) months of age.

Share of DOYF-referred families with a recent assessment of a Substance Exposed
Infant (SEI).

Enrollments

Average time to enrollment from the time and date of referral.
# of days from referral date to the first home visit.
Share of families that are offered HFA and % of offered families who decide to receive

HFA.

Relative rate of families enrolled by racial/ethnic and geographic characteristics.
Proportion of families that are retained in the program over specified periods of time
(6 months, 12 months. 24 months, 36 months, etc.) after receiving a first home visit.
Proportion of families who receive at least seventy-five (75%) percent of the
appropriate number of home visits based upon the individual-level of service to which
they are assigned.

Program Completion

Share of families who do not complete the program (incl. reason for non-
completion/discharge).

Share of families that discharged who completed a minimum of specified periods of
service. (3 months. 6 months, 12 months, 18 months, 24 months, 30 months, 36
months).

Proportion of families who complete program by racial/ethnic and geographic
characteristics.

Short-term Outcomes

Share of families with a new case opened to DCYF, or a new report of maltreatment,
within six months after discharge.
Share of children who enter out-of-home placement within six months after discharge
(incl. breakdown of placement type).
Share of children who enter any form of out-of-home placement within 12 months of
discharge.
Differences in outcomes outlined above (I.e., prevention of out of home removal,
decreases in risk/needs) by racial/ethnic and geographic characteristics.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

N.1. 61.5% Federal funds from:.
1.1.1. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant

Program, as awarded on September 7. 2021, by the DHHS
Health Resources and Services Administration, CFDA 93.870,
FAIN X10MC43595.

1.1.2. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant
Program, as awarded on September 2, 2022, by the DHHS
Health Resources and Services Administration, CFDA 93.870,
FAINX10MC46878.

1.1.3. American Rescue Plan Act Funding for Home Visiting, as
awarded on April 30,2021, by the DHHS Health Resources and
Services Administration, CFDA 93.870, FAIN X11MC41935.

1.1.4. American Rescue Plan Act Funding for Home Visiting, as
awarded on October 28, 2021, by the DHHS Health Resources
and Services Administration, CFDA 93.870, FAIN
X11MC45263.

1.1.5. Administration of Children Youth & Families (ACF), as awarded
on October 1. 2022, CFDA 93.658, FAIN 2201NHFOST.

1.2. 38.5% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

4. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

5. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

/k/U.
RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01 C-2.0 Contractor Initials!
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DocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

6. Audits

6.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act(S>dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

6.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

6.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

6.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

6.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs:act(S)dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's
fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

6.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
.shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

6.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after
the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

6.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

A. Payment Terms Respective to Traditional Home Visiting Services for the
Division of Public Health Services (DPHS):

7. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through C-6,
Budget.

8. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following

-rDS

MAi
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DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

Is assigiied an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to DPHSContractBilling@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

B. Payment Terms Respective to Child Welfare Protocols for the Division for
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) for direct services:

Payment shall be for services provided in fulfillment of this Agreement, as
specified in Exhibit B. Scope of Work Section 3.4, and in accordance with the
following:

9.1. Weekly Rate: For the purposes of this Agreement, a weekly rate shall be
paid in the amount of $149.84 per client (family) once per week.

Payment shall be made on a monthly basis , and follow a process
determined by the Department, as indicated in Section 10.1, below.

The Contractor cannot exceed the maximum allotment for weekly rate
expenditure by Fiscal Year, which is as follows:

9.

9.2.

9.3.

State Fiscal Year Amount

SFY 2023 $14,597

SFY 2024 $72,986

SFY 2025 $44,053

Sub-Total $131,636

RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

9.4. .The Contractor shall submit non-clinical expenses via the Website;
httDs://business.nh.aov/beb/PaQes/lndex.asDx.

9.5. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services,
in compliance with funding requirements.

0. Payment Terms Respective to Child Welfare Protocols for the Division for
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) for administrative services:

10. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice
is completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.

10.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreerrient, and shall be in accordance
with the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-7, Budget and
Exhibit C-8, Budget. The Maximum allotment for contract expenditures
by Fiscal Year is as follows:

State Fiscal Year Amount

2023 $29,456

2024 $103,229

2025 $0*

Sub-Total $132,685

*The Contractor wl

services in SFY 25

1 only bill for direct

10.2. In lieu of hard invoice copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic
signature and emailed to DCYFInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may
be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

10.3. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services,
in compliance with funding requirements.

RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV.01
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Exhibit C-1 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: WA af HCS,/nc.

Budget Request for: Home Visiting Services • DPHS - Home Visiting Formula Grant
BudqetPerlod SFY 2023 (April 1,2023 • June 30, 2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.00%

Line Item Program Cost ■ Funded by DHHS

1, Salary & Wages $19,382

2. Fringe Benefits $5,821

3. Consultants $261

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rale cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $1,559

5.fb) SuDDlies - Lab $0

5.(c) SuDolies • Pharmacy $0

5.(d) SuDolies - Medical $1,548

5.(e) SuDOIies Office $18

6. Travel $721

7. Software $174

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
" $17

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
IT Needs $3,879

Bus Passes $135

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $33,315

Total Indirect Costs $3,331

TOTAL $36,646

itialc V
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Exhibit C-2 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

Budget Request for: Home Visiting Sen/ices - DPHS • Home Visiting Formula Grant

Budqet Period SFY 2024 (July 1, 2023 • June 30, 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.00%

Line item Program Cost.- Funded.by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $85,018

2. Fringe Benefits $24,655

3. Consultants $1,044

4. Equipment
indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix iV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $2,580

5.(b) Suopites-Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $1,534

5.(e) Supplies Office $87

6. Travel $2,883

7. Software $696

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$69

8. (b) Other - Education and Training
$9,976

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
IT Needs »  $1,566

Bus Passes $539

Membership $2,610

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $133,257

Total Indirect Costs $13,326

TOTAL $146,583

Page 3 of 4 Date
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Exhibit C-3 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for eech budget period.

Contractor Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

Budget Request for: Home Visiting Services ■ DPHS - Home Visiting Formula Grant

Budget Period SFY2025 (July 1. 2024 - Septeml;)er 30. 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 10-00%

Linejtem Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $24,515

2. Fringe Benefils $8,864

3. Consultants $261

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rale cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $721

7. Software $174

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$17

8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
IT Needs $628

Bus Passes $135

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $33,315

Total Indirect Costs $3,331

TOTAL $36,646
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Exhibit C-4 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

Budaet Reauest for: Home Visiting Services ■ DPHS - ARP - MIEC HOME VISITING

Budget Period SPY 2023 (April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.00%

Line Item Program Cost;- Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $1,208

2. Fringe Benefits $350

3. Consultants $261

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $516

5.(e) Supplies Office $17

6. Travel $721

7. Software $174

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$17

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)
IT Needs $319

Bus Passes $135

Membership - HFA Affiliation $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $3,718

Total Indirect Costs $372

TOTAL $4,090

Page 1 of 3 Date
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Exhibit C-5 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: ̂ VNA at HCS, Inc.

Home Visiting Sen/ices - DPHS - ARP - MIEC HOME

B j . VISITINGBudqet Request for:

Budget Period SPY 2024 (July 1, 2023 ■ June 30, 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by. DHHS
., 1

1. Salary & Wages $3,360

2. Frlnqe Benefits $974

3. Consultants $1,044

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 GFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 GFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educationai
■ $0

S.fb) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $2,580

5.(e) Supplies Office $87

6. Travel $3,604

7. Software $870

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$88

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
IT Needs $1,594

Bus Posses $673

Ivtembership - HFA Affiliation $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $14,874

Total Indirect Costs $1,487

TOTAL $16,361
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Exhibit C-6 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

Home Visiting Services ■ DPHS - ARP • MIEC HOME .
RiiriqfitRRqiiestfor:

Budoet Period SPY 2025 (July 1, 2024 ■ September 30, 2024)
Indirect Cost Rate (If aoDllcable) 10.00%

Line Item j  Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $2,701

2. Fringe Benefits $756

3. Consultants $261

4. Equiprnent
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) SuDDlies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.{e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. -Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) ■ $0

9. Subrecipienl Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $3,718

Total Indirect Costs $372

TOTAL $4,090
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Exhibit C-7 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: at HCS, Inc.

Budget Request for: Home Visiting Services - DCYF
Budaet Period SPY 2023 (April 1 - June 30. 2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.00%

Line Item Program Cost!- Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $14,036

2. Fringe Benefits $4,070

3. Consultanls $454

4. Equpment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $1,204

5.(b) Supplies ■ Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $899

5.(e) Supplies Office $30

6. Travel $1,253

7. Software $302

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$30

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $3,900

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Communication $366

Transportation for Families $234

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $26,778

Total Indirect Costs $2,678

TOTAL . $29,456

Page 1 of 2 Date
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Exhibit C-8 Budget Sheet RFP-2023-DPHS-08-HOMEV-01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor. Name: at HCS, Inc.

Budget Request for; l-lome Visiting Services ■ DCYF

Budaet Period SFY 2024 (July 1 - June 30, 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by.DHHS .

1. Salary & Wages $52,900

2. Fringe Benefits $15,754

3. Consultants $1,814

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $5,407

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $3,673

5.(e) Supplies Office $120

6. Travel $5,011

7. Software $1,210

8. (a) Other ■ Marketing/ Communications
$121

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $3,900

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Communication $1,109

Transportation for Families $936

Membership $1,890

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $93,845

•

Total Indirect Costs $9,384

TOTAL $103,229
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREIVIENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health arid Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation,, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

kk.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other, appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

3/7/2023

Vendor Name: Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Service;

DoeuS[gn«d by:

Date Namef^^'i^^'^McQueeney
Title: CEO

— DS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
^Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
^Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by^specific mention
sub-grantee or.sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Service

f

'DocuSigned by:

3/7/2023

Diti . yjai^mWi'WQueen'ey

CEO

MM
Exhibil E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials*
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding OelDarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

A

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension^ Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause, the knowledge andf

kh.
Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials^" ■' —'

And Other Responsibility Matters 3 fj/202 3
cu/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER Tl ER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier particiiDant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Serv

X-—DocuSlgned by:

3/7/2023 I
Diti WW^^i^VcQueeney ^

TiUe:
CEO
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1:3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d).which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;'

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

f  DS
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor-Name: Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Serv

OoeuSlBn*<l by:

3/7/2023

Date Nam e ra" H cq u e e n e y
Title: CEO

•DS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Envlronrhental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Home Healthcare, Hospice and community servi

— OocuSigned by:

3/7/2023

Date Nam e au ra McQueeney

Title: ceo

Exhibrt H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. .

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

jd-by

Ml
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi/i^s,

I Ml
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been •

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and imrhediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with^HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ g^iate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivifl^PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I " Contractor Initials^
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

I

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity-for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

.  such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to'the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Ma,
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in.its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reaulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. Ma.
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Home Healthcare, Hospice and community Services, inc.

ThdoStatei by:

"TiUcy
Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Patricia M. Tilley Maura McQueeney

Name of Authorized Representative
Di rector

Narne of Authorized Representative

CEO

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

3/7/2023 1/7/2023

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
- 4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #)
A 0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Inforrnation), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Home Healthcare, Hospice and community Servi

—OocuSigntd by:

3/7/2023

Date "Narne:''^^^^'"^^^Queeney
Title:

CEO

Ma,
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor tnitiabv

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 3/7/2023
CU/DHHSni07i3 Page 1 of 2 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORW A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  . K76NXGVN1XX3
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

3.

4.

In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

if the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

if the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986?

.  _N0 YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:,

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

Name:.

Name:' •

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits'and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

— DS
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same rheaning as provided in the
•  definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
—08

Mi
V5. Last updale 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials^

DHHS Information
Security Requirements 3/7/2023

Page 2 of 9 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions "and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS' Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6.. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

I. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States.'This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying ^the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

>  DS
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and connply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor vyill execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure."

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFIare encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this- Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance'with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Slate of the State of New i-lampshlre, do hereby certify that VNA AT HCS, INC. is a New

Mampshire Nonprofit Corporaiion registered to transact business in New Mampshire on November 18, 1981. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofRce have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 67798

Certificate Number: 0006133066

Or

Bk

O
fe)

(1:2

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOE,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of March A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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I  David Therrien . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract sigriatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of VNA at HCS
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on May 12.2022 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Data)

VOTED: That Maura McQueenev. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of VNA at HCS to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents,'agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vole.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State.of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.
Dated: , , .

^ ̂  -
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: /•
Title: -

Rev. 03/24/20



A.CORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE {MM/DOATYYY)

6/29/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ios) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Dowci Agencies, LLC
14BobalaRoad
Holyoke MA 01040

License#: 8R-1201657

NAME^*^^ Jessica Reid. CiSR. CPIA
Pv... 413-437-1070 uw.noL 413-437-1470

AnfwpAq- ireid(®dowd.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Companies

INSURED HOMEHEA-03
Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc.
and VNAatHCS, Inc.
PO Box 564
312 Marlboro Street

Keene NH 03431

INSURERS Philadelphia indemnilv Insurance Comoanv 18058

INSURERC Atlantic Charter Insurance Company 44326

INSURERD

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 120235730 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

0CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

GEWL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY

OTHER:

LOC

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS ■
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

RETENTIONS mfllin

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANYPR0PRIET0R/PARTNER/EXECUT1VE
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In NH)
11 yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

□

Olrec'iars & Officers Liability
Employment Practices Liebility
Fidudary Liability

ADDL
JMSIL

N/A

SOBR
mo. POLICY NUMBER

PHPK2365630

PHPK2365634

PHUB7g8916

WCA00539811

PHSD1684801

POLICY EFF
tMM/DOfYYYYt

1/4/2022

1/4/2022

1/4/2022

7/1/2022

1/4/2022

POLICY EXP
IMM/DD/YYYYl

1/4/2023

1/4/2023

1/4/2023

7/1/2023

1/4/2023

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrer>ce1

MEO EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL A ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddenll
BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per acddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenll

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$20,000.00 Retention
S25.000.00 Retention
$0

S 1,000.000

$ 100,000

S 5.000

S 1.000,000

S 3.000.000

$3,000,000

$1,000,000

$4,000,000

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$1.000.000
$5,000,000
$5,000,000
$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may beatuched if more space Is required)
Certificate holder is an additional insured, per written contract.

State ofNH
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Stree
Conford NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) \ The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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>\CO#?D>* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DDrrYYY)

3/2/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING tNSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: tf the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADUlllUNAL iNSUKbU provisions or De enaorsea.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the poiicy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Dowd Agencies, LLC
14 Bobala Road
Holyoke MA 01040

License#: BR-1201657

raiSf* Diane LaFieche
413-437-1062 lw.Uoy.

diaflecheOdowd.com

msuRER(S) affording coverage NAIC#

INSURER A Phliadeiohia insurance Companies

insured H0MEHEA^)3
Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, inc.
and VNA at HCS, Inc.
PO Box 564
312 Mar1t>oro Street
Keene NH 03431

INSURER a Phiiadeiphia indemnity insurance Company 18058

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOVy HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IN8R
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDLiU6R
WVO '  POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/RtWYYYYI

POUCY EXP
IMMrtJD/YYYY) UMITS

A X COMMERCUU.GENERAL LIAatLRY

E 1 X [ OCCUR

PHPK2505760 1/4/2023 1/4/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMSJAAC

DAMAGE 1U kktJ 1MD
PREMISES lEs ocnirrnrMAl S 100.000

MED EXP (Any ona paraon) S 5,000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY S 1.000.000

. GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

POLICY 1 1 jECT LiLl t-OC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 3,000.000

$

a AUTOUOaiLE LIABILmr PHPK2505763 1/4/2023 1/4/2024
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Fa accktanti

$1,000,000

X

X

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Par paraon) $

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par acddant) $

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acddanil

S

$

a X UMDRELLAUAB X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB847196 1/4/2023 1/4/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE $4,000,000

EXCESS LIAB AGGREGATE $

DEO X ! RETENTION Sin (Wl $

WOf{KERS COMPENSATION

NtA

PER 1 OTH-
.STATUTE 1 ER

ANYPROPRIETOR#>ARTNER/EX£CUTIVE pH
OFFICERAIEMBEReXCLUDED?

(Mandatory in NH)
If yea. daa(^ba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L. DISEASE POLICY LIMIT $

A Profaaaional LIsblliy PHPK2505760 1/4/2023 1/4/2024 Eacii Claim Limit

Aggrasate
1,000,000
3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddKiofMl RemaHu ScheOut*. may ba attachad It mora apaca la raqutrad) •
Certificate hoider is an additionai insured, per written contract. .

state of NH
Department of Health and Human Services
12§ Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WrrH THE POUCY PROVISIONS. '

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB89D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

ff Home Healthcare
Hospice iff

(I ln| 0 Community Services

Mission of Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services

andVNAatHCS:

To provide services which enable people to function throughout life at their
optimal level of health, well-being and independence, according to their personal

beliefs and choices.
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I^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Home Healthcare, Hospice &
Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,
2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of -our report. We are required to be
independent of Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Home
.Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona • Puerto Rico

■ berrydunn.com



DocuSign Envelope ID: F889D924-B945-4E54-B7D7-FF1AB932B457

Board of Directors

Home Healthcare. Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Page 2

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Rnancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute
assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control, Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc. and Affiliate's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Home ̂Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc. and
Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

i  /-j—C-

Manchester. New Hampshire
December 13. 2022
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  1,298,118 $  2,485,863
Short-term investments 14,208 18,174

Patient accounts receivable, net 1,788,549 1,862,056
Other receivables 428,903 343,852
Prepaid expenses 326.715 278.005

Total current assets 3,856,493 4,987,950

Assets limited as to use 12,775,139 14,413,813

Property and equipment, net :  2.382.738 2.657.347

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
COViP-19 refundable advances and other deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$ 19.014.370 $ 22.059.110

302,158 $ 437,955
961,056 1,240,725
257.913 33.582

1.521.127

16,776,013
717.230

1.712.262

19,429,941
916.907

17.493.243 20.346.848

$ 19.014.370 $ 22.059.110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Operating revenue

Net patient service revenue
COVID-19 relief funding and other operating revenue
Gain on sale of financial asset

Net assets released for operations

$ 13,018,339 $
2,959,326

34,300
154.426

12,849,959
4,891,571

1,800

54.350

Total operating revenue 16.166.391 17.797.680

Operating expenses
Salaries and related expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

12,951,084
4,480,821

363.012

11.380,022

4,117,321

378.194

Total operating expenses 17.794.917 15.875.537

Operating (loss) gain f1.628.526) 1.922.143

Other revenue and gains (losses)
Contributions and fundraising income
Investrnent income, net
Change in fair value of investments

650,889

160,709
.f1.867.525)

594,666

146,960

•2.623.567

Total other revenue and gains (losses) f1.055.927) 3.365.193

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses (2,684,453) 5,287,336

Net assets released for capital acquisition " 30.525 109.475

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor
restrictions $  f2.653.928) S 5.396.811

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-A-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses
Net assets released for capital acquisition

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Investment income

Change in fair value of investments
Net assets released for operations
Net assets released for capital acquisition

Change In net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

$  (2,684,453) $ 5,287,336
30.525 109.475

(2.653.928) 5.396.811

13,515
2,623

(30,864)
(154,426)
(30.525)

• (199.677)

(2,853,605)

20.346.848

139,750

2,975
54,480
(54,350)

(109.475)

33.380

5,430,191

14.916.657

$ 17.493,243 $ 20.346.848

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-5-
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  (2,853,605) $ 5,430,191

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash (used)
provided by operating activities

Depreciation 363,012 378,194

Change in fair value of investments 1,898,389 (2,678,047)

Investment income restricted for reinvestment (2,623) (2.975)

Gain on sale of financial assets (34,300) (1,800)

(Increase) decrease in the following assets:
Investments 3,966 (1,688)

Patient accounts receivable 73,507 (263,765)

Other receivables (85,051) 37,007

Prepaid expenses (48,710) (46,437)

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (135,797) (452,048)

Accrued payroll and related expenses (279,669) 146,445

COVID-19 refundable advances and other

deferred revenue 224.331 (2.178.408)

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (876.550) 366.669

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (3,218,446) (3,646,348)

Proceeds from sale of investments 2,961,354 3,427,768

Capital expenditures, net of proceeds (54.103) (578.487)

Net cash used by investing activities (311.195) (797.067)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,187,745) (430,398)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2.485.863 2.916.261

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  1.298.118 $ 2.485.863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-6-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in
New Hampshire whose primary purpose is to act as a holding company and provide management
services to Its affiliate.

Affiliate

VNA at HQS, Inc., is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in New Hampshire whose primary
purposes are to provide home healthcare, hospice and community services.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Home Healthcare, Hospice &
Community Services, Inc., and its affiliate, VNA at HCS, Inc. (collectively, the "Association"). They
are related through a common board membership and common management. All significant
Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Association prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAR) established by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB). References to U.S. GAAR in these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC).

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAR, which requires the Association to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's management
and the Board of Directors (Board).

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions are to be met by
actions of the Association or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

-7-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Income Taxes

The Association is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). As
a public charity, the Association is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Association's tax positions and concluded that
the Association has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial institution which may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Association has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides a reserve for payment adjustments by analyzing past history and
identification of trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. Management regularly reviews data
about revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the reserve which is netted against accounts
receivable. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are

applied against the allowance for payment adjustments."

Patient accounts receivable, net were $1,788,549; $1,862,056; and $1,598,291 at June 30, 2022,
2021, and 2020, respectively.

Investments

Investments in short-term investment options are reported as current assets. Investments held for
long-term return are reported as non-current assets.

The Association reports investments at fair value and has elected to report all gains and losses in
the (deficit) excess of revenue over expenses to simplify the presentation of these amounts in the
consolidated statement of operations, unless otherwise stipulated by the donor or State law.

-8-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility risks. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in
the consolidated balance sheets.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use Include designated assets set aside by the Board of Directors and donor
contributions.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintehance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Property is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
related carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on assets to
be held and used are recognized based on the excess of the assets' carrying amount over the fair
value of the asset.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and others, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and in future periods
as final settlements are determined. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not have other
third-party resources, are charged a reduced amount based on the Association's published sliding
fee scale. Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Association. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients
receiving skilled and non-skilled services in their home or facility. The Association measures the
period over which the performance obligation is satisfied from admission to the point when it is no
longer required to provide services to that patient, which is generally at the time of discharge.

Providers of home health services to clients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are paid on
a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is based on the
scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by federal guidelines. As the
performance obligations for home health sen/ices are met, revenue is recognized based upon the
portion of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
prospective payment determined for the medically necessary services.

-9-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per-
diem basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the Association's aggregate annual
Medicare reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate. Revenue is
recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount. As the performance
obligations for hospice services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the portion of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
predetermined aggregate capitated rate per day.

Because all of the Association's performance obligations relate to short-term periods of care, the
Association has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in FASB ASC Subtopic 606-10-
50-14 (a) and, therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the
reporting period.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same
year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

COVID-19 and Relief Funding

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus disease {COVID-19)
a global pandemic. In response to the global pandemic. The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services (CMS) implemented certain relief measures and also issued guidance for limiting the
spread of COVID-19.

Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the spread of COVID-19,
by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and imposing limitations on
travel and the size and duration of group meetings. Many sectors are experiencing disruption to
business operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement,
volatility in investment returns, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented
uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and any
government actions to mitigate them.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

The U.S. government has responded with several phases of relief legislation as a response to the
COVID-19 outbreak. Legislation enacted Into law on March 27, 2020, called the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), a statute to address the economic impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak. The CARES Act, among other things, 1) authorizes emergency loans to
distressed businesses by establishing, and providing funding for, forgivable bridge loans; 2)
provides additional funding for grants and technical assistance; 3) delays due dates for employer
payroll taxes and estimated tax payments for corporations; and 4) revises provisions of the IRC,
including those related to losses, charitable deductions, and business interest.

CARES Act Provider Relief Stimulus Funds

The Association has received emergency federal grant funding under the CARES Act from the
Provider Relief Fund (PRF) which are funds to support healthcare providers in responding to the
COVID-19 outbreak.

The PRF is being administered by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. These
funds are to be used for qualifying expenses and to cover lost revenue due to COVID-19. The PRF
are considered conditional contributions and are recognized as revenue when qualifying
expenditures or .lost revenues have been incurred. The following table outlines the distributions
received, period of availability and revenue recognized during the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021.

Funds Revenue Revenue

Distribution Available for Recognized Recognized
Distribution Period Amount Use Through In 2022 in 2021

Period 1 (4/10/2020 to 6/30/2020) $ 600,871 6/30/2021 $ - $ 600,871

CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program

In April 2020, the Association received a loan from the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA)
under the CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) in the amount of $1,496,000. The loan
Is to be used for payroll and other allowable costs authorized in the PPP rules, and forgiveness of
the loan balance is dependent upon compliance with this and other terms and conditions of the
CARES Act. Funds used for unauthorized purposes are required to be repaid. The Association
received notification of forgiveness from the SBA on June 25, 2021. The Association followed the
conditional contribution model to account for the PPP loan and, accordingly, recorded the
forgiveness of the loan as COVID-19 relief funding and other operating revenue in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

American Rescue Plan Act

On March 11, 2021, the U.S. government enacted the American Rescue Plan Act (ARRA). ARPA,
amongst other things, provided support for health and human services workforce development in
response to COVID-19 and broader economic impacts of the pandemic. The Association received
$248,428 in grant funding under ARPA through the State of New Hampshire Home and Community
Based Service fund during the year ended June 30, 2022 for the purpose of workforce investment.
The Association incurred qualifying recruitment and retention expenses of $53,478 as of June 30,
2022, which is recognized as GOVID-19 relief funding and other operating revenue in the
consolidated statement of operations. The unspent ARPA funds as of June 30, 2022 of $194,950 is
included in COVID-19 refundable advances and other deferred revenue on the consolidated

balance sheet. The funds are available to use through December 31, 2022.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

As of June 30, 2022, the Association has working capital of $2,335,366 and average days (based
on normal expenditures) cash and liquid investments on hand of 27 which includes only cash and
cash equivalents.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses and capital acquisitions not financed with debt or restricted funds (unfunded
capital expenditures), were as follows:

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,298,118 $ 2,485,863
Short-term investments 14,208 18,174
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,788,549 1,862,056

Other receivables 428.903 343.852

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $ 3,529,778 $ 4,709,945

The Association has board designated long-term investments that could be made available for
general expenditure upon Board approval. Since these investments are currently intended for long-
term investments, they have not been included in the information above. The Association has other
long-term investments and assets for restricted use, more fully described in Note 3, which are not
available for general expenditure within the next year and are not reflected in the amount above.

The Association has a $1,000,000 line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as disclosed in
Note 5.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

3. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, stated at fair value, are as follows:

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,071,402 $ 1,151,816
U.S. Government and corporate bonds 2,283,550 2,132,950
Marketable securities 7,307,967 8,726,603
Mutual funds 2.126.428 2.420.618

Total investments and assets limited as to use $ 12,789^^7 $ 14,431,987

2022 2021

Investments without restrictions or designations $ 14.208 $ 18.174

Assets limited as to use

Board-designated for future use 12,057,909 13,496,906
Donor-restricted, time or purpose 217,704 350,833
Endowment investments - unappropriated spending 265,295 331,843
Donor-restricted, perpetual in nature i 234.231 234.231

Total assets limited as to use 12.775.139 14.413.813

Total investments and assets limited as to use $ 12,789^341 $ 14,431,987

Fair Value

PASS ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction
between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The fair value hierarchy within PASS ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three
levels of inputs that may be utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
• similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by obsen/able.market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

The fair values of all of the Association's investments, which are presented in the following table,
are measured on a recurring basis using Level 1 inputs with the exception of corporate bonds
which are valued based on quoted market prices of similar investments and categorized as level 2
investments.

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents

U.S. Government and corporate bonds
Equity securities
Mutual funds

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Total

$  1,071,402 $ -  $ 1,071,402
- 2,283,550 2,283,550

7,307,967 - 7,307,967

2.126.428 - 2.126.428

$ 10.505.797 $ 2.283.550 $ 12.789.347

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Government and corporate bonds
Equity securities
Mutual funds

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Total

$  1,151,816 $ -  $ 1,151,816
- 2,132,950 2,132,950

8,726,603 - 8,726,603

2.420.618 - 2.420.618

$ 12.299.037 $ 2.132.950 $ 14.431.987

Investment income and change in fair value for cash equivalents and investments consist of the
following:

Net assets without donor restrictions

Investment income, net of fees
Change in fair value of investments

Restricted net assets

Investment income

Change in fair value of investments

Total

2022

$  160,709 $
(1,867,525)

2,623
130.864)

2021

146,960
2,623,567

2,975
54.480

$  (1.735.057) $ 2.827.982
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

2022 2021

515,786 $ 489,311

5,704,016 5,693,516
3,379,278 3,422,332

27.757 -

9,626,837 9,605,159

7.244.099 6.947.812

;  2.382.738 $ 2.657.347

Land

Building and improvements
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Construction in progress

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Total property and equipment, net

5. Line of Credit

The Association has an unsecured $1,000,000 line of credit payable on demand with a local bank
with interest at 1% above the bank's base rate (5.75% at June 30, 2022). There was no
outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

6. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consists of the following:

2022 2021

Time or purpose restrictions for:
Haskeli fund accumulated earnings - for office rent $ 264,104 $ 313,372

Johnson Family fund accumulated earnings - for capital
expenditures 4,714 7,750

Dementia program - 26,480

Sewer line replacement - 20,000

Transportation - 72,785

Hospice accumulated earnings 958 3,934

Capital acquisition 10,365 10,525

Operations (414) 627

Jones fund accumulated earnings -for equipment (1,671) 2,529

Bednarfund accumulated earnings- for general purposes (2.397) 3,631

Hospice memorial garden 112,374 125,227

Barbara Duckett scholarship 94.966 95.816

Total $ 482.999 $ 682.676
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June 30, 2022 and 2021

Restrictions that are perpetual in nature for:
Hospice $ 10,000 $ 10,000

Operations 8,623 8,623

Johnson Family fund - for capital expenditures 10,202 10,202

Bednar endowment fund - income for general purposes 50,000 50,000

Haskell endowment fund - for office rent 120,570 120,570

Jones endowment fund - for equipment 34.836 34.836

Total $ 234.231 $ 234.231

7. Endowments

The Association has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this Interpretation, the Association classifies as a donor-restricted endowment (a) the original value
of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor-restricted
endowment gifts, and (c) accumulations to the donor-restricted endowment made in accordance
with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to
the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as net assets
with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Association in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

In accordance with the UPMIFA. the Association considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
(3) General economic conditions:
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation;
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources of the Association;
(7) The investment policies of the Association;
(8) The spending policy; and
(9) Funds with deficiencies.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The investment portfolio is managed to provide for the long-term support of the Association.
Accordingly, these funds are managed with disciplined, longer-term investment objectives and
strategies designed to meet cash flow and spending requirements. Management of the assets is
designed to attain the maximum total return consistent with acceptable and agreed-upon levels of
risk. The Association benchmarks its portfolio performance against a number of commonly used
indices.
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Strategies Employed for Achieving Obiectlves

To-satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Association relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Association targets an asset allocation strategy
wherein assets are diversified among several asset classes. The pursuit of maximizing total return
is tempered by the need to minimize the volatility of returns and preserve capital. As such, the
Association seeks broad diversification among assets having different characteristics with the
intent to endure lower relative performance in strong markets in exchange for greater downside
protection in weak markets.

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of the assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowments may fall below the level of the donors' original gift(s). The Board's policy does not
permit spending from undenwater endowments. Any deficiencies are reported in net assets with
donor restrictions. At June 30, 2022 donor endowment funds with a fair value of $88,977 were
below the donor's original gift or stipulated levels by $4,482. At June 30, 2021, there were no such
deficiencies.

Spending Pollcv

The Association has a spending policy of appropriating a distribution annually up to 7% of the
endowment fund's average market value over the previous 36 months. Appropriations are
determined and made on an annual basis at year-end.
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The following summarizes changes in endowment assets:

Without

Donor

With Donor Restrictions

Purpose

Restrictions Restrictions

Balance June 30, 2020 $10,630,684 $ 314,835

Investment income, net 140,168 2,975

Realized and unrealized gains on
investments 2,623,654 54,480

Contributions 102,400 $ -

Net assets released from restrictions - (40.447)

Balance June 30, 2021 13,496,906 331,843

Investment income, net 158,714 2,623

Realized and unrealized loss on

investments (1,868,428) (30,864)

Coritributions 270,717 -

Net assets released from restrictions - (38.307)

Balance June 30, 2022 $12,057,909 $ 265.295

Perpetual in
Nature

234,231

Total

$11,179,750

143,143

2,678,134
$  102,400

(40.447)

14,062,980

161,337

(1,899,292)
270,717
(38.3071

$12.557.435

8. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is as follows:

Medicare

Medicaid

Other third-party payers
Private pay

Total

2022

$ 10,455,442 $
387,618

1,910,515
264.764

2021

9,949,738
447,348

2,271,722

181.151-

$ 13.018.339 $ 12.849.959

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The Association believes that it is in
substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. However, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenue in the year that such amounts
become known.
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The Association provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Association does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.

The Association provided services in other health-related activities, primarily to indigent patients, at
rates substantially below cost. For certain activities, services were provided without charge. The
Association estimates the costs associated with providing the other health-related activities by
applying Medicare cost report methodology to determine program costs less any net patient
revenue generated by the program. The estimated costs incurred in these activities amounted to
$1,310,676 and $442,134 for the years June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Association is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through local
community support and state grants. Local community support consists of contributions received
directly from the public. United Way, municipal appropriations, and investment income earned from
assets limited as to use. Federal and state grants consisted of monies received from the State of
New Hampshire.

In assessing collectability, the Association has elected the portfolio approach. This portfolio
approach is being used as the Association has similar contracts with similar classes of patients.
The Association reasonably expects that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of
contracts would not differ materially from considering, each contract separately. Management's
judgment to group the contracts by portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each
portfolio category. As a result, management believes aggregating contracts (which are at the*
patient level) by the particular payer or. group of payers results in the recognition of revenue
approximating that which would result from applying the analysis at the individual patient level.
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9. Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows;

Program services
Salaries and benefits

Program supplies
Travel

Contract services

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total program services

Administrative and general
Salaries and benefits

Travel

Contract services

Other-operating expenses
Depreciation

Total administrative and general

Total

2022

$11,153,760
626,487
391,355

1,010,901

1,066,802
312.626

2021

$ 9,677,790
626,624

355,613

1,105,855

995,528
321.616

14.561.911 13.083.026

1,797,324

93,373
1,119,986
171,937
50.386

1,702,232

81,515
777,056

175,130
56.578

3.233.006 2.792.511

$17.794.917 $15.875.537

Management's estimate of cost allocations at a functional level is based on Medicare cost report
methodology.
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10. Commitments and Continqencles

Leases

Leases that do not meet the criteria for capitalization are classified as operating leases with related
rental charges to operations as incurred. The Association's operating leases are for its office
facilities with varying expiration dates.

The following is a schedule, by fiscal year, of future minimum lease payments under operating
leases for office facilities as of June 30. 2022 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of
one year:

2023 46.522

2024 41.938

Total $ 88,460

Rental expense amounted to $69,302 in 2022 and $65,715 in 2021.

Malpractice Insurance

The Association maintains medical malpractice insurance, coverage on a claims-made basis; The
Association is subject to complaints, claims, and litigation due to potential claims which arise in the
normal course of business. U.S. GAAR requires the Association to accrue the ultimate cost of
malpractice claims when the incident that gives rise to claim occurs, without consideration of
insurance recoveries. Expected recoveries are presented as a separate asset. The Association
has evaluated its exposure to losses arising from potential claims and determined no such accrual
is necessary at June 30, 2022 and 2021. The Association intends to renew coverage on a claims-
made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available in future periods.

11. Retirement Plan

The Association sponsors a defined contribution plan. The retirement contributions by the
Association amounted to $154,133 in 2022 and $147,868 in 2021.
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12. Concentration of Risk

The Association grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of accounts
receivable, by funding source:

2022 2021

Medicare 65 % 53 %

Medicaid and other third-party payers 35 47

Total 100 % 100 %

13. Subsequent Events

For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management through
December 13, 2022, which is the "date the consolidated financial statements were available to be
issued.
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Susan Ashworth

Experience

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services
Keene, New Hampshire

Director of Community Relations. Nutrition and Transportation Programs 2002 to present
Assumed responsibility for operations of the organization=s nutrition and transportation programs,
in addition to Community Relations duties.

Director of Communit\' Relations 1985 to 2002

Member of the organization=$ senior management staff, responsible for the agency=s marketing
and public awareness efforts and community relations activities, including securing funding from
towns.'

Key activities include:

X  Developing and implementing marketing strategies for the organization as a whole and for
specific program areas.

X  Directing the agency=s public relations efforts, including development of brochures, press
releases, displays, presentations and other materials to communicate the HCS mission to a
wide variety of constituencies.

X  Managing the agency=s advertising programs, including print, radio and direct mail.
X  Securing funding from 38 communities for in home care and community programs through

the town appropriation process. Manage town funds to maximize care to low income
consumers while maintaining service costs within the appropriations available. Liaison with
network of HCS Advisors to encourage support of the organization=s activities at the
community level.

X  Developing educational programs and communication mechanisms to maintain effective
relationships with HCS Advisors.

X  Managing telephone and voice mail systems to facilitate effective communication for the
agency=s various publics. Negotiate contracts with vendors and oversee design and
implementation of new systems and technologies.

Interim Executive Director 1987-1988

Assumed leadership of organization from October, 1987 to August 1988 during search for executive
director. During this time, maintained the financial stability of the organization by restructuring
rates for nursing services. Worked with member organizations to continue their participation in the
HCS umbrella. Secured contract to developed and implemented adult day care services. Expanded
wellness and health education programs for the community and business.

Director of Senior Services 1982 -1993

Responsible for planning, developing and managing the organization=s community services for
senior citizens, including congregate nutrition programs, meals-on-wheels, public and elderly and
handicapped transportation services, outreach and adult day care.

Responsibilities included:
X  Securing funding from diverse sources, including grants, town appropriations, contributions

from civic organizations and client donations to maintain programs.
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X  Managing budgets for individual programs and funding sources.
X  Monitoring and evaluating programs to meet agency standards and funding and regulatory

requirements.

Cheshire Health and Social Services

Keene, New Hampshire

Director of Senior Services 1979-1982

Responsible for developing the organi2ation=s community sei*vices for senior citizens and
managing the daily operations of the senior nutrition, outreach and transportation programs.
Responsibilities included;
X  Directing community development efforts to expand nutrition services for senior citizens in

rural communities.

X  Securing grants from state and local sources, public and private, to fund the expansion of
services.

X  Positioning senior nutrition sites as multi-purpose centers for senior citizens by adding
wellness, information and referral and recreation services.

X  Developing and implementing an outreach program to reach out to elderly and handicapped
consumers in rural areas.

X  Managing all aspects of daily operations, including personnel, budgeting, and monitoring
and evaluating programs to meet regulatory requirements.

Coordinator of Nutrition and Transportation Programs 1977 to 1979

Managed the daily operations of the organization=s nutrition and transportation programs for
senior citizens.

ACTION

Orlando Florida

Program Assistant 1977

State office liaison with local VISTA Volunteer projects, responsible for recmitirig and training
volunteers to work with a wide variety of community projects throughout the slate.

New Hampshire Association for the Elderly
Concord, New Hampshire

Vista Volunteer 1974 to 1976

Provided support to organize senior citizens to advocate effectively for services in their community.
Provided outreach to individual senior citizens to assist them in obtaining resources.

Education
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Masters in Business Administration 1985

New Hampshire College
Manchester, New Hampshire

Bachelor of Science in Education 1974

Major-in Sociology
Keene State College
Keene, New Hampshire

Selected Professional Activities

Leadership Monadnock, 1999 graduate
Council for a Healthier Community, member

United Way, agency tour manager for several general campaigns
New Hampshire Transit Association, founding member and treasurer
Savings Bank of Walpole, corporator

References are available upon request.
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Staci J. Branon

OBJECTIVE

Seeking a professional position that will allow me to continue my professional
career path.

EDUCATION

University of Massachusetts, Lowell
Bachelor of Science in Criminal Justice

Minor in Psychology

WORK HISTORY

8/2010- Social Worker, Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services
As a Maternal Child Health Social Worker, I provide assists clients and families

in developing and implementing an appropriate plan of care to meet their needs. I
conduct case finding activities in the community, and help families access all available
support services for a healthy family.

612009-Monadnock Family Service. Family lnten>ention Specialist
In the position of Family Intervention Specialist, I visit families in their home and

try to prevent abuse and neglect in potential situations. Often times, the families are in
crises, whether it be food, shelter or financial short comings. More often than not, there
are mental illnesses or substance abuse problems and we help families through those
circumstances as well by referring them to appropriate agencies. When the crisis is
stabilized, we can then focus on our primary goals of empowering parents to use proper
parenting techniques.

2/2009- Monadnock Family Sennces, Children's' Group Leader & CFSA
As a Children's Group Leader, 1 monitor children while their parents attend

classes to better themselves. 1 tend to the children's needs and ensure that their needs are

met. I also maintain a curriculum to parallel what the parents are learning in their class,
so children and parents are both educated on the same topics.

As a Community & Family Services Associate, I bring children to my home to try
to portray what a healthy environment is where as they may not get that at home. I follow
guidelines to initiate treatments to individual children, to work on certain goals, and to
give them a break from their family and the family a break from them.

2004-2009 Stay at home mom

2002-2004 Department ofHealth and Human Sennces, Division of Family Sennces,
Family Sennces Specialist

Inteiwiewed clients one on one to detemiine eligibility of benefits. Personally
oversaw cases and reviewed them until the benefits were available to the client.

Conducted monthly eligibility reviews with clients to ensure eligibility had not lapsed.
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Also, maintained consistent, quality customer service to clients by meeting with them.
Made the effort to meet with clients and answer their questions to the fullest of my
ability, either in person or by phone and make sure they had all resources available to
them.

2001-2002 Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Family Sennces,
Clerical Inten>iewer

Interviewed clients to determine the proper service for their specialized needs.
Prepared clients' applications for processing and intake interviews. Also performed
routine clerical duties such as data entiy, mailings, answering phones and typing reports.

2001-2005 Daniel Webster College, Head Volleyball Coach
Organized and conducted structured team practices in preparation for games.

Also, trained and instructed players on proper techniques and implementation of their
skills.

2000-2001 Kitchen Etc., Cashier/Merchandiser

Greeted customers as they entered the store and assisted in any manner necessary
to insure customer's needs were met. Services included customer service, cashing
customers out, merchandising and answering the phone.

1999-2001 Esleeck Manufacturing Company, Secretary/ Clerical
Completed multi-task assignments in the administrative assistant position.

Accomplished several duties at once including data entry, answering telephones and
professional client relations. Also, performed numerous skills such as balancing monthly
books and fixed asset accounts and reviewing invoices.

2000 University of Massachusetts, Work Environment Department
Organized and analyzed data for an asthma study which was conducted by the

university. Also stmctured tasks which were to be carried out within the department,
including professional relations, answering phones, and various operations for a
successful department.
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Chaille R. Cohen

OBJECTIVE

To contribute within an employee-centric workplace that values authenticity, learning, and collaboration.

SKILLS & QUALIFICATIGNS

■ SHRM-CP and PHR certifications; SHRM Inclusive Workplace Culture Specialty Credential
■ Blackbaud Raiser's Edge^" Certified Professional
■ Lean Six Sigma Yeilowbelt Trained; pursuing certification
• Strong writing, editing, and proofreading skills
• Highly computer proficient - Microsoft Office 365, HRIS (ABRA & Paycor), QuickBooks Pro
■ Articulate, resourceful, consdentious, collaborative, and creative

EXPERIENCE

Home Healthcare; Hospice & Community Services (Keene, NH)

Healthy Starts/Community Relations Coordinator j October 2022 to present

■ Provides administrative support" for the Healthy Starts program and Community Relations department
■ Assists with the state funding contracts and town appropriation processes; gather data, write narratives,
and organizes the materials needed for submission to funders

■ Track Healthy Starts budget expenditures, process program referrals, and use online state and agency
platforms to input data required

HR Generalist | July 2018 to present

• Managed generalist functions for a workforce of 200+: benefits administration; full cyde recruiting;
employee relations; compliance; employee education; and volunteer screenings

■ Coordinated employee engagement efforts and recognition events; designed monthly employee
newsletter; Chaired the DEI Advisory Committee; Secretary of the Joint Loss Management Committee

• Ensured compliance with state and federal laws and regulations through timely and accurate reporting,
recordkeeplng, new hire documentation, and employee licensure tracking; assisted with updates to job
descriptions and policies.

■ Generated monthly reporting for payroll, licensure compliance, and federal exclusion checks for
employees, volunteers, and vendors

Assistant Director of Philanthropy 1 April 2016 to June 2018

■ Responsible for organizational fundraising endeavors - direct appeals; events; grant writing; online
donations; gift acknowledgement letters; and e-newsletters

■ Collaborated with staff and volunteers to support fundraising efforts
• Oversaw and administered Raiser's Edge database containing more than 23,000 records
■ Responsible for creating accurate and timely financial reports

Community Relations & Development Coordinator/Administrative Assistant | February 2013 to April 2016

■ Created multiple newsletters every month for distribution to lOOO-i- constituents
■ Represented the agency at public events
• Website creation, maintenance, and social media interface on behalf of the agency
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The British Clockmaker (Newfane, VT)
Bookkeeper | March 2007 to May 2016
■ Provided accurate and timely accounts payable, statement reconciliation, and tax prep assistance

Girls on the Run Vermont (Brattleboro, VT)
Program Manager (Northern Region) | August 2007 to August 2012
• Recruited, trained, and sustained 100+ volunteer coaches every year-

■ Created efficient and accurate procedures and systems to support program goals and needs
• Co-coordinated the participant experience for 3,000+ attendees at two annual 5k events

Northeast Recycling Council (Brattleboro, VT)
Office Manager | November 2004 to March 2007
• Performed all bookkeeping functions including Accounts Payable/Receivable and grant tracking
• Utilized ADP Payroll to generate accurate employee paychecks and employment data
■ Coordinated the site logistics and registration process for multiple annual events held in various states

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services (Keene, NH)
Development Coordinator | August 1999 to November 2004
■ Worked closely with the Director, volunteer committees, donors, and other staff to coordinate several
annual fundraising, donor cultivation, and community relations events

■ Created event marketing materials (flyers, newspaper and radio ads, email blasts, and newsletters)
• Recruited and sustained the participation of event volunteers, vendors, and exhibitors for multiple annual

events per year

EDUCATION

Master of Human Resource Management

Colorado State University Global | May 2020 | CPA 3.91, cum laude

Certificate in Genealogical Studies

Boston University | July 2016

Bachelor of Arts In Political Science

Johnson State College 1 May 1992; cum laude

MEMBERSHIPS

Society for Human Resource Management

Sigma Epsilon Delta Honor Society

Golden Key International Honour Society
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Rebecca Landry

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Home Healthcare, Hospice, & Community Services Keene, nh
Home Visitor January 2013 - Present
•  Community liaison for HCS programs with families and individuals throughout the service

area.

•  Provide safe, efficient personal interaction with pregnant and parenting families while
promoting independence.

•  Teach prenatal care, parenting skills, early intervention and children's health, help establish
goals and encouraging achievement of these goals.

•  Reports and documents pertinent observations, including changes in client's condition and
need, appropriately.

Monadnock Community Hospital Peterborough, nh
Receptionist January 2010 - March 2012

•  Compiled and recorded medical charts, reports, and correspondence.

• Maintained medical records, technical library, and correspondence files.

•  Transmitted correspondence and medical records by mail, e-mail, or fax.

•  Operated office equipment such as voice mail messaging systems, and used word

processing, spreadsheet, and other software applications to prepare reports, invoices,
financial statements, letters, case histories and medical records.

•  Greeted visitors, ascertain purpose of visit, and direct them to appropriate staff.

•  Answered telephones and directed calls to appropriate staff.

•  Performed various clerical and administrative functions, such as ordering and maintaining
an inventory of supplies.

•  Received and routed messages and documents to appropriate staff.

•  Scheduled and confirmed patient diagnostic appointments.

Monadnock Family Services Keene, New Hampshire
Children's Intake Coordinator June 2009 - January 2010

Verified insurance benefits, obtained and maintained authorizations!

Set payment plans based on sliding fee scale.

Performed various clerical and administrative functions, such as ordering and maintaining
an inventory of supplies.

Greeted visitors to ascertain purpose of visit, and directed them to appropriate staff.

Interviewed patients to complete documents, case histories, and forms such as intake and

insurance forms.

Maintained medical records, technical library and correspondence files.

Compiled and recorded medical charts, reports, and correspondence, using typewriter or
personal computer.
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Answered telephones, and directed calls to appropriate staff.

Bard Chiropractic Peterborough, New Hampshire
Chiropractic Assistant June 2004 - June 2009

Verify insurance coverage.

Perform various clerical and administrative functions, such as ordering and maintaining an

inventory of supplies. ■

Greet visitors, ascertain purpose of visit, and direct them to appropriate staff.

Assist with physiological therapy.

Transcribe recorded messages and practitioners' diagnoses and recommendations into

patients' medical records.

Compile and record medical charts, reports, and correspondence, using typewriter or

personal computer.

Operate office equipment such as voice mail messaging systems, and use word processing,
spreadsheet, and other software applications to prepare reports, invoices, financial
statements, letters, case histories and medical records.

Answer telephones, and direct calls to appropriate staff.

Prepare correspondence and assist physicians or medical scientists with preparation of
reports, speeches, articles and conference proceedings.

Interview patients to complete documents, case histories, and forms such as intake and
insurance forms.

Obtain and maintain authorizations.

Maintain medical records, technical library and correspondence files.

Schedule and confirm patient diagnostic appointments, surgeries and medical
consultations.

Perform bookkeeping duties, such as credits and collections, preparing and sending
financial statements and bills, and keeping financial records.

Transmit correspondence and medical records by mail, e-mail, or fax.

Receive and route messages and documents such as laboratory results to appropriate staff.

EDUCATION

Conant High School
Diploma Received

Jaffrey, New Hampshire
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Mary Mullen-LaValley

Objective

Acquisition of a teaching position that will render use of my talents and educational expertise as
well as provide me with the opportunity to serve those in need of care and support.

Experience

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services 2012 - present
Healthy Starts Home Visitor
Keene, NH

Community liaison for HCS programs with families and individuals throughout the service area.
Provide safe, efficient personal interaction with pregnant and parenting families while promoting
independence. Teach prenatal care, parenting skills, early intervention and children's health, help
establish goals and encouraging achievement of these goals. Report and document pertinent
observations, including changes in client's condition and need, appropriately.

Monadnock Family Services, Educator/Home Visitor 2006 - 2012
Keene, NH

Provide education and home visiting services to young at-risk mothers in collaboration with the
VNA at HCS Maternal Child Health Program. NH Certified education, K-5 (2009) and NH
CAD Certified Advocate/Counselor, Domestic and Sexual Abuse (2006).

Westmoreland Elementary School/Middle School, Special Ed Teacher 1999 - 2006
Westmoreland, NH

Special education tutor, K-5 and 8, as well as continued education ser\'ice contract (21 year old
student). Provided differentiated, appropriate and motivated education techniques for various
behavioral and emotional needs. Originated and implemented academic plans, individual and
whole class.

New Hampshire Technical Institute, Public Relations Facilitator 1995 - 1996
Claremont, NH

Public Relations Facilitator of Adult Education

Bessie C. Rowell Elementary School, Kindergarten Teacher 1976 -1978

Education

University of New Hampshire 1976
BA Elementary Education
Special education concenlralion

Keene State College Currently Enrolled
Masters of Education

33
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Rebecca Joki Provencher RN, BSN

Education Master of Nursing student, present
Southern New Hampshire University
On-line, Manchester, NH.

Bachelor of Science in Niirsing, May 1999
Fitchburg State College

Fitchburg, Ma.

Experience Pediatric Manager, October 20i3-Present
Home Healthcare Hospice and Community Services
Keene, NH

Supervision of RNs, LPNs and LNAs in the Pediatric
program. Manage each child's medical needs, scheduling
and psych-social needs with a family-centered approach.
Provide education and training for staff and families.
Increased caseload by 150% in a year.

Customized Care Clinical Manager, September 2009-
October 2013

Home Healthcare Hospice and Community Services
Keene, NH

Supervision of RNs, LPNs, and LNAs in the Customized
Care department as well as the*Choices For Independence
program. Responsible for the coordination of the Katie
Beckett(pediatric) program.

Support Services Manager, May 2006-September 2009
Home Health Hospice & Community Services
Keene, NH.

Manage the Home Health Aids in the VNA, as well as the
Choices For Independence program.

Registered Nurse, September 2001-May 2006
Home Health Hospice & Community Services
Worked in pediatric private duty. Also worked as
substitute RN super\'isor in private duty. Made routine
VNA visits as well as assisted with telemonitoring
installations.

RN/LNA supervisor, Sept 1999-Sept 2001
Cedarcrest Inc. Keene, NH.
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Medication administration and treatments, assessments,

scheduled and supervised 2"'' shift LNAs.

Medical Assistant/RN, Summer 1999

Dr. J. B. Krasner, Sudbury, MA.
General practice, assisted with the flow of the office.
Phlebotomy, intake and triage.

Community
Activities Monadnock Center for Violence Prevention

Board Member sei*ving on governance committee
May 2010-present

Board Chair 2012. 2013

Big Brothers Big Sisters
August 2010-August 2014

Girl Scouts of America:

Lifetime member

Received the Gold Award in 1995.



Melinda Vonderhorst

Work Experience

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Keene NH, 2009-present
Registered Nurse Katie Becket Program: Provides skilled nursing care to
medically-complex children in their home. Administers medications and
treatments, documenting all assessed data. Communicates effectively with child's
family and members of interdisciplinary team. Provides client and family
education, taking time to listen and respond to questions and concerns with
compassion.

Licensed Nursing Assistant, Customized Care & Katie Becket Program (2009-
2014): Assisted with ADLs, nutrition and exercise. Worked under direct
supervision of RN and part of interdisciplinary team that provided quality care to
the client and their families.

Credentials/Education

•  State of New Hampshire Licensed Registered Nurse, valid through 4/2016
•  American Heart Association BLS for Healthcare Providers through 6/2017

•  Bachelor of Science in Nursing, Southern New Hampshire University,
(online RN-BSN program) expected 10/2016

•  Associate of Science in Nursing, River Valley Community College, Keene,NH

Graduated 5/2014 Magna Cum Laude

Other

Volunteer, David's House Lebanon, NH 2000-2012
Hospitality Assistant: Welcome and acquaint guests with the house and its
policies, field incoming calls. Provide emotional support to families.

Volunteer, Pregnancy Resource Center of the Monadnock Region
Keene, NH 2001-2012
Peer Counselor: Provide support for women and their partners facing unplanned
pregnancy, Training in Parenting Series mentored classes,provides referrals to
community agencies.

Member, Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society
Member, American Nursing Association and New Hampshire Nursing Association

30
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Peneloipe R Vaioe

Objective

Employment

To use my knowledge, energy and expertise to provide support and
advocacy to those who need it.

(April 2010 - Present) Home Healthcare. Hospice and Community
Services (VNA at HCS, Inc.)

Healthy Starts Program Manager
Coordination of program, supervision, and scheduling of home visits

(March 2009 - April 2010) Home Health Care Hospice and Community
Services

Social Worker Maternal Child Health Program
Responsible for a caseload of 50 children and pregnant women needing
parenting education, health care, connection to community resources
and developmental screenings. Coordinated and collaborated with other
agencies to advocate for each client. Maintained appropriate
documentation.

(May 2008 - present) The United Church of Winchester

Director of Christian Education

Responsible for designing and implementing a vibrant Christian
Education program for the Congregation.

(March 2007- present) Mobile Home Supply of New England

Owner/Manager

Self taught to manage, market, and sell supplies for retail mobile home
supply shop.

(2000-2007)

Executive Director

The Winchester Learning Center

From drearh to reality, organized a nonprofit community supported Child
Care, Preschool and Family Resource Program. Implemented unique,
Waldorf-inspired curriculum to meet the needs of the children and their
families. Under the direction of a Board of Directors, managed daily
operations, programming, staffing, fiscal management, fundraising and
grant writing. Developed an extensive parent education and support
network for families.

Winchester Elementary School(1999-1999)

Substitute Teacher

Provided one on one tutoring care for preschool children with special
needs. Coordinated care and educational plans with professional team.

(1993-2000)

Director

Home Child Care
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Created a joyful home child care program which was Licensed by the
State of NH and registered with Family Works. Provided a variety of
developmentaliy appropriate activities to promote creativity, confidence
and independence. Established support network for parents. Supervised
two high school interns.

(1989-1993) Home Health Care Hospice and Community Services

Director

Responsible for managing and operating the Castle Center for Adult Day
Care. Program provided quality care and socialization for elderly and
handicapped participants. Supervised team of RN's CNA's and aides; and
dozens of volunteers. Secured funding annually from the United Way and
the NH Dept of Elderly and Adult Services.

Education (September,1980- May 1985)

Bachelor of Social Work

Wheelock College, Boston Mass

References Roberta Royce The Winchester Learning Center. Winchester, NH 03470
(603) 239-7347

Jed Butterfield 60 Colony Hill Road, Richmond, NH 03470 (603) 239-8780

Volunteer

experience

2009 - present C.A.S.T.

Co facilitator of Community and School Together, a network of
concerned citizens who desire to improve the quality of life for all
residents. The group has been meeting monthly for 14 years in the town
of Winchester.

2007 - present Town of Winchester

Participant in the Revitalization Committee which is preparing a plan to
revitalize downtown Winchester.

.1994-present The United Church of Winchester

Sunday School teacher. Vacation Bible School Co-Coordinator, Fabulous
Family Friday Organizer. Religious Education Board Chair, Tweens Leader,
Assistant Moderator, Search Team

1998-2000

Board of Directors

1996-2000

Vice Chair- Board of Trustees

Winchester Learning Center

Conant Public Library
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VNA at HCS, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title . Salary Amount Paid '
■ from this Contract-

Susan Ashworth Program Supervisor $5,130.00

Staci Branon Supervisor $20,234.00

Chaille Cohen Program Coordinator $18,227.00

Rebecca Landrv Home Visitor $28,048.00

Man/ Mullen-LaVallev Home Visitor $73',101.00

Rebecca Provencher Pediatric RN $15,421.00

Melinda Vonderhorst Pediatric RN $4,328.00

Penelope Vaine Program Manager $38,630.00

'


